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(BRI

The Hospital Authority (HA) is a body corporate in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Its functions are stipulated in Section 4 of the Hospital
Authority Ordinance (Chapter 113).

EREER(BER/BRBEINTHRENZEER  HBEHNRETREZMNF13E
(BEREERKAG)H D o

The Hospital Authority is responsible for:
Bl EE R AVREE :

Managing and controlling public hospitals
EEREEAVER

Advising the Government of the needs of the public for hospital services and
of the resources required to meet those needs

RARBANBRBRENERREAZETRFENER - OBRFRHASR

Managing and developing the public hospital system

EERBEAUBKRASR

Recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health appropriate policies on fees
for the use of hospital services by the public

RAREABRERBEACHNER  ARYREFLERRAREBRENBR
Establishing public hospitals
BN

Promoting, assisting and taking part in the education and
training of persons involved in hospital or related services

1B ~ BB R SEBEERHBRNBERENAL




VISION, MISSION AND VALUES
Fas= e an Rtz CVMBIE

Vision Values
B %O RE
Healthy People People-centred Care
mRER PN -T
Happy Staff Professional Service
= P BEXA/R
Trusted by the Community Committed Staff
KRR L€+ 3
Teamwork
BRED

b Mission
IR S

Helping People Stay Healthy
BEREF REZE

The corporate vision, mission and values (VMV) of Hospital Authority reflect aspirations of the Board,
the management and staff in fostering a healthy community. Guided by the mission of “Helping People
Stay Healthy”, the Authority collaborates with community partners to strive for continued success and
works towards the vision of “Healthy People, Happy Staff and Trusted by the Community”.
EERNHEBES EaRkZU0EE RREBEFAS EEERBERIRERENBPE -
EMHEREF REZEINEGSIET  BERNCERHEF A BLEE  Bo[mRER
ETRAN  KREBINES -
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CORPORATE STRATEGIES
AR IR

The Hospital Authority aims to achieve its corporate VMV by adopting five
strategic goals as outlined in the HA Annual Plan 2017-2018:

BERERM2017-2018 FETTEIEMEAMARRKER - EE LANEE
A S RROMEE

Improve service quality

RERBEXR

Optimise demand management

BLERER

Attract and retain staff

WS RREAT

Enhance staff training
and development

hnsR & TGRSR

Drive accountable and efficient
use of financial resources

EEESENEROLERMBEIR

A
A R

Under the above strategic goals and 20 strategies, the Authority formulated around 130 corresponding
programme targets for 2017-2018, which were all achieved in the year, save for seven slightly deferred.
The Head Office and Cluster Reports in Chapter 6 describe major achievements in these areas.

BE LMK EER20ME%KE 0 BERR2017-2018FEHFT THN130EIEERE  KRT L&A
HABEEN  2HRFATR FAEARSENBREBATFERTRSTEMNEERE -



* Appointed as Chairman of
the Authority on 1 December 2013
« Clinician-scientist specialising in
spinal and paediatric orthopaedics
*HR2013F12B1BEZRER
BREERERE

cEREMIRDRBERMN

RREZMRER

Acting Permanent Secretary for
Food and Health (Health)

(up to 23.7.2017)
ERRYREGEREARER (FE£)
(1fFEIZ 20177 H23H)

* Appointed on 1 July 2017

* Board Member in capacity as
Acting Permanent Secretary for
Food and Health (Health) of
HKSAR Government

*R2017E7B1BEZEE
c UEBERITRERA

EERMEBLERBEMER(EE)

EHHEEREERKE

* Appointed on
1 December 2012
» Former human resources
director of a listed public
transportation group
s R2012F12B1HEZE
s P AHBEHEE
AIA D &R A B

* Appointed on 1 April 2014

« Chief executive officer of
a marketing, brand building and
event management company

*HR2014F481HEZE
SR BETEK

HE SN RBE
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Director of Health
HEEER
* Appointed on 13 June 2012

» Board Member in capacity as
Director of Health of HKSAR
Government

*A20126 A13AEEE

cUBEBRHNTHERNEEE
ERGNLEBEREERNE

* Appointed on 1 April 2017

» Managing director of
a development company

20174 B1AEZEE
CBREARESERE

* Appointed on 1 April 2013

* Dean of the Faculty of
Medicine of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong

*R2013F 4 A1 HEZEE
CBERRNABEEERERER

* Appointed on
1 December 2013

« Chief financial officer of
a listed property developer
*R2013F12B1BHEZE
cLtmihERRE AT
HEMEEE



* Appointed on 1 April 2015

» Medical laboratory
technologist and Department
Manager (Pathology) of
Queen Elizabeth Hospital

*H2015F481BEZE

- B LR R AR AEE
o 2 B AR AR Y AR

* Appointed on
1 December 2016

* Building surveyor and
practising arbitrator

*R20165E12 B1 B EZEE
CEFAEMRIAFEMET

* Appointed on
1 December 2012

« Solicitor and partner
of a legal firm

cHR2012F12 B1HEZEE
EMREMEBREEA

* Appointed on 1 April 2017

* Founder of an independent
non-profit public policy
research organisation

*R2017E4 B1BEZEE

BN IEER N HBERAR
BRI A

* Appointed on 1 April 2013

» Certified public accountant
and former chief executive
officer of the Financial
Reporting Council

*R2013F4 A1AEZEE

cEMEEA - MBERS

AT ERABE

* Appointed on
1 December 2016

* Design consultant
*RA2016 F12 A1 HEZE
* SR TR

* Appointed on
1 December 2016

* Deputy chief executive
of a listed bank

* 2016 F12 B 1HEZEE
c EWRITEIAH

* Appointed on
1 December 2013
* Accountant and Adjunct
Associate Professor in the Faculty of
Business Administration of
the Chinese University of Hong Kong

*R2013F12B1HEZEE
CERMREEBRXAE
ITHEERRETERBR
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* Appointed on 1 December 2012

* Professor of Nursing of
the Nethersole School of
Nursing of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong

*R2012F12B1BEZEE

BB UARBMITRERE
BIRBEHR

* Appointed on 1 December 2014

* Engineer and Member of
the Legislative Council (Engineering
Functional Constituency)

*R20145 12 B1BEZE
IRMRIZEZEZE(IRR)

Chief Executive, HA

« Appointed on 1 August 2013 ELREEERBITHAH « Appointed on 1 April 2013

- Dean of Li Ka Shing Faculty of ~ * Appointed on 8 November 2010 . gpecialist in haematology and
Medicine of the University of * Board Member in capacity as haematological oncology and
Hong Kong Chief Executive of assistant medical superintendent

«A2013E8 A1 B EEE the Hospital Authority
CEBAETEREEREE *HR2010F 11 B8R EZEE
LB EERITRARSN
HEBREERKE

Permanent Secretary for Food and Health
(Health) (up to 30.6.2017)
RYRBERBEEWER (FE)
(FEIZ2017 66 530 H)

* Appointed on 6 July 2016

» Board Member in capacity as
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health
(Health) of HKSAR Government

*A2016F7 A6 HEZEE

UEBBITHRERNRYREER
EERER(EE)FHHME
BEREERKE
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of a private hospital
*FA2013F4 81 HEZEE
MR R IMREBNEREER
LREBEREIRR

 Appointed on
1 December 2015

* Director of a real estate
development company

*R2015F 12 B1BEZE
EHERXARES



Permanent Secretary for

Food and Health (Health)
BRYRBFEREEIHWER (FL)
* Appointed on 24 July 2017

» Board Member in capacity as

* Appointed on 1 December 2012

« Solicitor and a law firm consultant
cR2012F12 1A EZERE

* AN K 2 A0S 55 AT R RS

Permanent Secretary for Food and Health

(Health) of HKSAR Government
*HR2017F7B24BEZE

EEMER(EE)FHHE
BEREERKE

* Appointed on 1 April 2011

» Immediate past Dean of the
Faculty of Health and Social
Sciences of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

*R20MFE4 1B EE

EBEIABRER
HENBRAER R

LUEBEINTRERNRUREER

 Appointed on
1 December 2015

 Group chief compliance and
risk management officer of
a group of listed companies

*R2015F 121 HEZ T
LT ATMNEEERY
BREEER

* Appointed on 1 August 2015
* Retired social worker
201568 A1 HEZE
RARMT

* Appointed on 1 December 2015
« Practising barrister
cHR2015F12 A1 A EZE

c HEREE

s

Deputy Secretary for Financial

Services and the Treasury

HEERREXRBEIWER

*» Appointed on 7 October 2016

* Representing Secretary for
Financial Services and the
Treasury of HKSAR Government

*A2016 F10 A7THEZE

cREBBERTHERG
MREBREBRER

Membership of the Hospital Authority B EEFRKE
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CHAPTER1 $—&=

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HrsER

The Hospital Authority (HA) is a statutory body established under the
Hospital Authority Ordinance (Cap. 113)(the HA Ordinance) in December 1990,
responsible for managing all public hospitals in Hong Kong. HA is accountable
to the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) Government through
the Secretary for Food and Health.

BREER(BER)REZEER - RBE(EREERKRSG)E113ER1990F 121
B AEEEEFEENAVER  YEBRYURELERBRABTEBEIITHE
HEFEE -

Hospital Authority Annual Report E&F% &2 /3 F 3% 2017-2018
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility for and commitment
to corporate governance principles and recognises that the
Authority’s stakeholders expect the highest standards of
performance, accountability and conduct.

Under the HA Ordinance, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
appoints members to the HA Board. Membership of the
Authority comprises 24 non-public officers, three public
officers and one principal officer (the Hospital Authority Chief
Executive). Board Members are not separately remunerated.
The 2017-18 Board consisted of 28 members, including the
Chairman, with details listed in Appendix 1.

The HA Board meets formally about 12 times a year and
any other times as required. In 2017-18, the Board conducted
15 meetings to consider over 120 agenda items. They covered
an array of important matters in leading and managing HA,
including formulation of policies and strategies, steering
and monitoring of the planning, development and operation
of hospital services and supporting facilities, resources
management, risk management and internal control,
contingency preparedness, governance, etc. In addition,
10 Board papers on urgent matters were circulated
between meetings.

The Board in 2017-18 continued to perform its leading
and managing role in HA. In overseeing and steering the
implementation of various enhancements in response to the
recommendations of the Steering Committee on Review of HA,
the HA Board and its functional committees received regular
progress reports from the management and provided strategic
directions for relevant policy matters.

Hospital Authority Annual Report BRE

S5 2017-2018

EERASHASAHEEERETIE
®E - RMEMREERSTFEEERS
B WEAHFTHEBERRINER
EARGE o

REB(EBREERGEA) BERAEHXE
HEEBFITHETHRREE XD - KERE
BIE24BHELKE - ZBABER—R
FETHRAE(BERTHAR)

RETEFEINE - 2017-18FEEF - KE
B28ERE (BEERE) » FIEHNMER1 -

kéﬁiﬁﬁﬁmmmﬁ%%’mﬁ%
BREBHEE - £2017-18FE » KE
Aaﬁwméﬁ’ ZBBE1201EEE -
HMEEEREEREBEERNEEZSEEH -
BIEHFTHRENRE  BERESERR
KETEZBNRE BHENEE - ER

B EREPEEAMES BEEE -
ERE - BOMEESHZBUERTABER

10X f » BEEIEH -

E2017-18 EE » BE %kéﬁlé—f,.;mrf}
BEERRTEEZEENESE  EE
NERBERNAG - k%&ﬁ;ﬁrféaﬁ
EREMEBASRINEHNIFEE
e RAMBEBRREHEEMERESE
NERKBEEERERERITEEAN
BIBREIEE -




During the year, the Board made sustained efforts to reinforce
corporate governance and enhance practices to ensure
accountability and stewardship of HA's resources and effective
management of services. The Board and its functional
committees conducted annual agenda forecast along different
strategic and functional dimensions for guiding their operations
throughout the year. Extra steps were taken to proactively
and specifically align agenda planning with their respective
Terms of Reference (TOR) for further ensuring that they
could sufficiently address important issues under the TOR.
Arrangements were made to enhance Members’ understanding
of HA’s policies and operations, including briefings on selected
topics, direct discussions on areas of strategic importance,
visits and talks, etc. To drive for continuous improvement,
self-assessment by the Board and functional committees
continued on annual basis, with the survey questionnaires
further refined and streamlined. Implementation of the HA
organisation-wide risk management framework continued to
make good progress, with the processes consolidated and
aligned across different functional areas and management
structures in the Authority overseen by the Board and its
committees, thereby strengthening the overall coordination of
clinical and non-clinical risk management.

For optimal performance of roles and exercise of powers, the
HA Board has established 11 functional committees: Audit and
Risk Committee, Emergency Executive Committee, Executive
Committee, Finance Committee, Human Resources Committee,
Information Technology Services Governing Committee, Main
Tender Board, Medical Services Development Committee,
Public Complaints Committee, Staff Appeals Committee and
Supporting Services Development Committee. Membership
of the committees, terms of reference and focus of work in
2017-18 are outlined in Appendix 3.

R BERARSEREB L NBHEEBEES
kELERBEREERNERERRRE
ERABEMRBIAREEE - RERHA
EEZEERTEANKRKREFHEEGT
FEZRRE  UREZ2FHEE - ]F
NEERE  EERBEZEBESREM
RE - UERHEAREEBESE P
EEEH RAEKEEHRABERN
HERMEE  RMARERHZHED
BREBERENENE EEXREH
MEETWURSBERITNBES -
RAIEXRE BERAKEREEES
ZESHESTETARNZ - FIRAN
BECE-—SEIMNNE - SFEHEE
KERREERBEIOEEDNSRY
ER  BEENBE-—BERKEREHE
ZESEETIARABEERMER
REWRERF - BT K &I RKE R
EERREWA -

AN EERASENBEBRERTE
BiE AR LT 1M EEEEES - B
Bt REAKMEEZESR  BEEEXE
ZE® 1THZEE MEKZEE - AS
ERZER  BEANEREERZES -
PRZEZZER  BERKERREZEE
ABREREZEEE BELHRZEGRIE
REBRREES - REEE2017-185FE
HWRERE BESZER IEHITEN
Bffés% 3 o
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To enhance community participation and governance of public
hospitals, Hospital Governing Committees (HGCs) were
established in the hospitals and institutions in accordance with
the HA Ordinance. These committees are listed in Appendix 4.
In 2017-18, a total of 131 meetings were conducted by 32 HGCs.
They received regular management reports from Hospital Chief
Executives, monitored operational and financial performance
of the hospitals, reviewed risk management issues, provided
policy guidance on hospital management, and participated
in human resources and procurement functions, as well as
hospital and community partnership activities.

HGCs operate in accordance with corporate governance
policies and practices as reflected in the Manual on the
Operation of Hospital Governing Committees approved by the
HA Board. The linkage and interactions between the Board
and HGCs are of particular significance to the development
of HA's corporate policies and strategies. During the year,
continuous efforts were made to actively engage HGCs
in corporate-wide issues, such as regular briefings by
Cluster Chief Executives at HGC meetings; and enhanced
governance in two-way communication of views raised by
HGCs and monitoring of actions taken and reporting to the
HA Board. In line with the practice adopted by the HA Board
and its functional committees, HGCs also conducted annual
self-assessment to drive for continuous improvement.

To provide HA with advice on the healthcare needs for specific
regions of Hong Kong and assist the Authority with better
performance of its functions in relation to the regions, HA has
established three Regional Advisory Committees (RACSs).
These committees and their respective membership are listed
in Appendix 5. Each RAC meets four times a year.

In2017-18, the RACs were briefed on the progress of the annual
plans and targets of individual clusters, as well as other major
developments such as the Hong Kong Children’s Hospital,
Tuen Mun Hospital Operating Theatre Block extension
project and “E-Fill” Drug Refill Services Pilot Programme. The
Committees also discussed a number of HA matters, including
advancements and developments on information technology
and health informatics of HA, Pilot Scheme on Dementia
Community Support Services for the Elderly, enhancement
of medical fee waiver mechanism, Annual Report on Public
Appreciation, Feedback and Complaints Management 2016-17,
2016 Patient Experience and Satisfaction Survey on Accident
and Emergency Service, winter surge preparation and progress
update on the development of Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine Pilot Programme, etc.

Hospital Authority Annual Report BT & /5 F k% 2017-2018

AREMESHEHEMNBALERER
BERR(BREEREH) BT ER /
KEBRIBREREZES - fR4HER
BREREZEE® 8 - £2017-18FE >
NEERERZESHBHIIREE
EFRBRTRAENTEHEERE - BER
BREEENFHEFENRE  BRER
EHER - EEBREERE  URSH
ANERRRETEMER KBRS H
WIEES o

KBERASEBN(BREREZES
EEFMHIBREEEESEENIKE
ERRERZH - -BERASHBRER
ZEEMNEENED  HEERHRIHE
HRNRBABER - FR - HAKE
KBBRERZEES2HBERNKE
B BREHBEAETHNEREZES
ERNABEERNEBEE/BH  mE
ERZEeRARERZRETHNES
T XMBERAE2EH - UmEes
BE RRBERASRHEZEZREEN
it BBREREEETEFETAR
APz ERIE -

APRHIHNEUAEERETENER
BEERBI=ZABRHENEES - Mi#k5
HEE=-AZEEhEKEERE - REH
FHALREESFEREREE -

E£2017-18EE » ZAREHAZANEES
BERERBANEE TEEERMERZ -
URBBREER - HMBRFNEXRE
BEFERIBERZ I BREYRKLE
RS HMEAEMNER c ZEGTTR
TEERZITEAEE  BIEBEERMNENR
BirHEBREEHNERE  [EREHRT]
£EE - BEEBRAREESINELER
(AFEE  ERRRFEEFR2016-17) »
20106F2EERARREIEREREE
FAE - URXZRESIEENERT/EMN
PRBHELESHEERERS -



The executive management team of HA is outlined in
Appendix 2(b). The executives are charged by the HA Board
with the responsibility to manage and administer day-to-day
business and operations of the Authority. To ensure that the
management can discharge duties in an effective and efficient
manner, the HA Board has set out clear delegated authority,
policies and codes of conduct. The Board approved the 2017-18
annual plan prepared by the executives in accordance with the
Board’s direction. Regular executive reports on the progress of
agreed performance indicators and targets were presented to
the Board.

Under the powers stipulated in the HA Ordinance, the Authority
determines the remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment for all employees. Remuneration packages of
executive directors and other senior managers are devised
to attract, motivate and retain high calibre individuals in a
competitive talent market. Remuneration packages of all senior
executives are considered and approved by the HA Board or
its Executive Committee.

MeE2(b) B BTHEEERMNBE - &
THRAEEEERASEREERYITE
ERMBEERREE ABEREERE
AREERMBETHREE  KASEERS
ERTED BEXRRRTER - XK8E
HZBITBRABRBERERIZLFSHIETH
2017-18 FET/E5TEl - THABTEH]
MASREREERS  BREIFENRRE
EERITEEENEE -

REBE(EREERKM)BMTHED -
BERTEEMERENTH MR KRB
R - BTBREREMSREREAS
M EE TE By B R 4 BESRBETE R F R
ANTER S| - HERRESERAT
FIEERTHAENEFM HHEER
RERTHESSZEREM
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Since its establishment, Hospital Authority (HA) has developed into one of
the most efficient public healthcare systems in the world, with our public
hospitals being cornerstones of the system and serving about 90% of
inpatient needs in Hong Kong. | am deeply honoured to be reappointed
as Chairman of HA to continue joint endeavour with our outstanding
professional team contributing to the advancement of this internationally
respected healthcare system.

BEREER(BERIRILES EHAEZREANENAIHABRERZ— -
RUBRAEZBIENENERERRY  RRERGBEURINESG - R+2
RERBEABERTIRE  HEHEEFNEEXENEREBFSHFE AREEH
BEERERNBRRAGKM —20 -
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HA provides a strong public healthcare safety net for all people
of Hong Kong, especially those with limited financial means.
Notwithstanding formidable challenges, our 76 000 staff
members remain steadfast in providing comprehensive and
high-quality medical care for the benefit of the community.
The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR)
Government undertakes to increase the recurrent funding
for HA progressively on a triennium basis, having regard to
population growth and demographic changes. This enables
HA to formulate proactive plans and sustain improvement
initiatives through medium term strategies, and augment
the capacity of public hospital services and manpower to
address the challenges of growing demand and ageing
population. We are deeply grateful to the HKSAR Government
for this forward-looking commitment to bolster HA's works
through both funding and policy support.

EERREETRNAOAEBEZEZH
FREBEIBERTRNRE  -HHES
& - B8ER/76 000U ESNEFREAL
ATREMHZENSEZNEERY -
BBERTHERNAHEAES=58—@
A BRAOEREARAOGED
28 ZIERBERNEEHN -
ERZHFEDBEERNPHRKARE -
BEHERZNE  RRKERSEXE
it MEAVERNRBENATF
FEHEHAENFRMAOSRILHRE -
3 API EB R R 4 B BT B B BE M A9 B B
RBFRARE  XIFBRERNIE-
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The first 10-Year Hospital Development Plan has been in good
progress to optimise capacity and to modernise our public
hospitals. Following the service commencement of Tin Shui Wai
Hospital in 2017 with 12-hour Accident and Emergency
service since March 2018, the Hong Kong Children’s
Hospital will start service in phases in the fourth quarter of
2018 to serve as a tertiary referral centre for complex and rare
paediatric cases. More gratifying is the staunch support of the
HKSAR Government in pledging another $300 billion,
inwhich a major proportionis dedicated to hospital development,
and HA will proactively commence planning for the second
10-year public hospital development to further enhance the
public medical infrastructure.

Implementation of the HA Action Plan in response to the
recommendations of the Steering Committee on Review of
HA is in full swing. With unstinting devotion of colleagues, the
majority of the action items have been completed, and there
are other on-going and continuous initiatives. We envisage that
the overall Action Plan would be timely completed within the
three-year timeframe by late 2018. Strategies and key actions
laid out in the HA Strategic Plan 2017-2022 are also dovetailed
with the HA Review Action Plan, for synergy in addressing
key challenges and healthcare needs.

F—E+FERBEFENSRITER
BEBEEEALLERNVRISEE LM
i o PEE 2017 TR AR - RKEEBKR
2R2018FE 3 AR 12/ NEFSEERT -
EBREERAIN2018 FEMNEH-E 5 M
BBRAEE  EBFE=ZBRBMENDL
ETEEEEREFRANERBTE
BMALERERERNC REHEINFAEL
3,000Bt  ERAREBAHLBERIEER
BRE KMESEBHEREE_BALER
TERRREAITE URALXIHLER
RIEHRE -

ERHREEZNUR  RMERBBNEE
FREZBRHEWTEHE  2EEEZEE
o KBAPBEELETER  NE—LEE
FEERNER - BEARR  HMEWE
E=FR AR 2018 FEAI TR EMEITH
518 o (2017 £ 2022 FERBEFTEI) F 5 HY
ZIERBNEETE  HEBERTEFE
B BhhBERUNEE—FW A
EEFENEMEBETE o
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| am indebted to all members of the HA Board, Regional
Advisory Committees and Hospital Governing Committees,
as well as co-opted members of the functional committees
for their guidance and advice along the years. We welcome
Mr David Fong Man-hung, Mr Franklin Lam Fan-keung and
Ms Elizabeth Tse for joining the Board last year. Their expertise
and experience would bring fresh insights to HA. Meanwhile,
we thank the outgoing members, Ms Chiang Lai-yuen,
Mr Patrick Nip Tak-kuen and Dr Pang Yiu-kai, for their wise
counsel and invaluable contribution to HA.

My sincere gratitude also goes to members of Legislative Council,
District Councils, patient groups, and volunteers, whose support
enabled us to move forward with our vision. | must also extend
my appreciation to every member of the HA family for their full
dedication and professionalism in providing quality healthcare
services to people of Hong Kong. With united support of all,
| have every confidence that the development and services of
public healthcare system will go from strength to strength.

John Leong Chi-yan
Chairman

ERUBHBERAS BHXHAESS
FBREARZEENMAKRE  UREEE
ZEENBENE ZFER/BERRE
HELEENEERR - REALED
BXHERE MEBREEMNB SR L
EAFEMABERAE - MNERM
KE o EMRBERIANRIR - I
EFHENSZUKRE  BEBBERLZL
BEELCENZREEL - AOBER
BTEANR  BBRZ °

HEUEHELBRELLIERE  BERS
BE - BAEBNET —EHURNZE
HBEERBEE RO AMEE - TR
NRHBEERZRRSE  NERBMHM
HERW  OmREHEENEERE
BRERAERMEELT -0 BBLQE
BEAGKBERE  BEEH=E -

*E
REZ
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Healthcare providers worldwide are facing great challenges; and Hong Kong
is no exception. Ageing population, increasing prevalence of chronic and
progressively complex diseases, technological advancement and rising
public expectations etc., all are causing mounting pressure on the public
healthcare services in Hong Kong. Hospital Authority (HA) is fortunate to
have the unwavering support of a large pool of healthcare professionals
and other staff dedicated to patient-centred care and safeguarding the
wellbeing of the public.

HRAZFHNEFELERAEBREIE  EXEER(BER)THUBELRS -
ABZEL - BENERAFIBEE BEXBERATVHEAYE - GYUER
AHBEBRBEBREL BEBERRAMEZTNEXERB IS —H
ERUBARRTNBRZE W TERE -
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To cope with the challenges, HA has been exploring
new frontiers to transform services to meet changing
healthcare needs of the community, while putting in place
numerous capacity enhancement measures. In fostering
medical-social collaborations to reduce reliance on inpatient
care, we engaged District Elderly Community Centres to
provide nursing support to patients with mild to moderate
dementia. We closely collaborate with non-governmental
organisations (NGOs) for supporting discharged elderly patients
in the community, where HA provides needs assessment,
discharge planning and post-discharge rehabilitation to
complement home support services provided by NGOs.

HHEEMKE BERZELETER
ARTE BE S 28R » TR JDSRATBRAS L HERR L5 -
DRt EFAHEZNERTR o KM
WTBEHEMENZEERS - BROMBERE
AR HPRRHEREHEPOLEE -
REREEEZTFERNERIENRER
MEEXE - I RMEFRBFEAS
EREE  AHRERNFRBANGER
FE RIALRZHFREERS - XA
SEBENESRERRIEIERY -
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We also continued to leverage various Public-Private Partnership
(PPP) programmes to provide options for patients, including the
General Outpatient Clinic PPP Programme which was already
extended to 16 districts as at March 2018, and the Infirmary
Service PPP Pilot Programme which was implemented at
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital through a NGO commissioned for
the operation. Fees and charges of public healthcare services
were revised in June 2017. Through the revisions, we aim to
encourage appropriate use of public hospital services, while
in parallel we have also enhanced the medical fee waiver
mechanism to benefit people in need, mainly the chronically ill,
the elders and low-income groups, including by streamlining
the application procedures and extension of the waiver period.

Technological advancement undoubtedly offers tremendous
potential in creating new possibilities in healthcare
services. HA has commenced the “Smart Hospital” Project
to enhance patients’ experience in hospital services
with added convenience, and recent initiatives included
Queue Management System and smart payment kiosks.
We have also developed mobile apps to aid staff performing
clinical functions at wards, and disease and service-based
apps for empowering patients, on top of other information
technology-based solutions, such as the Inpatient Medication
Order Entry system and the Filmless Project, for improving
service quality and patient safety.
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EERELAREBESE RMARA
REHEZEE EThEESZAENMD
NFEHIESTE - 22018 F3 A5t EIE
ERZ16E ; XRENNERARZER
IBFAEABHETOALEEEREBE
T8l e B4 RUBRMR2017F6 A
FARRE HBAREREMFERA AL
ERRBRHS BRAISELEEEA
WEE  BEMGLEEFEERN WE
EEREE  SEZEEENRATE -

SENREABEEREBASFHEE
rZE -BERCHREEHER IS
EBRFERELCRANSERRSESR
BHMNEEBEREREEAAREREAR
Bl 75 5t o 3% 4P BH 2% B PR FE FR AV R BN FE AR
B FEEIEREENIE ; B
LmABBRNWERRES  RHUHKRFEERE
MEKEENR - HEMREEREAFRN
ERBAEYEL RG> URBIEE®
8 UERSREEZNR/AZSE -



A series of hospital development projects are underway
as stipulated in the 10-Year Hospital Development Plan to
augment HA capacities in order to meet rising service demand.
Redevelopment projects of Kwong Wah Hospital, Prince of
Wales Hospital and Queen Mary Hospital; expansion of Haven
of Hope Hospital and United Christian Hospital; extension of
Tuen Mun Hospital Operating Theatre Block, and phase one
development of the new acute hospital in Kai Tak Development
Area are in smooth progress. Construction works for the new
Hong Kong Children’s Hospital were completed in 2017, and
the hospital is actively preparing to commence service by
phases from the fourth quarter of 2018. These projects will not
only give a facelift to obsolete facilities, but also facilitate the
delivery of modern healthcare services.

With the strong professionalism and dedication of our staff,
we jointly surmounted the pressing demands in the summer
surge and winter surge in the past year. We were particularly
grateful to the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(HKSAR) Government for the additional one-off injection
of $500 million in February 2018, which enabled additional
measures for meeting the demand and relieving manpower
shortage to cope with the winter service surge. | would like to
take this opportunity to express again our sincerest gratitude
to the HKSAR Government for its unwavering support to HA on
resources, including the commitment of triennium progressive
funding arrangement and the pledge of funding reserved for a
second 10-year hospital plan. With these proactive certainty
of resources and direction, HA will spare no time or effort to
strengthen our services and manpower in the principle of
prudent financial management.
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People are the centre of healthcare. Effective staff
management is indispensable, particularly for the public
healthcare sector in which healthcare professionals are
the backbone of quality patient care. In the last year, we
continued to increase manpower across all grades and
strived hard to retain talents through practicable means,
including enhancing advancement opportunities and training
and development. Various training initiatives were launched,
including simulation training for doctors and nurses in
major specialties, scholarships and training subsidies for
healthcare professionals, as well as training programmes for
non-clinical staff. All these aim to strengthen staff competence
and ensure that our workforce possesses the right skills to
improve patient outcomes.

Senior appointments in HA hospitals during the year included,
in chronology, Dr Ching Wai-kuen as Hospital Chief Executive
(HCE) of Yan Chai Hospital; Dr Eric Cheung Fuk-chi as HCE of
Kwong Wah Hospital; Dr Doris Tse Man-wah as Cluster Chief
Executive (Kowloon West) and HCE of Princess Margaret
Hospital and North Lantau Hospital; Dr Nelson Wat Ming-sun
as HCE of Caritas Medical Centre; Dr Lau Ip-tim as HCE of
Tseung Kwan O Hospital and Haven of Hope Hospital; Dr Pang
Fei-chau as HCE of Tung Wah Hospital in addition to his role
as HCE of Grantham Hospital; Dr Tom Kam-tim as Cluster
Chief Executive (Kowloon East) and HCE of United Christian
Hospital; Dr Jenny Lam Mei-yee as HCE of Kowloon Hospital
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and Hong Kong Eye Hospital; Dr Lam Ming as HCE of Castle
Peak Hospital and Siu Lam Hospital; as well as Dr Tang
Kam-shing as HCE of Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital,
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital and
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre. At the Head Office,
Ms Anita Chan Shuk-yu was appointed Director (Finance) and
Dr Chung Kin-lai Director (Quality and Safety).

My heartfelt appreciation goes to our diligent staff who have
gone beyond the call of duty to serve the community. By further
leveraging the support of our stakeholders, HA will brave our
way to bring lasting benefit in public healthcare to the people
of Hong Kong.

PY Leung
Chief Executive
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Re-delineation of cluster boundary between Kowloon
Central Cluster and Kowloon West Cluster was
implemented in phases, with complete cut-over for
non-clinical support services effected on 1 April.

NEFRNEASERBARGIRREAD  HEW
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Hospital Authority (HA) launched two new mobile apps,

namely i-Easy providing users with reminders on
scheduled procedures and operations at Kowloon West
Cluster Ophthalmic Centre at Caritas Medical Centre, and

Stoma Care offering practical information on stoma care.

BEREER(BER) L REBERRERN [i-Easy fikEF]
R EOEEE] - [i-Easy ki | BEASTERHN
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Extended to 16 districts, the General Outpatient Clinic
Public-Private Partnership Programme offered choice
and convenience for more patients seeking primary
healthcare services.

BEREENMZANERETEIERE6E -
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The Organ Donation Promotion Campaign “Thank the
Volunteer” event was conducted to extend appreciation
to volunteers who rendered enthusiastic support to the
organ donation promotion.

BEERERITM-—T BEE] XFEERE
BHEIT| T RESESIHRLVOZHESEEE
5 o

The new fees and charges of public hospital services took
effect on 18 June. In parallel, HA enhanced the medical
fee waiver mechanism to benefit people in need, including
the chronically ill, the elders and low-income groups.

NUBRN6AIBRERHWVE  BERILER
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With over $23 million donation from the Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust, United Christian Hospital
established the Jockey Club Adolescent Mental Health
Centre to provide comprehensive mental health services
and rehabilitation support for children and adolescents
in the Kowloon East region through medical-social
collaboration.
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Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital celebrated
130" Anniversary with a series of events to strengthen
rapport with staff and the community.

HERAYPRBITZER1B0FFHE BB
BERERPDHEHETAHLEMBREE -

The funding of the main works of the Tuen Mun
Hospital Operating Theatre Block Extension Project
was approved by the Legislative Council Finance
Committee. Main works of the project commenced.

NEEVBREESBEBEMEBERFWNEREBERE
SENERIERN BEEIEBARERMRE -

The refurbishment of Sai Ying Pun Jockey Club
General Outpatient Clinic was completed with improved
consultation facilities, providing better healthcare
services to the community.
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HA corporate website upgraded with a facelift and
accessibility design features, enhancing accessibility of
HA's information for the disabled.
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Celebrating its 80" Anniversary, Queen Mary
Hospital (QMH) organised the “Healing with Big
Hearts — QMH 80 Photo Exhibition” to display past
development of the hospital, and pay tribute to
healthcare professionals for their dedicated services.
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HA, in collaboration with the Food and Health
Bureau (FHB), the Education Bureau and the
Social Welfare Department, launched the “Student
Mental Health Support Scheme” by phases,
to support students with mental health needs.
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HA and University of Hong Kong - Shenzhen
Hospital renewed a collaboration agreement to
strengthen exchange on expertise, professional
training and development.

BERREEABRYBRERAEDE  DESS
SR + AT EIFBRRE O -

New Territories East Cluster launched mobile app
DM Care for diabetes patients to record and monitor their
blood glucose levels. It also provides useful information
and videos on Diabetes Mellitus to help patients and
their carers to manage the disease.
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: .._|;~_= 'ﬁ' ﬁ M Kong/ Guangoons HA and the Healt.h and Family Planning Commission of
Plepary of “’;f: o o TR Guangdong Province renewed strategic Memorandum

B of Understanding to enhance collaboration on

exchanges, training, research and service development.
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Hospital Authority Building was awarded Excellent
grade in the Energy Use aspect under BEAM Plus
Existing Buildings Selective Scheme in recognition of
HA’s energy conservation performance in the Building.

BERAER [RERTBAEZEGRENMGE
TESIEREA] BEAHTR  SEBER®E
REERBIERRE

HA launched the pilot programme on Drug Refill
Services, “E-Fill’, in Prince of Wales Hospital and
Tuen Mun Hospital to enhance patient's medication
safety. Under the programme, patients will collect drugs
in phases with a view to reducing the risks of storing
excess drugs at home.

BERRBHALRIER R EMERETEREY
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The Hong Kong Children’s Hospital complex was
officially handed over to HA by the Architectural
Services Department. The Hospital is scheduled to
commence service by phases in late 2018.

EEREAMEEZEZVEBREER E IR
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Accident and Emergency service of Tin Shui Wai
Hospital was extended to 12 hours daily, further
enhancing emergency medical service support to cater
for community needs.

AKEBRZEELERBRBHEBESH 12 ’J\HT ’
MERSBEREE  WISERNERNTE

The Electronic Health Record Sharing System,
developed and operated by FHB and HA, won the
Innovative eHealth Solutions Award of the World
Information Technology and Services Alliance Global
Information and Communications Technology (ICT)
Excellence Awards 2018, in recognition of the remarkable
efforts in utilising ICT to promote healthcare services.
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The modernised Sterilisation Service Department
in Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
commenced service, ensuring sterilisation process
and products meeting international standards.
The centralised service not only enables capacity
building to meeting the growing demand but also
integrates and optimises the sterilising service in
hospitals and clinics under Hong Kong East Cluster.
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CHAPTERS5 1=

ENGAGEMENT AND
TEAMWORK

R /I8 BT

The Hospital Authority (HA) Head Office and representatives of different
staff groups maintained constant communication through Six Staff
Group Consultative Committees and a Central Consultative Committee.
Staff newsletter HASLink and various HA social media platforms also
facilitated effective dissemination of latest news of the organisation.

BREER(BERANSEERNEREHHIZEGRPTRIHBEES -
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At cluster and hospital levels, Cluster Chief Executives (CCE)
and Hospital Chief Executives (HCE) exchanged views with
staff through regular meetings, newsletters, blog, online
letterbox and staff hotline. Members of the HA Board and
the HA Chief Executive visited hospitals regularly for
face-to-face communication with hospital frontline staff.

After the HR App was rolled out to all HA staff by end of
March 2017, it has recorded 48 000 downloads as at
31 March 2018, providing staff with instant access to a wide
range of information, including staff benefits, leave application,
payroll check, e-learning and internal job opportunities. Three
new functions were added during the year, namely information
on provident funds and MPF “myP-fund/MPF”, staff directory
“myColleagues” and editor’s picks on feature stories “myNews”.
In addition, the HR App is linked to mobile Staff Health Record
App (mMSHR) which makes booking at staff clinics easy.
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HA has continuously enhanced measures in occupational
safety and health (OSH) to ensure staff safety. A consultancy
study was conducted to review the overall OSH managementin
HA and identify areas of improvement, including strengthening
governance, enhancing management structure, building staff
competence and fostering safety culture. The consultancy’s
recommendations will be implemented by phases.

HA organised various recreational and sports activities
throughout the year to promote a balanced and healthy
lifestyle. Family members of staff were welcome to participate
in selected activities, such as HA Family Day, HA Family Night,
HA New Year Run, Dragon Boat Competition cum Fun Day
and Sports Meet. The 2018 HA New Year Run continued to be
one of the most popular events which recorded an enrollment
of over 4 500 participants and raised over $1.5 million for
HA Charitable Foundation to benefit patient services.

In response to the results of HA Staff Survey, actions were taken
to enhance staff recognition. One of the initiatives was
introduction of Young Achiever Award under the Outstanding Staff
and Teams Award 2018. All staff members aged 40 or below are
eligible to be nominated. Over 30 nominations were received,
from which nine Young Achievers and five Young Achievers
(Merit Award) were selected. Apart from that, five staff and
seven teams won the Outstanding Staff and Teams Awards, while
another three staff and three teams were granted Merit Awards.
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Outstanding Teams:

Hong Kong West Community Geriatric Assessment
Team End-of-life Team

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
(Hong Kong West Cluster)

HR App and mSHR Team
Hospital Authority Head Office

Multi-disciplinary Simulation and Skills Centre
Kowloon Central Cluster

New Territories East Cluster Replantation Team
New Territories East Cluster

Shatin End-of-life Care Programme
Prince of Wales Hospital and Shatin Hospital
(New Territories East Cluster)

Surgical Outcomes Monitoring and
Improvement Programme Team
Hospital Authority Head Office

Tseung Kwan O Hospital Enhanced Recovery
After Surgery and Patient Blood Management Team
Tseung Kwan O Hospital (Kowloon East Cluster)

Merit Teams:

Cluster Procurement and Materials
Management Department
Hong Kong East Cluster

Conjoint Haematology Team
Tuen Mun Hospital (New Territories West Cluster)

PayPro Team
Kowloon West Cluster
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CHAPTER 6 FH=

HEAD OFFICE AND
CLUSTER REPORTS

RIS
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The Hospital Authority (HA) provides public healthcare services to the people
of Hong Kong through its Head Office and seven hospital clusters.

Head Office and Cluster Reports present an overview of the performance of
HA Head Office and Clusters under five corporate strategic goals, as well as
achievements in contributing to a friendly environment.
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Hong Kong East Cluster Hong Kong West Cluster 4 Kowloon Central Cluster
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Kowloon East Cluster Kowloon West Cluster i New Territories East Cluster
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New Territories West Cluster
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HA Head Office (HAHO) aligns corporate values and directions. It plays a
strategic role in leading corporate development and supporting hospital
clusters through interactive collaboration of seven divisions, namely Cluster
Services, Corporate Services, Finance, Human Resources, Information
Technology and Health Informatics, Quality & Safety, and Strategy &
Planning. HAHO initiated around 130 programme targets in 2017-18 under
the five strategic goals outlined in the HA Annual Plan.
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Strategic goal:
Improve service quality

HA strives to provide optimal patient care by strengthening
service collaboration through the development of cluster-based
services. We coordinated cross-cluster collaboration on
Robotic Assisted Surgery for better utilisation of facilities in
delivering more efficient service. Rehabilitation services were
strengthened with extended service coverage to weekends
and public holidays for patients with lower limb fracture and
arthroplasty in seven clusters, as well as for stroke patients in
Shatin Hospital to assist patient recovery.

Accessibility of various services was enhanced by developing
more options for patient care. With an aim to better manage
caseloads in specialist outpatient clinics and facilitate timely
access to care, services of Family Medicine Specialist Clinic
were strengthened under a collaborative model in Kowloon
East Cluster, Kowloon West Cluster and New Territories East
Cluster. The access of audiology service was enhanced with
additional supporting staff to perform routine duties, thereby
shortening patients’ waiting time. In offering alternatives of
care, tripartite Chinese Medicine Centres for Training and
Research continued to provide disease-based Integrated
Chinese-Western Medicine Pilot Programme (Phase Il) for
eligible HA inpatients in designated hospitals.

HA fosters collaboration with community partners, including
patient groups, self-help groups, private sector and
non-governmental organisations to develop community-based
services. District Elderly Community Centres were engaged
to provide nursing support to patients with mild to moderate
dementia. In collaboration with the Food and Health Bureau,

Hospital Authority Annual Report BT & /5 F k% 2017-2018

REEER
RERBEER

BERBIUBARE - taR#BEHIE
DRMHEANHEAZERYE - HMRHE
BEAKMEER TN - EFEECRE
URFABRBUER - RERBBEREFAKRR
DNRBH - UINRBEAREEE » SEH
BRTEBETERETREZIBDH XL
FMEBEA  URADHBRNPEBA

EMERBRESRAZREEREE &S
TRRBNERE - EiB 15 EEN R
NER - NEARFTARBAREES
ENPDARE  EMEEENFIDEEN
Bz - AERABRESRS - BMATES
EERARBYE  XBERDIERBHN
BEIF UBEBSANHBRER -
H=A e R BB O EEHETES
PEERPAEBIHELENE - EREEER
EEREARERNBERIRBARM
RS - A ARHESEERE -

BERBNMRERAAS - B8/E
RERBRFBARBELEBHED
E  BRHEESANRE - RMAHERE
wERLEE  UBHSFEEXRERE
KEZPERANERENRERMAER
XE -RATHRYRFERERERRK



Education Bureau and Social Welfare Department,
the Student Mental Health Support Pilot Scheme was
launched to support students with mental health needs through
a multi-disciplinary platform. Individuals recovered from mental
illness were recruited to provide peer support for patients with
mental illness in the community in clusters.

HA adopts robust risk management to maintain high clinical
standards and safety. In 2017-18, Inpatient Medication
Order Entry system was rolled out to three acute hospitals,
namely Queen Elizabeth Hospital, Queen Mary Hospital
and Tuen Mun Hospital, to support clinical workflow, thereby
enhancing medication safety. Laboratory services were
further strengthened with 24-hour urgent microbiology
laboratory services in Princess Margaret Hospital, as well
as extended service hours of microbiology laboratories in
Kwong Wah Hospital, Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital,
Queen Elizabeth Hospital and United Christian Hospital.
Besides, through Government funding support to the Capital
Block Vote and Designated Funds of HA, medical equipment
items were installed as additions or replacements in public
hospitals at a total cost of approximately $756 million in order to
keep up with contemporary standards of medical care.
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We are committed to promoting more precise diagnosis
and effective treatment with technologies benchmarking
against international standard. A centralised Next Generation
Sequencing service model was developed with gene panel
tests provided in Kowloon Central Cluster to modernise
the genetic testing service. Inborn Errors of Metabolism
screening tests were provided to newborns in HA hospitals
through collaboration between Prince of Wales Hospital,
Queen Elizabeth Hospital and Queen Mary Hospital for
conducting the tests, and Princess Margaret Hospital for
laboratory support. Laboratory testing for diagnosis of
Tuberculosis (TB) was also enhanced by providing TB culture
and multidrug-resistant TB detection for smear positive
new cases. Service capacity of In-vitro Fertilisation was built
up by setting up nurse infertility clinics in Queen Mary Hospital,
Kwong Wah Hospital and Prince of Wales Hospital.

As on-going effort, the scope of HA Drug Formulary was
widened to cover more drugs with accumulated scientific
evidence on clinical efficacy. A self-financed drug with safety
net coverage was repositioned as special drug in the HA
Drug Formulary for treatment of Chronic Myeloid Leukaemia/
Acute Lymphoblastic Leukaemia, while the therapeutic
applications of two special drug classes were expanded
for management of chronic Hepatitis C and Attention Deficit
Hyperactive Disorder.

HA continued to harnesses technology in the delivery of efficient
and quality healthcare services. Clinical Management System
(CMS) Ill Phase 2 continued, while planning for 4" generation
of CMS was completed in the year, with implementation
expected to commence in 2018-19. To support clinical works,
the deployment of advanced digital imaging technology in
around 230 operating theatres was completed, and a number
of clinical mobile apps were developed and enhanced. Public
mobile apps including HA Touch, BookHA and TouchMed were
also optimised with new features to facilitate the public in using
public hospital services and accessing health information.
Development of the “Smart Hospital Project” has commenced,
including the Queue Management System and smart payment
kiosks, to enhance the experience of patients and staff in
hospital services through mobile devices and new technology.

As a technical agency in the development of the Electronic
Health Record Sharing System (eHRSS), HA continued to
support the implementation and on-going operation of the
first stage of eHRSS. Development work for second stage
has commenced in July 2017. Technical services were also
provided to support various initiatives of the Department of
Health including the Elderly Healthcare Voucher Scheme,
Vaccination Subsidy Schemes, Primary Care Directory
System, Communicable Disease Information System,
Laboratory Information System and Colorectal Cancer
Screening Programme System, and all systems have been
operating smoothly.
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Patients are encouraged to participate throughout the
process of care delivery as our key partners.Through the Patient
Empowerment Programme organised in collaboration with
non-governmental organisations, patients with chronic
disease received disease-specific knowledge and self-care
skills. The 5" batch of Patient Partnership in Action training
programme was conducted to train up patient leaders, with
the first theme-based training programme launched for
participants serving on HA committees. Patient Resource
Centres (PRCs) play an important role in patient empowerment.
A training framework was therefore developed with training
programmes introduced to staff of PRCs in order to enhance
volunteer service and patient group management. Patient
Experience Survey on Inpatient Service was conducted in
public hospitals to gauge patients’ feedback on HA services
and to identify areas for focused improvements.

With an aim to continuously maintain rapport and communicate
with the media and community stakeholders, a proactive
approach was adopted to keep them abreast of latest
developments in HA policies and services by means of media
activities; press releases; articles to various media platforms;
responses to media and community enquiries; meetings
with Legislative Councillors, community stakeholders, and
District Council; related engagement activities. Web-based
platforms and social media including corporate website,
HA Facebook page and YouTube Channel were also adopted
for information dissemination to the public.
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Strategic goal:
Optimise demand management

In response to recommendations by the Steering Committee on
the Review of HA, re-delineation of cluster boundary between
Kowloon Central Cluster and Kowloon West Cluster was
implemented with administrative arrangement completed on
1 December 2016 under a phased approach. Complete cut-over
for non-clinical support services took place on 1 April 2017.
Refining the cluster boundary will promote better balance in the
service demand among the three clusters in Kowloon, namely
Kowloon Central, Kowloon East and Kowloon West Cluster.

To cope with escalating service demand during the winter
surge period, around 23 000 additional service quotas of
general outpatient clinics were provided during the winter
surge period in 2017-18, among which around 5 000 service
quotas were added during Christmas, Chinese New Year
and Easter holidays. Appeals were also made to the public
for appropriate use of Accident and Emergency services.

We spared no effort to increase capacity of high demand
services and reduce patients’ waiting time. The Accident
and Emergency Support Session Programme continued in
17 Accident and Emergency Departments of HA to handle
Triage IV (semi-urgent) and Triage V (non-urgent) cases so
as to alleviate the work pressure of Accident and Emergency
Departments. Additional healthcare professionals were recruited
in New Territories East Cluster to build up the multi-disciplinary
team support for patients with common mental disorder in
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specialist outpatient clinic. To enhance Diabetes Mellitus (DM)
service in non-DM specialist outpatient clinic, risk assessment,
treatment intensification and empowerment were provided
by a multi-disciplinary team with nurses and allied health
professionals to patients with DM in specialist outpatient clinics
at New Territories West Cluster. Additional Optical Coherence
Tomography scans and visual field tests for glaucoma patients
were also performed.

Service enhancements for time-critical care are essential,
and early detection, assessment and management of patients
are critical to improve outcomes. 24-hour intravenous stroke
thrombolysis service was provided in Hong Kong East Cluster
and Kowloon East Cluster to enhance the quality of stroke
service. Patients can receive early treatment and proper
diagnosis, thus reducing disability. In the area of renal services,
the provision of haemodialysis service was expanded in
hospitals, while the Haemodialysis Public-Private Partnership
Programme continued.

The management of cancer patients was improved by providing
additional molecular tests for lung cancer, melanoma and
gastrointestinal stromal tumour to tie in with clinical indication
for targeted therapies under HA Drug Formulary. We also
strengthened the clinical management of patients diagnosed
with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) by providing
multi-disciplinary care for additional HIV new cases and offering
Highly Active Antiretroviral Therapy to eligible patients at
Queen Elizabeth Hospital and Princess Margaret Hospital.

Underpinning the enhancement of priority clinical services,
the capacity and accessibility of pharmacy service was
strengthened, including the provision of round-the-clock
pharmacy services in Pok Oi Hospital and Tseung Kwan O
Hospital. A pilot programme on drug refill services namely
“E-Fill” was launched in Prince of Wales Hospital and Tuen
Mun Hospital in January 2018. Under the programme, patients
will collect drugs in phases with a view to reducing the risks of
storing excess drugs at home, thereby enhancing medication
safety. Paediatric clinical pharmacy services commenced in
hospitals of which the clinical specialties will be relocated to
Hong Kong Children’s Hospital to reinforce the quality and
safety of medication use for paediatric patients. Ward-based
multi-disciplinary care was enhanced for paediatric patients in
public hospitals.

Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Programmes were expanded
to better cope with rising service pressure, including the Colon
Assessment PPP, extension of General Outpatient Clinic
PPP to 16 districts of Hong Kong as of March 2018, as well
as the Infirmary Services PPP Pilot Programme which was
implemented at Wong Chuk Hang Hospital.
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Strategic goal:
Attract and retain staff

A basket of measures were implemented to strengthen the
medical workforce and retain well-qualified staff. More than
510 doctors, 2 210 nurses and 570 allied health professionals
were recruited in the year. As at March 2018, there were
12 non-local doctors working as Service Residents in HA under
Limited Registration.

Through the centrally coordinated additional Associate
Consultant promotion mechanism, additional promotion
opportunities were provided to retain meritorious specialist
doctors. Annual progression exercise was continued to retain
Patient Care Assistants of inpatient services on 24 hours
shift in support of clinical services. Taking into account staff
feedback, and the need to boost staff morale, the HA Board
approved restoration of the annual increment mechanism for
eligible serving employees joining HA on or after 15 June 2002
and new recruits with effect from 1 April 2018.

Mobile solution was adopted to modernise staff communication.
Three new modules providing information on provident funds
“myP-fund/MPF”, staff directory “myColleagues” and feature
news “myNews” were introduced to the HR App, bringing
convenience and improved operational efficiency for staff.

We are mindful of staff's mental health. In 2017-18, suicide
intervention training for frontline managers and supervisors
was conducted to facilitate early identification and intervention
for staff with suicidal risk. Training course on mindfulness was
also provided to enhance psychological well-being of staff.
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Strategic goal:
Enhance staff training and development

Training of healthcare professionals improves staff competence
and enables continued development of healthcare services.
Territory-wide simulation training programmes were developed
for doctors and nurses in major specialties to enhance
professional capabilities. Simulation training programmes
were also conducted for newly qualified Registered Nurses
undergoing Preceptorship Programme, of which Advanced
Practice Nurses were recruited as part-time preceptors.
There were overseas training scholarships for doctors,
nurses and allied health staff, and training subsidies were
offered to healthcare professionals. Besides, some Enrolled
Nurses were fully sponsored to undertake the clinical
practicum of the conversion programme to attain qualification of
Registered Nurses.

Due to lack of local training for podiatrists and orthoptists,
overseas training scholarship was offered to six students
and one student to undertake a three-year degree course in
podiatry and orthoptics in the United Kingdom respectively.
Midwifery training programmes were provided to meet growing
demand for maternity services in public hospitals.

With $300 million Government designated training fund in
place, various training programmes were rolled out in 2017-18
for both clinical and non-clinical staff to address service
development, professional development and operational
needs. New generic competencies training series in support
of grade-specific training curriculums were offered to different
levels of professional staff.

To equip HA leaders with essential business knowledge, online
curriculum Healthcare Service Management Training, with all
modules and e-book fully developed, was launched in March
2018. Separately, training programmes on people skills, team
leadership and vocational skills were offered to supporting staff
to enhance their generic and technical competencies.
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Strategic goal:
Drive accountable and
efficient use of financial resources

The HKSAR Government continued strong commitment to
public healthcare services in Hong Kong to meet escalating
service demand arising from rapidly ageing population.
Government subvention remained the major source of funding
of HA, financing about 90% of HA's total operating expenditure.
In 2017-18, the recurrent funding to HA amounted to
$56 billion, representing an increase of $2.9 billion over the
preceding year. Apart from the Government subvention,
HA also utilised the Revenue Reserve (which primarily
comprised underspending from unfilled vacancies due to
manpower shortage in past years) as planned to implement
new initiatives and enhance existing services. With prudent
financial management together with the income arising from the
fees revision in June 2017, HA in 2017-18 utilised $0.8 billion
of its Revenue Reserve, which was lower than the amount of
$2.1 billion projected at the beginning of the financial year.

HA formulated the Annual Plan through annual planning
exercise. Priority was given to initiatives which aimed to improve
clinical effectiveness and aligned with the strategic directions
outlined in HA Strategic Plan, and those which helped address
pressure areas. In addition, HA took into account prevailing
constraints of service capacity growth (including finance,
manpower and hospital facilities situations) and the analysis
conducted under the Refined Population-based Model.
Resources were allocated to the clusters to support existing
services, enhancement measures and new initiatives.

The Chief Executive’s 2017 Policy Address announced a
new funding arrangement for HA under which the recurrent
subvention would be progressively increased on a triennium
basis, with respect to population growth and demographic
changes. This enables HA to address the service demands
arising from growing and ageing population in a more effective
and sustained manner. HA will continue to adopt a prudent
approach in financial management and planning to ensure
proper deployment of resources.
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Contributing to a green environment

HA has adopted green management practices over the years
and contributed to environmental conservation and
sustainability. Lighting retrofitting projects were launched in
a number of hospitals and institutions with installation of LED
luminaires and intelligent lighting controls. These energy
efficient projects not only improved lighting quality, but also
equipment durability. Efforts were continued to replace aged
air-cooled air-conditioning chillers with high efficacy oil-free
air-cooled chillers in its venues. Various energy conservation
measures have resulted in significant reduction of carbon
emission by HA.

In support of the HKSAR Government’s appeal to combat
climate change, a number of public hospitals and institutions
joined the Energy Saving Charter 2017 and pledged to adopt
energy saving measures in their premises. HA has also
formulated energy saving plans, targets and timeline through
concerted efforts of all clusters.

Participation of hospitals in various waste reduction and
recycling programmes continued. HA also strived to minimise
food waste disposal by promoting waste reduction at source,
adoption of environmentally friendly food waste decomposers
and low carbon menu.
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HONG KONG EAST CLUSTER (HKEC)
B SR E G (B SREkAE)

HKEC gives high priority to staff morale and retention especially during upsurge in
service demand in summer and winter in 2017-18. To relieve workload of frontline
staff, HKEC increased manpower through the HA Special Retired and Rehire
Scheme, Special Honorarium Scheme and recruitment of part-time staff.

Strengthening services in pressure areas and life-threatening diseases
continued to be an important focus of our work. RTSKH commenced
24-hour intra-venous thrombolysis service for acute ischaemic stroke
patients in February 2018 through collaboration between departments B
of Accident & Emergency and Medicine. PYNEH opened additional g -
acute Orthopaedics & Traumatology inpatient beds, and in March 2018  *
commenced centralised sterilisation service. Medication safety among _
staff in CCH was promoted through the “7 Dos” programme for drug '
administration.

HKEC embraces technology in optimising service quality. Introduced in TWEH for patients with neurological, spinal cord injury and
Parkinson’s Disease, the Robotic Assisted Gait Therapy won the Best Scientific-based Project Award in the Cluster Quality and Safety
Seminar 2017. The new Da Vinci Xi Surgical System, a high definition Robotic Surgical System, was also introduced in PYNEH.
Expected to commence service in September 2018, preparation work for HA's first Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy Centre in PYNEH
has been in active progress. PYNEH Laundry Department was awarded “HA Outstanding Team 2017” for its exemplary service and

innovative ideas in delivering business support services.
Tsan Yuk Hospital (TYH)

. BEER
Community engagement has always
been emphasised in HKEC in providing Tung Wah Hospital (TWH)
support to patients and their carers. REBR
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their infirmary journey through the The Duchess of Kent
« i Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay (DKCH) —
programme “Alongside”. ROBRELBRAREER \ - Tung Wah Eastern
1 Hospital (TWEH)
_ MacLehose Medical RERR
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HONG KONG WEST CLUSTER (HKWC)
A BRI (B SrEHA)

Over the years, HKWC has been fostering close partnership with Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong (HKU)
through the support of undergraduate and postgraduate medical and nursing education, training, research and development, as well as
innovation in healthcare technology and services. The commencement of QMH redevelopment project marks one big step towards enhanced
quality patient service and continual partnership with HKU. In 2017, Phase 1 Stage 1 of the project was in good progress, which involved
renovation of the former Senior Staff Quarters (renamed as Block T) to accommodate departments and facilities currently housed at the
Clinical Pathology Building, University Pathology Building and Housemen Quarters. In Stage 2 of the project, these three buildings will be
demolished to give way to a new block to accommodate key clinical services.

Several initiatives were implemented for continuous improvement. The Rheumatology Day Centre was relocated from QMH to GH with more
space as well as additional nursing and supporting staff. FYKH and MMRC provided geriatric support for elderly orthopaedic patients through
an ortho-geriatric collaborative care model. A nurse infertility clinic was set up at QMH to enhance existing In-vitro Fertilisation service.
The Inpatient Medication Order Entry system was rolled out at QMH to enhance medication safety. Shum Wan Laundry installed new and
automated laundry equipment to improve inflection control.

Measures were carried out to optimise demand management. These included
performing additional Ocular Coherence Tomography scans for glaucoma
patients, providing additional day chemotherapy quotas at QMH for cancer
patients, and providing additional molecular tests for lung cancer patients to tie
in with the clinical indications for targeted therapies under HA Drug Formulary.
More resources were given to GH and QMH lung transplant team to cater for
additional transplant cases.

HKWC values staff training and development.
Under the Preceptorship Scheme for junior
nurses, additional Advanced Practice Nurses
were recruited as part-time preceptors.
Additional training places were also provided
for formal resuscitation training for clinical
staff and formal first aid training for security
staff.

Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital (PYNEH)
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KOWLOON WEST CLUSTER (KWC)
nﬁgﬁ% BJ'E YH n\l_.l (TLF]EEHW nﬂ)

KWC made ongoing efforts to manage the acute demand for medical services. To ensure timely management on life-threatening diseases,
additional oncology beds were opened in PMH, as well as additional molecular tests were provided for lung cancer to tie in with clinical
indications for targeted therapies under the HA Drug Formulary. Cardiac care was enhanced with additional cardiac interventions performed
in PMH, and additional nurse trained for echocardiographic service in YCH.

To shorten patients’ waiting time, CMC opened five Operating Theatre (OT) sessions per week for elderly patients with acute fragility
fracture. PMH opened three OTs and six additional OT sessions per week, and conducted cross-cluster robotic-assisted surgeries. The
Family Medicine Specialist Clinic in KWC provided additional attendances to handle appropriate new cases. Additional Ocular Coherence
Tomography scans and visual field tests were provided for early detection of glaucoma progression.

PMH provided laboratory support for performing screening tests for the diagnosis of Inborn Errors of Metabolism among newborns in
PWH, QEH and QMH. Support to terminally ill patients was strengthened with additional Community Geriatric Assessment Team outreach
attendances. Nursing support for students with mental health needs was provided by KCH, through a school-based pilot programme in
collaboration with Education Bureau and Social Welfare Department.

To facilitate staff training and development, Advanced Practice Nurses were recruited as part-time preceptors to support junior nurses.

Trainings were also provided for clinical and security staff to receive

formal resuscitation and first aid training. e
Hospital (YCH)
w31

KWC has been developing its Clinical Services Plan
(CSP). The CSP would deliberate the future cluster
service models, possible redevelopment planning
and role delineation with distinct features among

KOWLOON CENTRAL CLUSTER (KCC)
NEEP BRI (NLREPEkAR)

A new KCC was set up with effect from 1 December 2016 after the re-delineation of cluster boundary between the old KCC and
Kowloon West Cluster (KWC). KWH, OLMH and WTSH together with the service units were regrouped from KWC to KCC to
support the new catchment areas of Wong Tai Sin and Mong Kok districts.

Increasing service capacity to relieve the access block situation, in particular during winter surge, is the priority of the new KCC.
Service capacities of BH, KH and OLMH were enhanced to facilitate the transfer of patients from acute hospitals. In QEH, a new
clinic for outpatient Parenteral Antimicrobial Therapy was set up to reduce the length of stay of inpatients. Cancer care was enhanced
by providing additional chemotherapy day beds and additional
specialist outpatient clinic attendances. Echocardiographic service
and fragility fracture service were strengthened. Cross-cluster
radiosynovectomy service was implemented for the management
of haemophilia arthropathy.

KCC also enhanced laboratory service by implementing
screening tests for newborns and developing a centralised
DNA New Generation Sequencing service model. KWH set up
a nurse infertility clinic to strengthen existing In-vitro Fertilisation
service. To support inpatient psychiatric services, a new psychiatric
ward in KH was under construction. Additional evening sessions

Hong Kong Buddhist were provided at the general outpatient clinic in OLMH.
Hospital (HKBH) i
EABHER f : Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

Wong Tai Sin Hospital (WTSH) To improve quality and safety, the aseptic dispensing

Kwai Chung RE=REALEER facility in HKEH will be refurbished. BTS adopted an
cluster hospitals that meet the health care needs of Ig-éospital (KCH) P Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital (OLMH) improved automated antibody screening tests on
local population in the short, medium and long run. AR \ I EFEK blood donation samples to ensure transfusion safety.

Princfess Margaret | T;‘ =, Kowloon Hospital (KH) Inpatient Medication Order Entry was rolled out in
pr,]tal (PMH) e R N L QEH to reinforce medication safety.
RERAER ) e Hong Kong Eye Hospital (HKEH)
- Caritas Medical — - SRR B
Centre (CMC) ' Rl i ” : - :
1 | Sd - With the gradual completion of projects under KCC,
T W = . i "\‘ . . . .
J r'_,Fw,,\ . d —Hong Kong Children’s including HKCH, HKBH refurbishment, expansion
Kwong Wah Hospital (KWH) - _;, Hospital (HKCH) of BTS headquarters, redevelopment of KWH and
‘North Lantau Hospital (NLTH) EEBR FRREER the planning work of the new acute hospital in Kai Tak
b RIR L BE B Development Area, KCC has been developing a master
Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Queen Elizabeth plan for service commissioning and development to meet
Transfusion Service (BTS) Hospital (QEH) the needs of medical services in the community in future.
BB+ FEH MR PO FRDAE (FE)

NEABABOESRIEED - UENEFEER - BRaYBRERE
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12 6 16 13 FOBERHRT - BEIBRUEN B0 BEIMERRETIRE

TR B efBEES (REATE) » #RENERRENE - KEEE
RENBEBEANZHFIRREBEZE - BRORFE_BRIE 88

AR ACERE - WA IEIE TR ORI ARR -

D= iRy o R — T ORIR M BERERARTS - Number of hospital beds BiEz#/c#k

BRE-EHEINNERBEER  BESRARNEBEBEDCHEEEREETE
i//\%BJDW$Xj(E’JWFﬁ  WIREEL RXEASEEEHEREHERRAR

7o EEMEEREEEEEEEEESREE AR EEEER BEES Total spemahst outpatlenﬁ (clinical) attendances
ﬂf‘)khf,it%)kﬂfﬁﬁ c FEBRRVMELTENTELHR  IEEIAT

SDREK - BERENEST [EREBABYES S  BAENRR - B4 General outpatient attendances
RIS T 2 5 BB ATGRE - DR o

Throughput R &
3132 3142 4707 5575 RERRANRIRRRE > AEBRASHBRILEESNFRFEAREEE
Patient discharges* ¥/ AZE * 189 327 217 170 297 075 355 283 HRE BBFMRER  BEAERTME=ZEFNEREEMR/ERE
o FAHTFER - 30 TE A B H AR AR E BB F AT o Hﬁ“ﬁlﬂﬁﬁ% BHERZ N
Total A&E attend S E AR 216 960 125 506 483 885 320 782
e et it SRUARS AR - IR EMERPIDIE - 1 BARIR AR KB
HRIPT (E ) BhS 8 AR 837 219 899 108 1345 950 1470 949 THERERRITAR  UAREENELRBANKEERRE -
- e 4"&‘&1 1t Miiiﬁ U\Ejﬁéli:tﬁf'&i rﬂtpﬁiﬁkﬁa ,F%Ha‘r\i%ﬂu?iﬁ%)k#
Full-time equivalent staff 8 249 8165 11 871 15 260 H/NERINE RIS AR - MR REIR AR BREE - REBRREHBERRK

BELCERSE  BRASHRFAZMNEMKSATEHBEN  NEBER FREBARHAE

HERANEBSE  HTUBRAANLET S AEREREFTENS

?E—:'f ﬁEﬁ? |‘ H Fi'f tﬁﬂ&ﬁ)\/)& bﬂgﬁ%‘;ﬁ ﬁ ’ j%ﬂﬁ”:;r A?E %‘Eﬁ’ |\/_\ %*fa‘/,ﬂﬂ # waonlg Wlah Hsspita(l,]Our L?}%)//V (g)l\/lar&/kn?ll Ho(s:pital alré:: Tung(VKVgg )Groap gf chspitazsl:\)Nong 'Ik;ai Szi81l-(lsostital, together with t?e service units in the cog(f;erned clorrf1munities, were re-deligealgd QHE{ \nxfiiti °

N A == rom Kowloon West Cluster to Kowloon Central Cluster with effect from 1 December . Reports on services / manpower statistics and financial information are continued to be

L/{EE' <<% %Q‘E%%H%») ﬁigi#@m Eﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ L,L&imjjngé, %Ir *u BEE based on the previous clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units under KWC) for the entire 2016-17 financial year (i.e. up to 31 March 2017), while reporting based on the new = . 5 s - . N
IS EER SR » SIELEINIB M o clustering arrangement starts from 1 April 2017. BinaE Tiz|Ba3 R - BRI E FEMEEREREN » XEPNE

¢ EBR N AEBEEEGREES - EBERARSEEALBE RS EORSER - BR2016512818 EAMANIHBREE o 2016-17 BEMHER DHE2017F A P s el
3B 31 B WA A F BT RSP NES - AR BERS N ARRS LR B EREE) B  ERBTH2017 548 | R ERRRFNEEReER . L LRRARRRZABREEROMERIIRRE KR

B —EHRETE Tz RE - 1S ISR E R E IR TR EL » XEAVR * Total inpatient and day inpatient discharges and deaths
LTRSS o SEME R - MEABEARESOMERK W OFRAREERARARRECAR
RERZABEZERSHKINER -
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NEW TERRITORIES WEST CLUSTER (NTWC)
T 5 79 28 Bre Bk e (i 57 P Bk AR

NTWC has been expanding its service capacity in recent years in order to cope with growing population in Tuen Mun and Yuen
Long districts.

Being the newest hospital in the Cluster, TSWH has launched various services in phases since its service commencement in early
2017. Apart from allied health services, the Accident and Emergency (A&E) Department of the hospital has extended service to 12
hours daily since March 2018 to serve residents with urgent medical needs. The pressure on emergency service at TMH and POH
was therefore substantially relieved.

Measures were put forward to strengthen clinical service capability and cater for the medical needs of the community in the year.
Additional new case attendances were provided at POH and TSWH to better manage the waiting list of specialist outpatient
services, while quotas were increased for general outpatient clinics in NTWC. The Inpatient Medication Order Entry system was
implemented at TMH to enhance medication safety. POH rolled out 24-hour pharmacy service to improve pharmacy support for
A&E service, and installed a Magnetic Resonance Imaging machine to strengthen the radiological imaging capacity and shorten
the waiting time for patients. Additional molecular tests for lung cancer were provided to tie in with clinical indications for targeted
therapies under the HA Drug Formulary.

MRABALFERENREE
LEeEHEPIFTRABMA QR -

The main construction works of the TMH
Operating Theatre Block Extension Project
commenced with funding approval by the
Legislative Council Finance Committee in
July 2017, which marked a new page of
development for the hospital. The extension
block is targeted to be completed in 2021,
providing more clinical space in TMH and
better quality of medical services.

R R F B RKE BN 2017 F4]
BARBEE - 2B RBERETRRE -
FR T $IG S IEERMBERIEN - KK
EERSEZERE R 2018 F 3 Fitt »
BIRISEEIERZESH 12/ - BBEE
BEESFENER  WE—LFEE
P MIEE SR SEENRE S -

FR - HRABRPERS HER
RABREERKRERES - LENE
AHEREER - BEERMRKEER D BIRHABIENFIDIERE
UECEEENPIDNRIZEE - IARBRANSENIDDESRTC
12h0 o HPIEEREIEST [(EBEMARMEL RS - URAZEYZE - BF
BEBTHETT 24 NSERERTS - AEHSEZNEEIZER - BRA KRS
PENES R ERFERANRIRER - BEERINE PO HLIRE
HIESH - R RIERARMBIERIND FAR - LIRS (BEREY
Bff) R LY VR RIE A o

MEEBUBESEN 2017 F7 ABBEMBERFINE SRR
IERTREN  REEBRRBFAN—E -HFWEABNEIREZEIRCZEER
FARTR 2021 F MK » AR ARIER EFIBRMNERRZR - - SRABERE -

Hospitals B3 KEC

NEERBEA

Number of general outpatient clinics

LBBPIL D AHEE ¢ " 8
Throughput R &
Number of hospital beds 2§z G R £ H 4 427 4771 2601
Patient discharges* tHftm AEH* 242 163 316 819 201 785
Total A&E attendances 2 EE 572 AKX 373 958 371923 296 026
Total specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances 1054 617 1226 218 882 609
ERIFIZ (FRIR) 2 AR
General outpatient attendances

Rt RN 859 190 983 997 973 772
TRMMIZRZ AR
Full-time equivalent staff 10 831 12 227 8095

SREZBASHE

* Total inpatient and day inpatient discharges and deaths
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NEW TERRITORIES EAST CLUSTER (NTEC)
T 57 5R 28 o Hdk 48 (Ffr 57 SR Hok 4)

Facing ever increasing service demand due to growing and ageing population, NTEC has been putting tremendous efforts over the years
in optimising demand management and improving service quality.

To improve service accessibility, a “FLU programme” was implemented at PWH to provide alternative treatment pathway to suitable
patients in Accident & Emergency Department (AED) with influenza symptoms to reduce admissions. NTEC also continued the bed
management enhancement programme, and PWH was awarded a Certificate of Recognition - Spirit in Nursing (Team Award) at the
Healthcare Spirit Awards 2017 which recognised its efforts in early bed arrangement.

During the period of service surge, a multitude of response measures were implemented to alleviate the admission problem, such as
continuation of the pilot programme “Geriatrics support at AED” and extended coverage of discharge lounge to surgical wards. These
measures successfully reduced the percentage of patients with access block of 12 hours or over to zero.

Another strategy adopted by NTEC to address escalating demand was to enhance service
capacity, including opening inpatient and day beds, establishing a new Endoscopy Centre
to provide additional fluoroscopic sessions, and increasing general outpatient clinics
quotas in Shatin and North Districts. PWH kicked off the preparatory works for Phase 2
Redevelopment Project in July 2017 for future expansion. Two gazetted psychiatric wards
were opened in TPH to alleviate congestion.

" | ®  NTEC won two awards in Asian Hospital Management Awards 2017, namely the Excellence

e st Award in Patient Safety Project in recognition of PWH'’s initiatives in enhancing care for
Ba ﬁﬂﬁﬁ*&ﬂﬁl cancer patients after chemotherapy and developing clinical guidelines to prioritise cancer
sl g I'__f wﬁ‘- 3 patients at high risk for timely treatment, and the Excellence Award in Nursing Excellence
commending the Central Nursing Division of NDH for its efforts in reinforcing “Tracing Back”
practice in handling patients’ tubings to raise staff awareness for enhanced patient safety.
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Shatin Hospital (SH) ————
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Prince of Wales Hospital (PWH)
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United Christian Hospital (UCH) —
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Haven of Hope Hospital (HHH)
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Cheshire Home, Shatin (SCH) B
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KOWLOON EAST CLUSTER (KEC)
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Space constraint has always been the primary
concern of KEC in coping with escalating service
demand. The HHH and UCH expansion projects
will elevate the overall service capacity of KEC. L]
Every effort is made in the interim for synergising F Sl
service throughputs and efficiency. In 2017-18, h%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ
KEC implemented an array of initiatives through ! _ . !.i!
intra-cluster collaboration to optimise demand g I s PRy "

management, including addition of acute and

rehabilitation beds, commencement of 24-hour pharmacy service in TKOH and provision of round-the-clock intra-venous thrombolysis
service for acute ischaemic stroke patients through cluster-based network. The Cluster also provided additional molecular tests for
lung cancer and performed additional visual field tests for glaucoma patients.

In buttressing service quality and patient safety, KEC concentrated the provision of sleep diagnostic service at two locations through
service reorganisation and established a breastfeeding support team. UCH recruited a nurse coordinator for fragility fracture
service. Additional Family Medicine Specialist Clinic attendances and allied health outpatient attendances were provided under a
collaborative Orthopaedics & Traumatology and Family Medicine service model. On infection control, KEC provided pre-surgery
chlorhexidine bathing for patients who were at risk of hospital-acquired multi-drug resistant organism infections in the medical, surgical
and orthopaedic wards. Additional Mycobacteria Growth Indicator Tube machines were installed to enhance laboratory testing for
diagnosis of Tuberculosis.

Quality of community-based services was also improved in various aspects. KEC launched a pilot programme on medical-social
collaboration with non-governmental organisations to support discharged elderly patients. Support for terminally ill patients living in
Residential Care Homes for the Elderly was also
strengthened by adding Community Geriatric
Assessment Team outreach attendances.
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KEC attaches importance to staff training and
development by recruiting additional Advanced
Practice Nurses as part-time preceptors and
rendering formal resuscitation training for
staff.

In pursuit of service excellence, the Cluster will
maintain close partnership and collaboration
with patients and community partners.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of the Hospital Authority

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of the Hospital Authority (“HA”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 114, which
comprise:

* the consolidated and HA balance sheets as at 31 March 2018;

* the consolidated statement of income and expenditure for the year
then ended;

* the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

* the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of changes in net assets for the year
then ended; and

* the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of principal accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of HA and the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of the Group’s consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code

of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of the Hospital Authority
(Continued)

Other Information

HA is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of HA and Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

HA is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as HA determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, HA is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless there are events or conditions that have caused
or may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of the Hospital Authority
(Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 10 of the Hospital Authority Ordinance and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by HA.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of the Hospital Authority
(Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of HA's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

MMQELQN(%MM

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 September 2018

8

0

&I ek 18

™)

B XA
HEBREERKE (8)

BB RF T RS B ®/EK
AENEE @)

s HBERKAKELLSHERNREEED
& o REBFIEMMETER  BERLFE
HEFHBERNABOERNNFEEME - fEmAlsE
BEHRHERENKALERNELERRE -
IRBMRBFEERTEEN - MIBEBEE
TR EPRBEAEIBFESMBRRT
EMEREREE - REAMMRETR - RIFfIE
ERRFEFRERR - RAINER2ERNZE
MR B LFTBUSEERT/RE A » KR=

A BRI E B B TR ELE -

s FEHFSUBMRNEBEIFHLIN - BBNA
B BREEE  URGEUBHRRESTER
BREZ Z RIS o

s HESEANERIEBINUBESERT
B EENERER  AEHGEEMBRKRE
®ER - RMAREEEETNIM - BEEM
AT - HAAETERAREREEE -

BREMEEI - RAREEEEB T EMERT
#E - BRI EAENERS - BREMES
TR BRI R BB Il Y (R EAERER -

preer) :Q...(.,L,..,@,

BORUKES SR
HESRTHED

BB 22— )\FNLA=FH

ALK T AT E BT B IRK T RE T
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements & % B(Efsf & RS ESWMIEREK 55



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REBEERER

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017

Note HK$°000 HK$°000
B &E 20183 A 31 H 2017 %3 A 31 H
BT T BT
Non-Current Assets JEREIE E
Property, plant and equipment 3 - #28 &3% 5 5,829,736 5,565,993
Intangible assets 24 & 6 278,952 250,587
Loans receivable fEU &R 7 1,012 1,836
Placements with the Exchange Fund JMNEXE £ 775k 8 23,300,000 23,300,000
Fixed income instruments [&T A E T H 9 - 250,000
29,409,700 29,368,416
Current Assets RBIEE
Inventories 7 & 10 1,343,215 1,296,482
Loans receivable & &R 7 715 827
Accounts receivable J& U&7k 11 279,622 326,238
Other receivables EH i fEUER K 12 354,992 522,281
Deposits and prepayments %4 K J8 4 518 13 294,153 323,605
Placements with the Exchange Fund 9ME £ £ 1758 8 3,202,332 2,367,339
Fixed income instruments EFE A S LR 9 849,655 1,890,000
Cash and bank balances 8 & M $R1 74554 14 16,750,479 17,326,021
23,075,163 24,052,793
Current Liabilities R E) & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #355ap & & 458 15 1,456,207 1,221,289
Creditors and accrued charges &E#E A K &1 & A 16 10,859,391 10,715,778
Deposits received & WiZ% 17 345,233 295,457
12,660,831 12,232,524
Net Current Assets RE)EEFE 10,414,332 11,820,269
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities A& E R REARE 39,824,032 41,188,685
Non-Current Liabilities JE R B & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund {35 7|20 E & 4564 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities St.T= R BEEF F (T 18 257,976 253,418
Deferred income #EIEYES 19 10,941,620 11,782,280
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund ‘AfL & 7 ERE ARE S 20 10,000,000 10,000,000
27,199,596 28,035,698
Net Assets EEFE 12,624,436 13,152,987
Capital subventions and capital donations E 4B & & A5 21 6,108,687 5,816,580
Designated fund {5 EE & 22 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA & 1,438,380 2,259,038
Total Funds E £ 4% 12,624,436 13,152,987

v e —

Dr Kam Pok Man, BBS H{#X{#+ Dr Leung Pak Yin, JP 5B &4
Chairman Chief Executive

Finance Committee 1TBUREL

MBEEEEE

The notes on pages 62 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated %62 £ 114 BTN RE M mRa)—269 °
financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
EERRE/R

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E 2018 £3 A 31 H 2017 %3 A 31 H
BEET T BT
Non-Current Assets JEREIE E
Property, plant and equipment )3 - #28 K& & 5 5,829,736 5,565,993
Intangible assets & &E 6 278,952 250,587
Loans receivable fEW &R 7 1,012 1,836
Placements with the Exchange Fund JMNEE 477K 8 23,300,000 23,300,000
Fixed income instruments [&T AE T HE 9 - 250,000
29,409,700 29,368,416
Current Assets KB EE
Inventories 7 & 10 1,343,215 1,296,482
Loans receivable fEMW &R 7 715 827
Accounts receivable J& U 11 279,622 326,238
Other receivables H f fE Y BR K 12 354,992 522,281
Deposits and prepayments %4 K 78~ 518 13 294,041 323,522
Placements with the Exchange Fund 91 E 4 1758 8 3,202,332 2,367,339
Fixed income instruments ETE A S LA 9 849,655 1,890,000
Cash and bank balances I8 & M IR1 74554 14 16,750,479 17,326,021
23,075,051 24,052,710
Current Liabilities RE)& &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #3357 s E & 4544 15 1,456,207 1,221,289
Creditors and accrued charges &E#E A KX fEf+ & A 16 10,859,285 10,715,701
Deposits received & Wiz 17 345,233 295,457
12,660,725 12,232,447
Net Current Assets TR E) & EFE 10,414,326 11,820,263
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities A& E R REARE 39,824,026 41,188,679
Non-Current Liabilities 3k RE & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund {35 75|20 & & 4564 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities SL.T= X BEEF F (T 18 257,976 253,418
Deferred income #EIEY S 19 10,941,620 11,782,280
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund ‘AfL ‘& 7 (B RE S 20 10,000,000 10,000,000
27,199,596 28,035,698
Net Assets EEFE 12,624,430 13,152,981
Capital subventions and capital donations E @B & & A5 21 6,108,687 5,816,580
Designated fund BEEES 22 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA & 1,438,374 2,259,032
Total Funds E £ 4% 12,624,430 13,152,981

v e —

Dr Kam Pok Man, BBS H{#X{#+ Dr Leung Pak Yin, JP B4

Chairman Chief Executive
Finance Committee TTEABE,
W EESER

The notes on pages 62 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated % 62 & 114 B RARGE M BHRERN —35 °

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
mEWRXEER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
M &E HE2018 & HZE 2017 F
3A31ALEE 3A 31 BIEFE
BT T T IT
Income A
Recurrent Government subvention A% &4 B i 47 Bf) 55,441,085 52,368,730
Hospital/clinic fees and charges 203 / & AT E 23 4,287,196 3,817,718
Donations 354 1 40
Transfers from & 38&:
Designated donation fund 5 E B8l & & 19 92,618 171,110
Minor Works Projects Fund /N T1218 B & 19 1,202,525 1,103,964
Public-Private Partnership Fund R FL& 7 {EE 4 19 228,780 181,712
Capital subventions & 254 Bf) 21 930,094 814,305
Capital donations & ZN 185 21 138,338 161,806
Investment income 1% & Yz 243,980 208,867
Other income {425 773,821 726,912
63,338,448 59,555,164
Expenditure X
Staff costs & T4 24 (45,112,678) (43,083,902)
Drugs Z%) (6,663,619) (6,156,112)
Medical supplies and equipment E&& %0 M 3% 45 (2,970,164) (2,761,889)
Utilities charges 2 RS2 (1,183,468) (1,180,882)
Repairs and maintenance # & & (R & (2,209,755) (1,989,457)
glgg%vg;;%ﬁjc\)g;séu%dgd by the Government (1,202,525) (1,103,964)
Operating lease expenses & B & (100,941) (86,194)
Depreciation and amortisation 172 % &k 44 5& K 6 (1,042,858) (964,804)
Other operating expenses E i & & k7 25 (3,693,465) (3,746,519)
(64,179,473) (61,073,723)
Deficit for the year £ N E#E (841,025) (1,518,559)

The notes on pages 62 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated %62 E 114 BN A VSRR —ZH ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEZHEBER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M &E HZE 2018 F B ZE 2017 F
SA3ALEE 3A3ALEFE
BT T BETT
Deficit for the year £ A &2 (841,025) (1,518,559)
Other comprehensive income HEfth 2 HE Uk 2
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income or
expenditure:
HigngasmoBARARIZ HMIER :
- Additions to capital subventions and capital donations 21 1,358,718 1,453,623
BAFHB) M E ARG N
- Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 21 1,821 22,158
EHE/ETREERES
- Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure 21 (1,068,432) (976,111)
ERAGe B EER
Item that may not be reclassified to income or expenditure:
RNBERHERBASZHNIER :
- Remeasurement of death liability 18 20,367 20,192
RTRRAMEEENE
Total comprehensive income for the year (528,551) (998,697)
FRZEKERE

The notes on pages 62 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated %62 2 114 BN ERNGRE B mKRa—269 °
financial statements.
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60

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTREBEE

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i HE2018 & HZE 2017 F
SAALEE 3A3BLEE

BT T T IT

Net cash used in operating activities 28 (2,159,299) (2,659,321)

EEEHMAE S ER

Investing activities 18458
Investment income received B 41% & Yz 255,328 205,151
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B (1,209,868) (1,349,462)
BEWE  WENRE
Purchases of intangible assets ¥& & £ I/ & & 6 (150,672) (126,319)
Net decrease in bank deposits with original maturity 4,779,328 2,551,052

over three months
R B HA B B iR = 18 A UER1TIF sk A FER A
Decrease / (increase) in fixed income instruments 1,290,345 (50,000)
EEAETERD / ()

Net cash generated from investing activities 1% & /& B FT1537 & /548 4,964,461 1,230,422

Net cash inflow / (outflow) before financing activities 2,805,162 (1,428,899)

BMERZIBEFERA / ()

Financing activities BY&5Z8)
Interest earned for Minor Works Projects Fund 36,576 56,159
NEUT A28 B B8 &R S
Interest earned for Public-Private Partnership Fund 3,330 14,493
RILEBIEESPIEN S
Capital subventions 21 1,213,430 1,265,842
B
Capital donations 21 145,288 187,781
BB

Net cash generated from financing activities 1,398,624 1,524,275

MEEBAG RS FRE

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,203,786 95,376

ReRREFME2EM

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,053,701 1,958,325

FYIzHRekReEE

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14 6,257,487 2,053,701

FRZBeRASEE

Note: 5

The interest on the placements with the Exchange Fund on behalf of the
Samaritan Fund was netted off with the outstanding balance with the
Samaritan Fund and the detailed arrangement is disclosed in note 15.

The notes on pages 62 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated %62 £ 114 BN EIA

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
REFEESB®RE

Capital
subventions
and capital
donations
[Note 21]
HK$’000 Designated Revenue
BB Fund Reserve Total
& 7 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
[ BeE21 ] EEES L ONE st
BT T BT BT T BT T
At 1 April 2016 A= —/"FWMF—H 5,316,910 5,077,369 3,757,405 14,151,684
Total comprehensive income for the year 499,670 - (1,498,367) (998,697)
FAZHENELEFE
At 31 March 2017 A=Z—+F=A=+—H 5,816,580 5,077,369 2,259,038 13,152,987
Total comprehensive income for the year 292,107 - (820,658) (528,551)
FAREW AR
At 31 March 2018 A =Z— \F=A=+—H 6,108,687 5,077,369 1,438,380 12,624,436

The notes on pages 62 to 114 are an integral part of these consolidated %62 2 114 BT 4RE BRI —2B9 °
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(a)

The Hospital Authority

Background

The Hospital Authority (“HA”) and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group” in the consolidated financial statements.
HA is a statutory body established in Hong Kong on 1 December
1990 under the Hospital Authority Ordinance (Cap.113). The Hospital
Authority Ordinance provides HA with the powers to manage and
control the delivery of public hospital services in Hong Kong. Under
the Hospital Authority Ordinance, HA is responsible amongst other
matters for the following:

® advising the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) of the needs of the public for hospital
services and of the resources required to meet those needs;

®* managing and developing the public hospital system;

* recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health appropriate
policies on fees for the use of hospital services by the public;

® establishing public hospitals; and

® promoting, assisting and taking part in education and training of
persons involved or to be involved in hospital services or other
services relevant to the health of the public, and research relating
to hospital services.

Pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Hospital Authority Ordinance, an
agreement was entered into between the Government and HA on
3 June 2011 (“Agreement”), under which the Government and HA
agreed that HA shall be responsible for managing and controlling the
government lands (including all new properties built on government
lands) and the hospitals, clinics, facilities, buildings and premises
established thereon (as set out in Annex A of the Agreement and
referred to as “Properties”), as well as the facilities and amenities
(as set out in Annex B of the Agreement) that may be provided on
the Properties. The ownership of the Properties continues to be held
by the Government.

HA has also entered into agreements with the individual governing
bodies of the ex-subvented hospitals which allowed HA to assume
ownership of some operating assets as at 1 December 1991 and to
manage and control other assets, the ownership of which remains
with the individual governing bodies.

As a result, HA has assumed responsibility for the management
of the public hospital operations since 1 December 1991. Also, all
operating and capital commitments outstanding as at 1 December
1991 were assumed by HA, except for the capital works projects
funded under the Capital Works Reserve Fund of the Government.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(a)

The Hospital Authority (Continued)

Background (Continued)

The Government announced in the 2016 Policy Address that
HK$200 billion would be used to implement a ten-year Hospital
Development Plan (HDP). Given the significant number and scale
of Schedule 1 hospital projects in the HDP, the Government has
entrusted HA to carry out and complete a number of Schedule 1
hospital works projects which are funded by the Government.
Similarly, HA is undertaking the hospital works projects for Schedule
2 hospitals which are funded by the Government and the governing
bodies of the ex-subvented hospitals. As at 31 March 2018, there
were nine hospital works projects in progress (of which eight
projects were managed by HA), and the total funding approved by
the Government was HK$12,528,900,000.

As part of the Government's healthcare reform plan, HA has taken
over the management and operation of all general outpatient clinics
(“GOPCs”) from the Department of Health by July 2003. Under
the arrangement, the title and ownership in respect of the related
operating assets of the GOPCs were retrospectively transferred to
HAin July 2003 after receiving formal approval from the Government
in June 2006. These assets were transferred at nil value.

In order to promote the development and research of Chinese
medicine in Hong Kong, HA’s subsidiary, HACM Limited entered
into agreements with 10 non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”)
in collaboration with certain universities in Hong Kong to operate 18
Chinese Medicine Centres for Training and Research (“CMCTRs”).
Under the agreements with the NGOs, HACM Limited has provided
an annual subvention to the NGOs for operating CMCTRs in
Hong Kong. These NGO clinics have provided Chinese medicine
outpatient services including the prescription of Chinese herbal
medicine and related services. HACM Limited has also provided
funding to six tripartite CMCTRs for provision of Chinese medicine
services to HA patients under the Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine (“ICWM”) Pilot Programme which have been implemented
at seven hospitals for three disease areas.

In order to support the Government-led electronic health record
(“eHR”) programme, which is an essential part of the healthcare
reform, HA has been engaged to serve as the technical agency
to the Government, leveraging its experience and know-how in
the Clinical Management System (‘CMS”). With this role, HA
undertakes multiple streams of eHR related projects, which are
funded by the recurrent subvention and other designated funding
from the Government. During the financial year ended 31 March
2018, HA recognised HK$292,464,000 (2017: HK$279,790,000) as
other income to match with the expenditure incurred in relation to
the eHR related projects.

On 19 October 2011, HA set up a subsidiary, eHR HK Limited, to act
as a custodian to hold, maintain and license the intellectual property
rights and assets related to the eHR programme.

Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements & % B(Efsf 4 RS ESWHMIEREK 63

B S ER AR M

(a)

EREER®)

S5 (&)

RFFTE 2016 FEEREF S MER BE =
TRITHET T+ FERERTE - AR E
RO K 1 BRIBEL AHE - RIE
AN BNERTEBERITRENZEREK
IR 3% 1 B T2 - Rk -
B 758 E 1T R BT & B B) B b & A i
BRRHELCBNH R 2BHRIRER - #2
T N\F=ZA=F+—8 hEZRIREE
BT (ER N\ EREERER)  BA
HEH R AR B R A8 8 12,528,900,000 JT ©

ES
=

B S

ERBFNERENETEN &2 BER
H_TE = AERERLEEME LR
M2 2 - RIBELH  ELEBEBMIZZ
FriiREBEEECXEREREH _TF
“FtARERETEER  BUFMEALE
R-ZFTRFERNARL  AHEENEEE
BEE o

RIEEBTEPEEERLMN  BERR
HBgE [ BREERhEEERBRA
Al B EERE R - mEE L&
RESEFM T \Hh BRI H O - 1R
EREREERN RS BREERTEEE
RAERARSFRH-FEY T ELTHEE
BEREMM N EETBEABM L - 5
w2 maiRtth B2 RY  BfaET T 8
NABRAMRTS - QS Bt =R EHETT
HEERIEIRR £ ERTE - BiEERTE
HRAGR A BRI/ H T B ERR B O5R
HER B2INEEFENEERRBARHE
& BEARAS o

BEETHNETRERELSE LB RA A
B REENE EEZHH - BER
BEBREZEEARINRERE  BEREE
BMAEEZGHERMEENE - HE)
BRAT HE1T AT E) o VB A& BRAT B 40 X 28 A
B BERAETIREENE THERL
BEBERABOTS - EETEAK
AT 0488 1 8 Bh & H fib 45 TE B IR (1
g BE_T—-N\F=-ZA=+—8Hitz8
BFE - BE RBERBE 292,464,000 7T
(ZZT—+% : 5% 279,790,000 7T) HIFKIE
EABEMBA » AN EFRELSERR
SRR EINFAY

RZZE—F+ATNA  BEBKLZeHR
HK Limited{E&EKTB#RE - ILEEERR
BN BE REMSTEBRE T RELHE
BEBRRFTEINAMBERREE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1. The Hospital Authority (Continued)

(b) Hospitals and other institutions

At 31 March 2018, HA had under its management and control the

following hospitals, charitable trusts and institutions:

Hospitals:

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
Bradbury Hospice

Caritas Medical Centre

Castle Peak Hospital

Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
Cheshire Home, Shatin

The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay
Grantham Hospital

Haven of Hope Hospital

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

Hong Kong Children’s Hospital

Hong Kong Eye Hospital

Kowloon Hospital

Kwai Chung Hospital

Kwong Wah Hospital

MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre
North District Hospital

North Lantau Hospital

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
Pok Oi Hospital

Prince of Wales Hospital

Princess Margaret Hospital

Queen Elizabeth Hospital

Queen Mary Hospital

Ruttonjee Hospital

Shatin Hospital

Siu Lam Hospital

St. John Hospital

Tai Po Hospital

Tang Shiu Kin Hospital

Tin Shui Wai Hospital

Tsan Yuk Hospital

Tseung Kwan O Hospital

Tuen Mun Hospital

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
Tung Wah Hospital

United Christian Hospital

Wong Chuk Hang Hospital

Yan Chai Hospital
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(b)

(c)

(a)

The Hospital Authority (Continued)

Hospitals and other institutions (Continued)

Charitable Trusts:

North District Hospital Charitable Foundation

Prince of Wales Hospital Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority New Territories West Cluster Hospitals
Charitable Trust

The Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Charitable Trust

The Princess Margaret Hospital Charitable Trust

The Queen Elizabeth Hospital Charitable Trust

Other Institutions:

eHR HK Limited

HACM Limited

Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
Specialist outpatient clinics

General outpatient clinics

Other clinics and associated units

Principal Office

The address of the principal office of HA is Hospital Authority
Building, 147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
as appropriate to Government subvented and not-for-profit
organisations. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets
which are stated at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis as HA's ability to continue as a going concern relies primarily
on Government funding.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying HA's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A 7S ER AR MY

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. FEFSFTHEX ®)

(b) Basis of consolidation (b) HEERIZEE
The financial statements of the Group include the income and SEMBBHREEEEE_S—\F=A
expenditure of the Head Office, subsidiaries, all Hospitals, Charitable =T+ —AZHMBREFENHEEEREENE
Trusts, Specialist Outpatient Clinics, General Outpatient Clinics and MER - MBHEE ARk  BSHETE
other institutions under its management and control made up to © - BRI - TBRM22 MRk R
31 March 2018. BV AR H o
The financial statements reflect the recorded book values of those KRB IER RSB SR 2 B E R FTRE
assets owned and the liabilities assumed by the Group. 2 BENALEIREE -

(c) Subsidiaries (c) PMiSHsE
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The MEREESREEEEEEENMEER - &
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights SEEERESHEREEMREXEZRE
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the BEr# e ma R ETR - WaEAERE
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities BENESEBNSEEMy2%E0R - AR
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date that REBHBERE HEBEEEWBHE 2
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from H WEREEEENTBEERSERE 2
the date that control ceases. P - BEEEHMBEHENEERESL  ED

BEEE 2T
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on SEAREZRNR S  BHRERER IR
transactions within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation. W EiRE 2EERR - RBBRZE
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction BINE R - RIER SR EFAMERH
provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. The BEAHE - WERENSFTBORESEEK
accounting policies of the subsidiaries are consistent with the AR BR— -
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
At 31 March 2018, the principal subsidiaries of HA comprise: EF-ZT—N\F=A=+—H BERMNEE
M E#ES
Effective percentage
Place of directly held by the
incorporation/ Group

Name Principal activities operation EEEEEENEX

=t ETEEK MR /& E i B %758

HACM Limited To steer the development and delivery Hong Kong 100

(limited by guarantee) of Chinese medicine services B

ERTERTEEERERAR MAEIFBERGHEREEHEE

(BRABERRA)

eHR HK Limited To act as a custodian to hold, maintain Hong Kong 100

(limited by guarantee) and license the intellectual property BB

(ERERAR])

rights and assets related to eHR
programme

ERREA 18 - RE ST
B iR B 3B R Aeat BB AR E
EREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2,

(d)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs,
including interpretations, amendments or improvements to the
existing standards, which become effective in the current period.
The following amendments to standards which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning 1 April 2017 are relevant to the
Group:

Amendments to HKAS 7, Disclosure Initiative

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on the results
and financial position of the Group.

The HKICPA has also issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs
which are effective for accounting period beginning on or after
1 April 2018. The Group has not early adopted these new/revised
HKFRSs in the financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2018. The following assessment have been carried out.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement’, and addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities using a
new expected credit loss model that replaces the incurred loss
impairment model used under HKAS 39. A substantially reformed
approach to hedge accounting is introduced.

Management has preliminarily assessed its impact to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and considers the adoption
of HKFRS 9 will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for the
recognition of revenue. It replaces HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts and HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services for revenue recognition. The core principle
in the framework is that revenue is recognised over time if the
performance obligation is satisfied over time. That is, the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided.
HKFRS 15 also introduces new disclosure requirements on
revenue, provides guidance for transactions that were not previously
addressed comprehensively and improves guidance for multiple-
element arrangements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Management has preliminarily assessed its impact to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and considers the adoption
of HKFRS 15 will not have a significant impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. Under HKFRS 16, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised in

the consolidated balance sheet.

Management has assessed all lease contracts as well as contracts
which do not satisfy the lease definition under the new standard.
Except for operating leases that will expire within 12 months or less
from 1 April 2019, the operating lease commitments as disclosed in
note 32(b) will result in the recognition of an asset and a liability for
future payments according to the new standard. Management is in
the process of assessing the impact of these lease contracts on the

Group’s results and classification of cash flows.

(e) Recognition of income

Subventions for recurrent expenditure are recognised on an accruals
basis, except for those subventions for designated programmes or
capital items that are recognised when the related expenditure is

incurred as set out in note 2(q).

Hospital/clinic fees and charges are recognised when services are

provided.

Transfers from the designated donation fund and capital donations

are recognised as set out in note 2(f).

Transfers from the capital subventions, Minor Works Projects Fund

and PPP Fund are recognised as set out in note 2(q).

Investment income from fixed income instruments is recognised as

set out in note 2(j).

Investment income from bank deposits is recognised on a time

proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(f) Donations

(i) Donated assets

Furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles and intangible
assets donated to the Group are capitalised initially at fair value
on receipt of assets according to the policy set out in notes 2(g)(ii)
and 2(h) respectively. The amount of the donated assets is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in total funds under capital donations. Each year, an amount equal
to the depreciation or amortisation charge for these assets and
the net book value of assets disposed of is transferred from
capital donations to the statement of income and expenditure.
Other donated assets not fulfilling the capitalisation policy are
recorded as expenditure and income in the year of receipt of
the assets.

(i) Cash donations

Cash donations for specific use as prescribed by the donor
are accounted for in the designated donation fund. When
the fund is utilised and spent for expenditure not meeting the
capitalisation policy as set out in note 2(g)(ii) or note 2(h), they
are accounted for as expenditure of the designated donation
fund. Cash donations that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in notes 2(g)(ii) and
2(h) respectively are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in total funds under capital donations, and
the corresponding amounts are capitalised as property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets respectively. Each year, an
amount equal to the depreciation or amortisation charge for
these assets and the net book value of assets disposed of is
transferred from capital donations to the statement of income
and expenditure.

Non-designated donations for general operating purposes
are recorded as donations in the statement of income and
expenditure upon receipt of cash.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A 7S ER AR MY

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. FEEFTEHE®
(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) Y% - BMERRE

(i) Completed building projects transferred from Government and (i) BB R AR 51 AT 47 B B8 B B VA i i 88 1
the individual governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals are HEEREETIRAEREBAR 3|
recorded at nominal value and included in property, plant and R - HES R -
equipment.

(i) Property, plant and equipment other than completed building (i) BRESEREETIZIN - AR E e
projects which give rise to economic benefits are capitalised KD - R R BEER L - el
and the corresponding amounts are recognised under capital -2 BUR 1 R Sk 18 R 18 K T A FE SRR
subventions and capital donations for capital expenditure DRITEB AR R ERIBIEHER
funded by the Government and donations respectively.

(iii) Property, plant and equipment other than completed building (ii) BRESTREETIZIN - W% - HR KR
projects are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation EIRKA BRI RETERREBEA
and impairment. Additions represent new or replacement of BR o FREMRKREIBBEEMINSKER
specific components of an asset. An asset’s carrying value A - BEEMREEESAEET
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if WEEE @ EREEESRRE AT
the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated WEEE -
recoverable amount.

(iv) The cost of assets acquired and the fair value of donated assets (iv) EBEFTESHEERMK NSRBI EER
received by the Group are depreciated using the straight-line AAEE  BREEMTERIFEHATH
method over the expected useful lives of the assets as follows: NEAETEITENT ¢
Leasehold improvements Over the life of the lease to which the improvement relates
HEMEEE BIRHE 2 F 5
Buildings 20 - 50 years
2y
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years F

RE - BERENRE

Motor vehicles 5 -7 years F
TE

Computer equipment 3 -6 years F
TR

(v) The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

(vi) The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement
of income and expenditure.

(vii) Capital expenditure in progress is not depreciated until the
asset is placed into commission.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2,

(h)

U]

1)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Computer software and systems including related development
costs, which give rise to economic benefits are capitalised as
intangible assets. Intangible assets are stated at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and impairment and are amortised on a
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of one to three
years.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

HA has designated the placements with the Exchange Fund as
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. HA determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, and
such classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed to the statement of income and expenditure.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows have expired or have been transferred and HA has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value.

Fixed income instruments

Fixed income instruments are classified as held-to-maturity
investments on the basis that the Group has the positive intention
and ability to hold the investments to maturity.

Fixed income instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis
and stated at amortised cost, less any impairment loss recognised
to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of any
discount or premium on the acquisition of fixed income instruments
is aggregated with other investment income receivable over the
term of the instrument using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that fixed
income instruments are impaired at each reporting date. The amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the fixed income instruments and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the fixed income instruments
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement
of income and expenditure.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2.

(k)

U]

(m)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise drugs, other medical and general
consumable stores, are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Where applicable, provision is made for obsolete and slow-
moving items. Inventories are stated net of such provision in the
balance sheet. Net realisable value is determined with reference to
the replacement cost.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
accounts receivable is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will default or delinquency
in payments are considered as indicators that the receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the
carrying amount of the accounts receivable and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the accounts receivable is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised as an expense in the statement of income
and expenditure. Decrease in the previously recognised impairment
loss shall be reversed by adjusting the allowance account. When
an accounts receivable is uncollectible and eventually written
off, the respective uncollectible amount is offset against the
allowance account for accounts receivable. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the current
year’s expenses in the statement of income and expenditure.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, and bank deposits with original maturity within three months.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2,

(n)

(o)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. A contingent liability is a possible
obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

~

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as expenses as they fall due. Payments
made to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are dealt with
as payments to defined contribution plans where the Group’s
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising
in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. The retirement
benefit costs charged in the statement of income and
expenditure represent the contributions payable in respect of
the current year to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefit plan and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

Termination benefits costs

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s
employment is terminated before the normal retirement age
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits costs when there is an obligation to make such
payments without possibility of withdrawal.

Death and disability benefits costs

The cost of the Group’s obligations in respect of death and
disability benefits provided to employees is recognised as
staff costs in the statement of income and expenditure with
reference to annual actuarial valuations performed by an
independent qualified actuary.

The death benefits for eligible employees are accounted for as
post employment defined benefits. Remeasurement of death
liability arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income.

The disability benefits are accounted for as other long-term
employee benefits. Remeasurement of disability liability
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Further details of the death and disability liabilities are set out
in note 18.

Other employee benefits costs

Other employee benefits such as annual leave and contract
gratuity are accounted for as they accrue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2,

(q)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Government subvention

Subvention grants approved for the year other than the following
are classified as recurrent subvention income.

(@)

Government funding for building projects, together with
contributions from the individual governing bodies of ex-
subvented hospitals, are received by HA for undertaking the
capital works on their behalf. Accordingly, the amount incurred
on building projects and the funding received are reflected as
changes in current assets/current liabilities. Any outstanding
reimbursement of project costs incurred by HA is recognised
as current assets, while advance funding received by HA for
meeting the project costs in future periods are recognised as
current liabilities. Further details are set out in notes 12 and 16.

Previously, Government funding for building projects and
related costs were presented in the statement of income
and expenditure as income and expenditure. To better reflect
HA's agency role for undertaking the building works projects
on behalf of the Government, the comparative figures in the
statement of income and expenditure have been reclassified by
reducing both income and expenditure by HK$1,259,367,000.

(i) The one-off grant received from the Government for minor

(i) The Government

works projects (under Subhead 8083MM) together with the
related investment income are recognised as deferred income —
Minor Works Projects Fund. Each year, the amount spent on the
minor works projects is transferred from deferred income to the
statement of income and expenditure or other comprehensive
income as appropriate. Further details of the deferred income —
Minor Works Projects Fund are set out in note 19(a).

allocated HK$10,000,000,000 to HA
to establish an endowment fund for PPP initiatives. The
investment returns of the PPP Endowment Fund, together with
the remaining balance of the one-off designated funding for
HA's PPP programmes as at 31 March 2016 are recognised as
deferred income — PPP Fund. Each year, the amount spent on
the PPP programmes is transferred from deferred income to the
statement of income and expenditure or other comprehensive
income as appropriate. Further details of the PPP Fund are set
out in note 19(b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2.

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Government subvention (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(iv) Government subventions that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in notes 2(g)(ii) and
2(h) respectively are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in total funds under capital subventions, and
the corresponding amounts are capitalised as property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets respectively. Each year,
an amount equal to the depreciation or amortisation charge
for these assets and net book value of assets disposed of is
transferred from capital subventions to the statement of income
and expenditure.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as expenses
in the statement of income and expenditure on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates (‘the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the
reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the
statement of income and expenditure except for Minor Works
Projects Fund, which are recognised as deferred income.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa. Related parties also include
key management personnel having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

For the purpose of these financial statements, transactions between
the Group and Government departments, agencies or Government
controlled entities, other than those transactions that arise in the
normal dealings between the Government and the Group, are
considered to be related party transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

3.

(a)

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities of providing healthcare services to patients,
the administration of drugs, the employment of a large workforce
and the investment activities are primary areas of financial risks
being mitigated by the Group’s financial risk management process.
The Group’s underlying principles of financial risk management
are to transfer the cost of financial risks of significant level through
insurance with a diversity of insurers, to self insure for the operational
risks and to comply with regulatory insurance requirements as an
employer and owner of a motor fleet.

With regard to investments, in accordance with the Group’s
policies and guidelines, the primary objectives are to meet liquidity
requirements, to protect capital and to provide a reasonable return.
The investment portfolio (“Portfolio”) as at 31 March 2018 consisted
of bank deposits, fixed income instruments and placements with the
Exchange Fund. Based on the risk control measures as summarised
below, the risk of default by the counterparties is considered
minimal and the Portfolio has no significant concentration of credit
risk. Besides, the Group has no significant currency risk because
substantially all assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollar, the Group’s functional and presentation currency. The Group
manages its cash flow requirements and risk as disclosed in note
3(c).

(i) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is the risk that counterparties may
default on its bank deposits, fixed income instruments and
placements with the Exchange Fund.

Bank deposits are placed with the Group’s approved banks
which are of investment grade as determined by Moody’s or
Standard and Poor’s. For bank deposits, banks must meet
the minimum credit rating not lower than Moody’s Baa3 or
equivalent.

All transactions in fixed income instruments are settled or paid
for upon delivery through approved banks and safe kept by
the approved custodian with high credit ranking. The credit
risks of the issuers are assessed based on the credit rating
determined by Moody’s or Standard and Poor’s. Investments in
fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates of deposits) are with
issuers of credit rating not lower than Moody’s A3 or equivalent.
Where the maturity is over three years, the credit rating is not
lower than Moody’s Aa3 or equivalent at the time of investment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

The placements with the Exchange Fund are entered into
between HA and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”)
and it is expected that the HKMA can fulfill its contractual
obligations to HA in respect of the placements.

Interest rate risk

The Portfolio’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing

cash at bank, bank deposits and fixed income instruments.

Cash at bank, which earns interest at variable rates, gives
rise to cash flow interest rate risk. Fixed rate bank deposits
and fixed income instruments expose the Portfolio to fair value
interest rate risk. Sensitivity analyses have been performed
by the Group with regard to interest rate risk as at 31 March
2018. If interest rates had been increased or decreased by
50 basis points, which represent management’'s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in those rates, and all other
variables were held constant, the effect on the Group’s deficit
and net assets is insignificant.

Price risk

Fixed income instruments are subject to the price risk caused
by the changes in the perceived credit risks of the issuers and
market interest rates as disclosed in note 3(a)(i) and note 3(a)(ii)
respectively.

Currency risk

The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are substantially
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group’s functional
and presentation currency, and hence will not be exposed to
significant currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Fair values estimation

(i)

Financial assets carried at fair values

The Group’s financial instruments that are measured at
fair value are categorised by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 —Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. These instruments are included in
level 1. None of the instruments of the Group is included in
level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
None of the instruments of the Group is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
Specific  valuation to value financial
instruments include:

techniques used

— Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

— The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the reporting
date, with the resulting value discounted back to present
value.

—  Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL B RS R AR B
STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MREARERE®)
(b) Fair values estimation (Continued) (b) DAREEME @)
(i) Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued) (i) RAREEIIRNMBEE (B)
The placements with the Exchange Fund are included in NEESTFHRBRE=E - TXRZ7
level 3. The following table presents the changes in level 3 HE-_Z-—NF=ZA=T—HIEEK
instruments for the financial years ended 31 March 2018 and T +F=A=T—HIFEFE=E
31 March 2017: TAMNEE :
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE2018 F = 2017 4
3A3ALEE 3A3HIEFE
BT T VSR IT
At the beginning of the year IR & 1] 25,667,339 14,967,266
Addition [note 20] 3N [ Ffi5E 20 ] - 10,000,000
Interest F 8 834,993 700,073
At the end of the year [note 8] A48 [ Fi 8 ] 26,502,332 25,667,339
(i) Financial assets not reported at fair values (i) EURRAREBEZINNTBEEE
The fair values of fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates of BEEABLA (BfFHE) EHREAN
deposits) at the reporting date are provided by the approved AR BEBZERE ARE - BB
custodian. These instruments are summarised below: R
The Group and HA
FERBER
Carrying Value Fair Value
IREEE AREE
At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201853 H31H 20173 A31H 201843 H31H 201743 A31H
BT T EEET T BT T BT T
Fixed income instruments 849,655 2,140,000 849,049 2,145,364
EEAETHR
(iii) The carrying values of other financial assets and liabilities (i) EMHBEERBENR S RIRITE
such as cash and bank balances, loans receivable, accounts £ BIRER - BRERRENE ZER
receivable and trade payables approximate their fair values HHBEAEEEE N EEES - E
and accordingly, no disclosure of fair values for these items HIEE AR BEZEZY -

is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

3.

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Capital management

Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, the resources of the Group
consist of the following:

(i) All money paid by the Government to HA and appropriated for
that purpose by the Legislative Council and otherwise provided
to HA by the Government; and

(i) All other money and property, including gifts, donations, fees,
rent, interest and accumulations of income received by HA.

In this regard, the capital of the Group comprises revenue reserve,
designated fund, capital subventions, capital donations and
deferred income as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. At
31 March 2018, the capital of the Group was HK$23,566,056,000
(2017: HK$24,935,267,000).

The Group’s objective for managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern to ensure
sustainability of the public healthcare system. The Group has
always been prudent in financial management so as to ensure
proper and effective use of public resources. Through the annual
planning exercise, resource requirements of individual hospital
clusters are identified and considered against the total amount of
funding available to the Group, with a view to meet the rising service
demand for public hospital services and build up Hong Kong’s future
healthcare workforce with recruitment of new graduates. The Group
also continuously strives for enhancement of efficiency in use of its
resources. To facilitate the delivery of value-for-money services, the
Group regularly monitors a set of performance indicators covering
performance in clinical service, human resources management and
financial management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

4.

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to
exercise significant judgments in the selection and application of
accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions.
The following is a review of the more significant accounting policies
that are impacted by judgments and uncertainties and for which
different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions
or using different assumptions.

Provision for medical malpractice claims

The Group co-insures and retains a designated sum for each
medical malpractice claim. For those professional liability claims in
excess of the retained sum, the claims will be borne by the insurer.
In view of the complex nature and long development period of
the claims, a Claims Review Panel consisting of the participating
medical malpractice insurers, the external panel law firms appointed
by the insurers and HA’s in-house experts review the status of
potential and active claims semi-annually and assess the provision
required on each significant case. An independent qualified actuary
also assists the Group on the assessment of the exposure of other
reported cases based on historical development trend of the claims
settlement. With reference to the assessments and the analysis
by the Claims Review Panel and the external actuarial consultant
respectively, management reviews the claims exposure and
determines the provision required to cover the Group’s exposure at
each reporting date. Such provision is included in accrued charges
and other payables in note 16.

Death and disability liabilities

The Group engages an independent qualified actuary to assess
the present value of obligations for its death and disability scheme
at each year end date. Major actuarial assumptions include the
discount rate and salary inflation rate which are set out in note 18.
The present value of the Group’s obligations is discounted with
reference to market yields on Hong Kong Government Bonds,
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
obligations. The long-term salary inflation is generally based on the
market’s long-term expectation of price inflation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

5. Property, plant and equipment

B S ER AR M

5. W= BBERRE

The Group and HA £E R BER

Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment
improvements HK$°000 Motor Computer
HK$’000 xA - vehicles equipment Total
e EEis HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R#EE &S RE B et
BT T BETRT BET BET T BT T
Cost A
At 1 April 2017 X 2017 4 A1 H 1,091,725 10,963,818 272,067 518,018 12,845,628
Additions 0 2,003 1,115,984 31,154 60,727 1,209,868
Disposals 1% - (557,644) (8,342) (16,445) (582,431)
AU31March 2018 82018 €3 31 H 1093728 11522158 294879 562300 13473065
Accumulated depreciation 2&Ei7E&
At 1 April 2017 72 2017 5 4 A1 H 423,741 6,312,043 211,174 332,677 7,279,635
Charge for the year NFE 2 ITE 27,195 796,201 28,750 68,405 920,551
Disposals 1% - (532,071) (8,342) (16,444) (556,857)
A3 March2018 7020183 318 450936 6576173 231582 384638 7643329
Net book value FRIE FE
At 31 March 2018 74 2018 £ 3 A 31 H 642,792 4,945,985 63,297 177,662 5,829,736

The Group £H

Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment
improvements HK$°000 Motor Computer
HK$°000 E-J=IN vehicles equipment Total
ety EELE HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
REE SES RE ERRE st
BT T BETT BETRT BT T BT T
Cost 7
At 1 April 2016 72 20165 4 A 1 H 1,081,681 10,479,844 253,878 675,911 12,491,314
Reclassifications E#77 48 - 300 - (338) (38)
Additions ¥ 1 25,397 1,224,834 32,643 66,588 1,349,462
Disposals & (15,353) (741,160) (14,454) (224,143) (995,110)
AU31 March 2017 182017 3 318 1091725 10963818 272067 518018 12845628
Accumulated depreciation 2E T E
At 1 April 2016 72 20165 4 A1 H 411,331 6,315,148 197,688 484,039 7,408,206
Reclassifications E #1748 - 50 - (88) (38)
Charge for the year NFE 2 & 26,336 732,262 27,940 68,732 855,270
Disposals & (13,926) (735,417) (14,454) (220,006) (983,803)
AU31March2017 /20173 318 423741 6312043 211174 332677 7279635
Net book value BREEE
At 31 March 2017 7 2017 £ 3 A 31 H 667,984 4,651,775 60,893 185,341 5,565,993
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B
STATEMENTS

5. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 5 Y% BB[RFBHE W@
Furniture,

fixtures and
Building and equipment

improvements HK$°000 Motor Computer
HK$’000 EJ=IN vehicles equipment Total
sy E=z® HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
REE &L RE BiRE et
BETT BETT BT BET T BT T
Cost A
At 1 April 2016 722016 F 4 A 1 H 1,081,681 10,479,844 253,878 673,274 12,488,677
Reclassifications E#7 48 - 300 - (338) (38)
Additions & il 25,397 1,224,834 32,643 66,588 1,349,462
Disposals /& (15,353) (741,160)  (14,454)  (221,506)  (992,473)
At 31 March 2017 7 2017 £ 3 A 31 H 1,091,725 10,963,818 272,067 518,018 12,845,628
Accumulated depreciation 2EiTE
At 1 April 2016 74 2016 4 A 1 H 411,331 6,315,148 197,688 481,402 7,405,569
Reclassifications E 3777 48 - 50 - (88) (38)
Charge for the year N & 2 #T & 26,336 732,262 27,940 68,732 855,270
Disposals 4 & (13,926) (735417)  (14,454)  (217,369)  (981,166)
At 31 March 2017 72 2017 £ 3 A 31 H 423,741 6,312,043 211,174 332,677 7,279,635
Net book value BRE FE
At 31 March 2017 7 2017 £ 3 A 31 H 667,984 4,651,775 60,893 185,341 5,565,993
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B
STATEMENTS

6. Intangible assets 6. BEEE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
HE 2018 & HZE 2017 F
3A31ALEE 3A31BLEFE
BT T ok e
Cost A
At the beginning of the year IR 1] 1,263,436 1,268,860
Reclassifications E#75 48 - 38
Additions il 150,672 126,319
Disposals & (845) (131,781)
At the end of the year FAF#R 1,413,263 1,263,436
Accumulated amortisation 27 i# 4
At the beginning of the year R F 4] 1,012,849 1,035,058
Reclassifications E #1748 - 38
Charge for the year NF € 2 B 5 122,307 109,534
Disposals & (845) (131,781)
At the end of the year FAF 4% 1,134,311 1,012,849
Net book value FRIE FE
At the end of the year IAF#R 278,952 250,587

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ 2018 F BZE 2017 F
331 BLFE 3A31HILFE
BT T BT

Cost 7

At the beginning of the year R F 4] 1,257,513 1,258,876

Reclassifications E #1548 - 38

Additions 31 150,672 126,319

Disposals {5 (845) (127,720)

At the end of the year FAF#R 1,407,340 1,257,513
Accumulated amortisation Z7&#

At the beginning of the year A& 4] 1,006,926 1,025,074

Reclassifications E#75 48 - 38

Charge for the year N4 € 2 #§ 122,307 109,534

Disposals 15 (845) (127,720)

At the end of the year R4 1,128,388 1,006,926
Net book value BREEE

At the end of the year 4% 278,952 250,587

Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements BV ZZREREFENIEHRER 85



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

7.

Loans receivable

Certain eligible employees under the Home Loan Interest Subsidy
Scheme were offered downpayment loans for the purchase of their
residential properties (“Downpayment Loan Scheme”). The repayment
period of the loans is the shorter of the mortgage life and 20 years.
Interest charged on the downpayment loans is determined by the
Group from time to time and is set at 1.132% as at 31 March 2018
(2017:1.282%). Downpayment Loan Scheme has been suspended
since April 2002.

At 31 March 2018, the downpayment loans advanced to eligible staff
which are fully secured by charges over the properties are as follows:

A 7S ER AR MY

7.

FEW SRR

ETEETERHETHEEBERF B ZAG
BT —5EREBAESEHAERMN
BER ((BHEFREE) - sHERD
ERAMERBESN20F URES
BE - HHEFNEXHEERTREIT
R-ZE—NFE=ZF=1+—HEA1.132%
—T—F 1 1.282%) - EHIERGTEIA
T -FAREEE -

E-—T-N\E=A=+—B  BEHKLL
EHMEENERERLE YR+ RER
T

The Group and HA
SEREER

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$°000 HK$’000

2018 & 2017 £

3HA31H 3H31H

BT T T IT

Repayable within one year —F R{Ei& 715 827
Repayable beyond one year 818 —F (&8 1,012 1,836
1,727 2,663

The loans receivable is neither past due nor impaired. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the
receivable mentioned above. According to the terms and conditions
of the scheme, the monthly principal repayment and payment of
interest in respect of the downpayment loans are deducted from the
employees’ wages and that any benefits to which an employee will be
entitled to receive under the HA Provident Fund Scheme shall stand
charged with repayment of downpayment loan and interest thereon if
such debt has not been paid by the employee upon resignation or on
an agreed date. On this basis, the receivable balance is considered
to be fully recoverable.

Placements with the Exchange Fund

HA has designated the placements with the Exchange Fund as
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. The valuation
technique and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurements are the discounted cash flow and discount rate
respectively. The placements are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Their fair values are determined with reference to the estimated rates
of investment return for future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B

STATEMENTS

8. Placements with the Exchange Fund (Continued) 8. NEE&FR (&)

The interest on the placements is at a fixed rate determined annually
in January and payable annually in arrears on 31 December.
Currently, the rate of return is calculated on the basis of the average
annual rate of return on certain investment portfolio of the Exchange
Fund over the past six years or the average annual yield of three-
year government bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
zero percent), whichever is the higher. This rate of return has been
fixed at 2.8% and 4.6% per annum for January to December 2017
and January to December 2018, respectively. HA did not withdraw
the interest earned up to 31 December 2017 which would continue
to accrue interest at the same rate payable for the principal amount.

Based on an agreement with HKMA, HA will renew the placement
with the Exchange Fund for the Samaritan Fund for another six years

upon its maturity on 8 November 2018.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are analysed as follows:

EEGRNEXEE  E8F—AEE I
REFTZA=+—BX(F - HWEF - @HHF=E
RRINERESREAGBARNENTHRE
ElEE - A =FHBNESBE—FHF
FEREERFE (RERI%)  URSEAR
o T —+F-—AE+-AK=ZT—N\F
—AETZANBFEREFEDFF2.8% &
46% BEREAEXHEE_ZT—+t4F
TZA=T—ARBMAE - EERIEGE
AEr] FEBREEEFTHE

REBERASERNRZ - HBNTES
MFER _ZE—N\F+—AN\HIHLGE
FRINEES - REINE -

SNEESTFROMET

The Group and HA
FEREER

Custodian for

PPP Fund and PPP

Samaritan Fund Minor Works Endowment Fund
[Note 15] Projects Fund [Notes 19(b) and 20]
EABBFTES [Note 19(a)] AREGEEER
HEREA NITREEES AREREBRES Total
[Hfa 15] [ ffzt 19(a) ] [ Bzt 19(b) & 20 ] @t
At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At31March At31March At31March At31March At31 March
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000
2018 & 2017 2018 & 2017 2018 & 2017 & 2018 & 2017 4
3A318 3A31H 3A318 3A31H 38318 3A31B 3H31H 3A31H
BETT  BETT BETT BT BETT BT BETT  AETR

Principal amount A& 6,000,000 6,000,000 7,300,000 7,300,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 23,300,000 23,300,000
Interest earned but not withdrawn 1,372,584 1,171,774 1,092,167 863,586 440,351 155,984 2,905,102 2,191,344
at the reporting date

& BT B HREEF SHA

Accrued interest [EFTF] S 83,623 49,515 95,188 56,362 118,419 70,118 297,230 175,995
7,456,207 7,221,289 8,487,355 8,219,948 10,558,770 10,226,102 26,502,332 25,667,339

Less: non-current portion (6,000,000) (6,000,000) (7,300,000) (7,300,000) (10,000,000) (10,000,000) (23,300,000) (23,300,000)

B 3EREN D

Current portion jit&)#k 7 1,456,207 1,221,289 1,187,355 919,948 558,770 226,102 3,202,332 2,367,339
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

9. Fixed income instruments

The fixed income instruments represent Hong Kong dollar certificates
of deposits with maturity periods within five years from the date of
purchase. The investment yield for the year ended 31 March 2018 is
between 1.88% and 2.03%.

At 31 March 2018, the fixed income instruments held by the Group
and HA are as follows:

A S HR 2R MY

BEEAETAR

BEAELARKEABERAHEFAFNR
FEMHBETERE T N\F=A=+
—BIEFENRERRE 1.88% £ 2.03%
A

RZZB-—NF=HA=+—B EEKEBER
FENBEFEARIANT

The Group and HA
SEREER

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

2018 £3 A 31 H 20173 A 31 R

BT T PEMETIT

Maturing within one year — 4= %I/ £f 849,655 1,890,000
Maturing between one and five years —Z F1 4 N 2| Ef - 250,000
849,655 2,140,000

The above financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The
credit quality of these assets is disclosed in note 3(a) while the
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value
of these assets as stated in note 3(b)(ii). The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

10. Inventories

PP BEEWRAEBIMARE - ELEE
MEEERBERWME3(a)  ERER
RAMEERBRZME 3(b) (i) FFIELE
ENRAEE - REXRFETAERRE
-

10. F&

The Group and HA
FEREER

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

2018 3 H 31 H 20173 H31 H

BEET T BT

Drugs %% 1,128,752 1,073,311
Medical consumables Z& 5% & 191,557 195,139
General consumables —f& 22,906 28,032
1,343,215 1,296,482
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1".

(@)

Accounts receivable

A S ER AR M

11. EURBRFX

The Group and HA
FEREER

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

20183 A 31 H 20173 H31H

BT T BETT

Bills receivable [note 11(a)] FEUBREE [ FizE 11 (a) ] 312,263 361,952

Accrued income FEETIA 39,146 28,235

351,409 390,187

Less: Provision for impairment [note 11(b)] (71,787) (63,949)
B ORERE [ FiEE 11 (b))

279,622 326,238

Aging analysis of bills receivable is set out below:

(a) RUIREMREITNOT :

The Group and HA
SEREER

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

20183 A 31 H 20173 A31H

BT T BT

Below 30 days 30 HEA 187,223 155,765
Between 31 and 60 days 31 & 60 H 47,626 75,277
Between 61 and 90 days 61 & 90 H 24,597 78,645
Over 90 days #&3# 90 B 52,817 52,265
312,263 361,952

The Group’s policy in respect of patient billing is as follows:

(i) Patients attending outpatient and accident and emergency
services are required to pay fees before services are performed.

(i) Private patients and non-eligible persons are required to pay
deposit on admission to hospital.

(iii) Interim bills are sent to patients during hospitalisation. Final
bills are sent if the outstanding amounts have not been settled
on discharge.

Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements BV ZZ R EREFENIEHREK 89

SEAMBARENERNT ¢

(i) WAZFIZZARSEZERZANEKR
DIARANER

(i) FARAARIEGA G A+ ABE AR
4574 -

(iii) E&pr 2 m{ERTRm AZE L AP HRERES - R0
WAL ABNHRNER @ Bt
SR RERERMN -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

11. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(iv) Administrative charge is imposed on late payments of medical
fees and charges for medical services provided on or after 1
July 2007. The administrative charge is imposed at 5% of the
outstanding fees past due for 60 days from issuance of the bills,
subject to a maximum charge of HK$1,000 for each bill. An
additional 10% of the outstanding fees are imposed if the bills
remain outstanding 90 days from issuance of the bills, subject
to a maximum additional charge of HK$10,000 for each bill.

(v) Legal action will be instituted for outstanding bills where
appropriate. Patients who have financial difficulties may be
considered for waiver of fees charged.

An aging analysis of receivables that are past due but not impaired
is as follows:

The Group and HA

A 7S ER AR MY

1. EUBRFK (&)

(iv) R —ZTLF LA — B2 ZARED

(v)

BEERY  BRATNBRAASHITR
B o MEEREILE 60 HITARBHE
A @ 3MURR R 5% (EBITIRE
FIRIRE FBRABEE 1,000 T BAFERR
BREBIOBMREHER  Hles
IMBU R 10% 1ERITIE - BIERR
% _FBR A#% 10,000 JT °

SE SRR N RFIZERIERREIUE
2178 -  ARERANBA - KEEZE
BT AR

B BB 08 75 Rt 18 1O 8 U BR B8 1) R e 0 AT 40

T

SEREBER

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
2018 3 A 31H 20173 A 31 H
BT T BT T

Past due by #&Hj :
Below 30 days 30 HEA~ 144,680 123,297
Between 31 and 60 days 31 & 60 H 32,656 59,933
Between 61 and 90 days 61 2 90 H 14,528 67,247
Over 90 days 83 90 H 1,736 7,036
193,600 257,513

Receivables that are past due but not impaired include outstanding
debts to be settled by government departments, charitable
organisations or other institutions for whom the credit risk associated
with these receivables is relatively low. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1.

(b)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

At 31 March 2018, bills receivable of HK$118,663,000 (2017:
HK$104,439,000) were impaired by HK$71,787,000 (2017:
HK$63,949,000) of which HK$45,815,000 (2017: HK$39,309,000)
related to receivables individually determined to be impaired. These
mainly related to non-eligible persons, the recoverability of which
are considered to be low after taking all possible debt recovery
actions. Remaining allowance for impairment of HK$25,972,000
(2017:HK$24,640,000) was made by reference to historical
past due recovery patterns. It was assessed that a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The aging analysis of
these receivables is as follows:

B S ER AR M

11.

(b)

PEWBR R (4)

RZZE—NE=ZA=Z=+—H8 B
118,663,000 L (=T — & : B
104,439,000 7T ) #Y JE Uk BR B8 5k (B 78
71,787,000 (=& — £ F : B K
63,949,000 Jt ) HA ¥ 45,815,000 7T
—ZT—t4 : B% 39,309,000 ) &
BRACRERENEKRESEEHE 2%
FEFEERAL  HABKEWMAAA
BE 1T B) [ b P9 B UK R R B B ) UK |
HETK - E2ENFNBHRZER
B - Em{EL T B% 25,972,000 7T
—T—+F : B¥ 24,640,0007T) £
BEREHFEE G HoRRETKE -
ELBEWRENERERSITAT

The Group and HA
SERBER

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

2018 3 A 31 H 20173 A 31 H

BT T BETT

Below 30 days 308 A 42,543 32,468
Between 31 and 60 days 31Z260H 14,970 15,344
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H 10,069 11,398
Over 90 days #8iE90H 51,081 45,229
118,663 104,439

Movements in the provision for impairment of accounts receivable
are as follows:

FEMBR BB BB Z BN T

The Group and HA
FEREER

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000
HZE2018 & EHZE 2017 F
3A3IHILEE 3A31BHILFE
BT T BT T
At the beginning of the year FAF 4] 63,949 58,159
Additional provision & {10 62,955 60,976
Uncollectible amounts written off 3+ 4 &9 R U [ 158 (55,117) (55,186)
At the end of the year AR 71,787 63,949

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

12. Other receivables

A S HR 2R MY

12.

H AR R

The Group and HA
FEREER

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

20183 A31H 20173 H31H

BT T BT

Donations receivable fEUWIEZN 55,120 127,509

Interest receivable [ U F S 53,926 71,737

Receivable from the Government for reimbursement or refund of 161,877 281,674

expenditure incurred on capital projects [note 12(a)]

BRI R SR B B AR T 1218 B FrA R < A FEIGEIE [ st 12(a) ]

Others HAtt 84,069 41,361

354,992 522,281

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each
class of receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

(@) Movementsinthe receivable from the Government for reimbursement
or refund of expenditure incurred on capital projects are as follows:

HAi BB FRY BREEE - £REA -
AHEERRE DS BERFBENAA(E
18 SEYWARFA TR EER -

i

B TR SR B EATIRIE B TP M X K

The Group and HA
EERBER

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZ 2018 F HZE 2017 F

3A3TALEE 3A3ALEE

BETT BETT

At the beginning of the year R F 4] 281,674 281,921
Government funding received on capital projects (1,747,055) (1,259,614)

AR TIZIE B W B B BUR SR

Amount incurred on capital projects Z78 T 218 B FT4 5708 1,627,258 1,259,367
At the end of the year FAF#R 161,877 281,674
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

13. Deposits and prepayments

PA RS R AR R

13. HERFANRIE

The Group
&8

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

20183 A31H 20173 H31H

BT T BETT

Utility and other deposits A= % M H b3z d 26,608 23,145

Prepayments to Government departments 91,874 124,969

A B B P TR B9 58

Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 175,671 175,491
RES LR EAMIARNFIR

294,153 323,605

HA
BER

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

20183 A 31H 2017 €3 A31H

BT T BT

Utility and other deposits ‘A 32 & H iz & 26,496 23,062

Prepayments to Government departments 91,874 124,969

A R B P TR Y FE

Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 175,671 175,491
REEH REATAR FIA

294,041 323,522
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

14. Cash and bank balances

A S HR 2R MY

14.

BERIBITHEER

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

2018 £3 A31H 20173 H31H

BET T BT T

Cash at bank and in hand SR/ T X R FHRE 787,213 388,222

Bank deposits with original maturity within three months 5,470,274 1,665,479
[RPREHA B B8 = & A eV R1TE R

Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 &I 4 %(E 6,257,487 2,053,701

Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 10,492,992 15,272,320

R EEA B R = (A H R IR1TER
16,750,479 17,326,021

The cash and bank balances included bank deposits
designated for Minor Works Projects Fund and PPP Fund of
HK$1,389,049,000 (2017: HK$1,639,280,000) and HK$73,161,000
(2017: HK$299,063,000) respectively. The effective interest rate
on short term bank deposits is between 0.01% and 1.68% (2017:
0.01% and 1.27%). These deposits have an average maturity of 63
days (2017: 53 days).

At 31 March 2018, the Group and HA had undrawn banking facilities
of HK$1,350,000,000 (2017: HK$1,350,000,000).

15. Balance with Samaritan Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Government
injected HK$10,000,000,000 to support the operation of the
Samaritan Fund, which was established in 1950 by resolution
of the Legislative Council for the purpose of providing financial
assistance to needy patients. As instructed by the Government,
HK$4,000,000,000 was vested immediately in the Samaritan Fund.
The balance of HK$6,000,000,000 not immediately required by
the Samaritan Fund was placed with the Exchange Fund since
8 November 2012 by way of a credit facility entered into between
HA and HKMA for a fixed period of six years during which time HA
would not be able to withdraw the principal amount.

As HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund, the
cumulative investment return up to 31 March 2018 was recorded
together with the principal amount as balance with Samaritan Fund,
which is unsecured, interest free and denominated in Hong Kong
dollar.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B
STATEMENTS

15. Balance with Samaritan Fund (Continued) 15. BRI E & &6k (&)
Based on an agreement with HKMA, HA will renew the placement BREERESERNHE - BBNEES
with the Exchange Fund for the Samaritan Fund for another six WHER—T—/\F+—AN\BRHESE
years upon its maturity on 8 November 2018. FRINEES - REIREF -
The balance with Samaritan Fund is analysed as follows: BISH R ESEHRITAT ¢
The Group and HA
SEREER
At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
2018 £3 A 31 H 20173 A31H
BT T BT
Principal amount A< 6,000,000 6,000,000
Interest earned but not withdrawn at the reporting date 1,372,584 1,171,774
s BRI B IRIAFLEMA
Accrued interest fE5TFI.E 83,623 49,515
7,456,207 7,221,289
Less: non-current portion & : JERENERD (6,000,000) (6,000,000)
Current portion /it Eh &5 1,456,207 1,221,289
16. Creditors and accrued charges 16. EEARENER
The Group
&8
At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
2018 £ 3 A 31 H 20173 A 31 H
BT T BT
Trade payables [note 16(a)] FE{STE Z8R3 [ Kzt 16 (a) ] 631,624 604,133
Accrued charges and other payables [note 16(b)] 5,904,597 5,648,647
B ERREMBRK [ M3E 16 (b) ]
Contributions from the governing bodies of ex-subvented 447 193

hospitals for capital projects [note 16(c)]
A BY EE P B e g St E R TAR 1A B AR R IE [ Mifat 16 (c) ]
Current account with the Government [note 16(d)] 4,322,723 4,462,805
BAEAT 2 R RAERE [ FizE 16 (d) ]

10,859,391 10,715,778
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

16. Creditors and accrued charges (Continued)

A S HR 2R MY

16. EEARENSER @)

HA
BER

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
2018 3 A 31H 20173 H31H
BT T BETT
Trade payables [note 16(a)] FE{TE Z8RF [ KizE 16 (a) ] 631,624 604,133
Accrued charges and other payables [note 16(b)] 5,897,081 5,644,477
FET B A R EADARSR [ FEE 16 (b) ]
Contributions from the governing bodies of ex-subvented 447 193
hospitals for capital projects [note 16(c)]
Al BN E& B B e Rt E AN TA218 B A& RIE [ izt 16 (c) ]
Current account with the Government [note 16(d)] 4,322,723 4,462,805
BT 2 R REERE [ HizE 16 (d) ]
Current account with a subsidiary B2 B #iE 2 a2k E R B 7,410 4,093
10,859,285 10,715,701

(@) An aging analysis of trade payables is set out below:

(a)

N B SRFNREOMANT

The Group and HA
FEREER

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

20183 A31H 20173 H31H

BET T BET T

Below 30 days 30 HLAT™ 603,890 579,574
Between 31 and 60 days 31 %60 H 22,382 20,128
Between 61 and 90 days 6190 H 3,029 BS54
Over 90 days ###90 H 2,323 1,074
631,624 604,133

All trade payables as at 31 March 2018 are expected to be settled
within one year. The Group has maintained adequate cash flows
and banking facilities for settlement of trade payables.

(b) Accrued charges and other payables of the Group and HA
included accrual for annual leave of HK$2,022,356,000
(2017: HK$1,968,565,000) and contract gratuity accrual of
HK$1,652,222,000 (2017: HK$1,497,136,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B
STATEMENTS

16. Creditors and accrued charges (Continued) 16. ERARENSER &)

(c) Movements in the contributions from the governing bodies of  (c) RifBNERE AKIERERTRHE B AER
ex-subvented hospitals for capital projects are as follows: HEHMT

The Group and HA

EEREER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
B ZE 2018 & HE 2017 6
3A3BLEE 3A3IHILEFE
BET T BT
At the beginning of the year A F4]] 193 338
Contributions received from the governing bodies of 16,992 16,304
ex-subvented hospitals on capital projects
P B R B BB B A B R B R T A28 B AETRIR
Amount incurred on capital projects &7~ T 218 B #5708 (16,738) (16,449)
At the end of the year RF 4% 447 193

(d) The balance mainly included Government funding for designated  (d) &&=+ ZBERBUTIEH BT EIETE

programmes or specific items that were already received and will BHABR  SLBREEERIEERE
be recognised as income over the periods in which the related RO AMCE S E R HRIERA -
expenditure is incurred and charged to the statement of income and
expenditure.
17. Deposits received 17. BIE®
The Group and HA
EERBER
At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
2018 £3 A 31 H 20173 A31H
BT T BT
Patient deposits A A& & 42,632 41,810
Other deposits EAft iz & 302,601 253,647
345,233 295,457

Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements BV ZZ R EREBENFEHRR 97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

18. Death and disability liabilities

Under their terms of employment, HA employees are entitled to
death and disability benefit cover. This is funded by HA through the
recurrent subvention from the Government.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

A S HR 2R MY

18. ETRERBHNEE

REERGST  BERNEBIZFEILTR
BRBAIRE - Zrt BB EEREBBTH

REERHBTIAER -

BEABERTAERNZEELT

The Group and HA
FEREER

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000
2018 £ 3 A 31 H 201743 A31H
BT T AT IT
Present value of funded obligations ;T & & AR E 261,591 263,757
Fair value of plan assets 5t Z| & ER AR EE (3,615) (10,339)
257,976 253,418
The movement in the present value of funded obligations is as FEREZREZEHNAT

follows:

The Group and HA
FEREER

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

HZE 2018 F HE2017F

A3 HLFE 3A31HILFE

BT T BT T

At the beginning of the year A F 4] 263,757 254,068
Current service cost IR 1TAR#EF 2 40,334 37,623
Interest cost | 8. 4,375 3,974
Benefits paid B 4& 7 (6,405) (8,890)
Remeasurement of disability liability (Z5EEF| E T EHstE (11,356) (33)
Remeasurement of death liability 5t =& F| & (T =5t & (29,114) (22,985)
At the end of the year FAF 4% 261,591 263,757
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

18. Death and disability liabilities (Continued)

The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

The Group and HA

B S ER AR M

18. AT RIBEREHNEE (@)

HEEENAL BESDOT -

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

B ZE 2018 & HE 2017 6

3A3BLEE 3A3IHILEFE

BT T BT

At the beginning of the year A F4]] 10,339 15,286

Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) (8,747) (2,793)
FTEIEENAE (TEREMNSEA)

Employer contributions &= itk 8,428 6,736

Benefits paid B 4& 7 (6,405) (8,890)

At the end of the year A48 3,615 10,339

The death benefits are insured by a group life insurance policy and
the current insurance policy covers the period up to 31 July 2018.
The fair value of plan assets was taken as the present value of the
expected death benefits with respect to the obligations covered by
the policy.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income
and expenditure and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income have been calculated by reference to an actuarial valuation
and are as follows:

BERZABBASRRARERMILTSE
FRE  RITREABMERPE_T—)N\F
tA=1—8 -FABEENIABERRR
sHElEFIECRAMEENRE -

THREGARIBER KRG EERER
TR FHE - EREBEBE[BESD

The Group and HA
FEREBER

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000
HZE 2018 F HE 2017 F
3A3MBILFE 3A3MHILEFE
BET T BT
Current service cost IR 1TARE B2 40,334 37,623
Interest cost Fll 2.Fx 4,375 3,974
Remeasurement of disability liability ZFEEF| E X EHtE (11,356) (33)
Total, included in staff costs [note 24] 33,353 41,564
st (BREETIRAN) [HiEE24 ]
Remeasurement of death liability St T @ H & FEF#H T2 (29,114) (22,985)
Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) 8,747 2,793
FTEIEENAE (TEREMNSLA)
Total, included in other comprehensive income (20,367) (20,192)

et (RREEMEEKEA)

Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements BV ZZ R EREBENFEHRE 99



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B
STATEMENTS

18. Death and disability liabilities (Continued) 18. AT RERBEAEE @)
Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are BEAERANEIERERRNT :
as follows:
The Group and HA
SEREER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
BZE 2018 F HE 2017 F
3B31HIEEE 3A31HILFE
% %
Discount rate 855 = 2.10 1.70
Assumed rate of future salary increases & & 2 & 1L iR 4.00 3.60
The analysis below shows how the present value of the funded TR ITRIBIEAT EEBE REZAE -
obligations as at 31 March 2018 would have increased/(decreased) BEZZT—N\F=A=+—HFERETHE
as a result of the following changes in the principal actuarial mEmn / CRid)
assumptions:
Increase in Decrease in
50 basis 50 basis
points points
HK$'000 HK$'000
FZ=F A==
50 Bi¥ 508 F
BT T BT T
Discount rate B4R (13,970) 15,272
Assumed rate of future salary increases 2% K 25 & iR 14,865 (13,698)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B

STATEMENTS

19. Deferred income 19. IEE W =

The Group and HA

SEREBER
Minor Works
Designated Projects
donation Fund
fund [Note 19(a)] PPP Fund
[Note 2(f)] HK$’000 [Note 19(b)]
HK$’000 JNEY HK$’000
EERE IREH YR Lokl
2% 2% RS HK$’000
[HeE20)] [KEE19(@)] [ FaE19(b) 1 #Et
BET T BT T BET T BT T
At 1 April 2016 X 2016 4 B 1 H 555,437 11,505,964 441,966 12,503,367
Additions during the year F P31l 215,347 - 1,757 217,104
Interest earned FrER| & = 299,400 241,975 541,375
Exchange loss [ i 184 - (622) - (622)
Transfers to consolidated statement of - (22,158) - (22,158)
comprehensive income
ERE RS 2 EREER
Transfers to consolidated statement of (171,110)  (1,103,964) (181,712) (1,456,786)
income and expenditure
ERTmEREZRE
At 31 March 2017 72 2017 3 A 31 H 599,674 10,678,620 503,986 11,782,280
Additions during the year F I3 1 47,990 - S¥oIE 51,565
Interest earned FTEF| & - 298,854 334,665 633,519
Transfers to consolidated statement of - (1,821) - (1,821)
comprehensive income
ERTRE 2 EKEE
Transfers to consolidated statement of (92,618)  (1,202,525) (228,780) (1,523,923)
income and expenditure
ERTGRA R EER
At 31 March 2018 7 2018 3 A 31 H 555,046 9,773,128 613,446 10,941,620
(@) Minor Works Projects Fund () NATREREBEES

RBE-_Z-—ME=A=1+—HItWHIEK
FENRN - BAFEZ B 13,000,000,000 7T
(7 EB8083MMIET) TEER « UHEHETT
NRITR2IER - RE AN BT K2 TR
B o BEENMEREREEEERER
TRRHEES WS TENEEER (DE
8100MX)  WIZ A (B ETEIETHIE LR

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Government
advanced HK$13,000,000,000 (under Subhead 8083MM) to HA
for minor works projects to improve the existing facilities in public
hospitals and clinics. The one-off grant has replaced the annual block
funding allocation under Capital Works Reserve Fund - Improvement
Works Block Vote (Subhead 8100MX) and covers minor works
projects under five planned programmes, with costing not more than

HK$75 million for each individual item. The five programmes are
facility rejuvenation programme, capacity enhancement programme,
safe engineering programme, universal accessibility programme
and regular maintenance/minor works and preparatory works for
major capital works projects.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

19. Deferred income (Continued)

(@) Minor Works Projects Fund (Continued)

As approved by the Government, HA has placed HK$7,300,000,000
with the Exchange Fund over a period of six years since 11 April
2014 while the remaining funds have been managed internally and
invested within the ambit of HA's prevailing investment guidelines.
The approved grant, together with the related investment income,
will be fully used to meet the costs of the minor works projects in
the coming 10 years or so starting from April 2014. For the use of
funds, HA will continue to seek prior approval from the Government
for each individual item of expenditure to be funded by the one-off
grant, as has been the practice for the use of funds under Subhead

8100MX.

Minor Works Projects Fund balance predominantly comprised non-

current items.

(b) PPP Fund

The Government allocated to HA a sum of HK$10,000,000,000
on 31 March 2016 as an endowment fund (note 20) to generate
investment returns for regularising and enhancing ongoing clinical
PPP programmes, as well as developing new clinical PPP initiatives
in future. HA can make use of the investment returns together with
the remaining balance of the one-off designated funding provided
previously to support the ongoing operation of the PPP programmes

commencing from April 2016.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Government

provided recurrent subvention of HK$3,575,000

HK$1,757,000) to HA for annual pay adjustment of staff deployed
on PPP initiatives. The subvention was transferred to the PPP Fund
and was recognised in the deferred income — PPP Fund when the

subvention was received.

20. Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund

As approved by the Government, the endowment fund of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been placed with the Exchange Fund for a

period of six years since 12 July 2016.
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1),

EIEWE (8)

(a) METREEES (#)

20.

BERERMNIE R-_FT—-—NFMA
+—H#$%% 7,300,000,000 JoiF ASMEE
T RHENF  SRFARMER - ARIEE
ERBITHREREETRE - EHEFUE
REBAMEWA - BRANE - —F
MmARRKO+FR/NUTRBERMY - ¥
RESHWER  BERS-ABEERSA
8100MX IE N UL - BEE —RIBRER
BB EER S I8 B F R BEUBURHLE -

N TIEBRESHBIBERIERDY

RZZBE—RF=A=+—0  BNRAZER
R E%10,000,000,000 TR B AR E S
(Fif=E 20) » FIFAPAISIRE MIRLAE T LEM
B BHTHERKR AL E RIEE - UK
FERRETHHE - BERAAMNARER
¥ ERBRTZ A4S T — R3S E B
BER - FHEEER T NF AT
RILEIERTE

REBE-_Z-N\F=A=+—HLWIK
FE - BTAEE BREMESY 3,575,000 7T
(ZZT—+4F : ¥ 1,757,000 7T) & FEm
B) - BYERATLE R IERT S8 B M FE 5
B o HRAMBNREIREF T QRS HIEE
% WHERBREWES - ALAHRIEES -

RAVEBIFEREE

Bt EEE R —T—AFLtA+ i
1575 %5 10,000,000,000 JTHY B ARE S F A
[EES - AHINE o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B
STATEMENTS

21. Capital subventions and capital donations 21. BRI R ERIBHE

The Group and HA
SEREBER

Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(q)] [Note 2(f)]

HK$°000 HK$’000 Total
aR@y  &xpm HK000
[FtaE 2 (q)] [Htat 2 ()] st
BT T BT T BT
At 1 April 2016 72 2016 4 A 1 H 4,067,568 1,249,342 5,316,910
Additions during the year 4 A% il 1,265,842 187,781 1,453,623
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 2585/ 2 Ti2EH H 4 22,158 = 22,158
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (814,305) (161,806) (976,111)
BTGNS AEER
At 31 March 2017 7 2017 3 A 31 B 4,541,263 1,275,317 5,816,580
Additions during the year F N30 1,213,430 145,288 1,358,718
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund &5 5 /A T2 H Z& 1,821 - 1,821
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (930,094) (138,338) (1,068,432)
BREFa R AEER
At 31 March 2018 72 2018 £ 3 A 31 H 4,826,420 1,282,267 6,108,687

22. Designated fund - Home Loan Interest 22 . iEEEE-BEEIRFEZ

Subsidy Scheme BLst 2

The Group offers eligible employees under the scheme an RIBIL AR S SEASERESREM—E
interest subsidy to finance the purchase of a residence in Hong FIESEEL - ERMBPIERBSEERER - B1%
Kong. Eligibility under the scheme is primarily determined by the FERENEENRBFE - RHEE K
employee's length of service. The amount of subsidy generally REEREEERNAEXZN—F EaAE
represents half of the interest rate payable by the eligible employee F 6% Tifh - B RETRSREX I
up to a maximum of 6% per annum. However, eligibility and the 28— LR EFTPR & ©

maximum amount of subsidies granted are subject to a number of
restrictions as further defined in the scheme.

The scheme is funded by HA through the recurrent subvention ZETEIHEEREBBTMEEE/MENTIA
from the Government. A designated fund has been set aside for BB o FTEITER —SETEES - AUXME
the scheme and is maintained in designated bank and investment EEXRFEZMBANOEBRAST - WENE
accounts which are included under cash and bank and fixed income EHRTREF A - 9RIFIAR & KR1TRE
instruments balances respectively. FEABSTEREZHRNA o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

23. Hospital/clinic fees and charges

The charges for hospital services provided by the Group are levied
in accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette. Since the
Government has established a set of policies and procedures on
granting fee waivers to the needy patients, the hospital/clinic fees
and charges recognised as income in the consolidated statement
of income and expenditure are stated net of such waivers. The
amount of hospital/clinics fees and charges waived for the financial
year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$874,210,000 (2017:

HK$572,515,000).

24. Staff costs

A S HR 2R MY

23. Bfx / OEFTNE

SEMRENEZERT - SREBEFHRATTIH
M EXRMKEER - BRBUITERIFT—&
BTRERRERAZRREOBERRRE
o EGRERSZHEERPERBBRAL
BEfr /2 EAMKRE BB T ELREE
He-AHE-Z—N\F=ZA=+—AHLtZ
HREEN  ERENER / 2BEmKkE
BB #874,210,0007T (ZF —+F | B
572,515,0007T) °

24. BT R

The Group
%H

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE 2018 F BZE 2017 F
SH31ALEE 3A31HIEFE
BT T BT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits: 41,778,137 39,888,829
BERF & R HARE BE S 1EF
Post-employment benefits %14 & Fl:
- Contribution to HA Provident Fund Scheme [note 24(a)] 2,603,983 2,508,057
Bl B RNER BN [T 24 (a) ]
- Contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme [note 24(b)] 697,205 645,452
SRR ETEIHR [ st 24 (b) ]
Death and disability benefits [note 18] 33,353 41,564
e RS [ K18 ]
45,112,678 43,083,902
(a) HA Provident Fund Scheme (“HAPFS”) (a) BREERAESGE

The HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme. The current scheme
was established on 1 April 2003 and governed by its Trust Deed
and Rules dated 29 January 2003, and registered under section
18 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance

(“ORSO").

Most employees who have opted for HA terms of employment are
eligible to join the HAPFS on a non-contributory basis. The HAPFS is
a defined contribution scheme as all benefits are defined in relation
to contributions except that a minimum death benefit equating to
twelve months’ salary applies on the death of a member. However,
when the member’s account balance is less than his twelve months’
scheme salary, the difference will be contributed by the Death and

Disability Scheme of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

24,

(a)

(b)

25.

Staff costs (Continued)

HA Provident Fund Scheme (“HAPFS”) (Continued)

The monthly normal contribution by the Group is currently set at
15% of each member’'s monthly basic salary. The percentage of
benefit entitlement, receivable by the employee on resignation or
retirement, increases with the length of service.

At 31 March 2018, the total membership was 29,073 (2017:
29,462). The scheme’s net asset value as at 31 March 2018 was
HK$67,642,644,000 (2017: HK$61,131,801,000).

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPFS”)

In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Group set up a MPFS by participating in master
trust schemes. HA permanent employees can choose between the
HAPFS and the MPFS while contract and temporary employees are
required to join the MPFS unless otherwise exempted.

The Group’s contributions to MPFS are determined according
to each member’s terms of employment. Members’ mandatory
contributions are fixed at 5% of monthly salary up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per month.

At 31 March 2018, the total membership was 55,741 (2017: 51,307).
During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, total members’
contributions were HK$588,864,000 (2017: HK$549,122,000). The
net asset value as at 31 March 2018, including assets transferred
from members’ previous employment, was HK$9,096,115,000
(2017: HK$7,130,385,000).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise office supplies, hospital
supplies, non-capitalised project expenditure and other
administrative expenses. For the financial year ended 31 March
2018, other operating expenses included an accrual for auditor’s
remuneration of HK$1,950,000 (2017: HK$1,950,000).
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24.

25.

BT (%)

BREERABEE (@)

SENEAEEHARSEEEH 15% °
1 BB B SR (R B AT RO ) e bb R BB AR 7%
FEENM -

W-Z—N\FE=ZF=+—8 t&8H#HE
29,073 BRKE (ZF—+4F : 29,462 %) *
FTEIMEEFEABY 67,642,644,000 7T
(ZZ—+%F : #%61,131,801,000 7T) °

BEEAREE

RiE CREIMERTE ST BED) - SEMA
SEREFE - BRERIARFMEATESR
e - BEREREEEESN[BRE
BRAEEFE KR AERTE]
et RERESR2M[BHEAEEH
2] - BRIFERHR o

SEYRAEATEREE | WH - RIE
FRKENEBIEME o 58 #5861 H
RBEERFA#E% - AT HBE1,600T 5L
B

R-_ZT—NF=ZA=+—8 T8 H&£E
55741 8K E (ZE—+% : 51,307 %) °
EHE-_ T N\F=ZA=+—HILZYHEF
ER - KB R HETEABY 588,864,000
T (=F—+t4F : ¥ 549,122,000 T) °
R_ZE—NF=ZA=+—8 T&8HE
EFE BEKELABUEANEE
A 9 096,115,000 ¢ (ZE—+ 4 :
75 7,130,385,000 7T) °

Ht & ERX

Hih&BMY BERAEAR  BRwE - 3
EAMIEE B REATERS - E=Z—/\
F=ZA=+—RLEZHBFE - Hth&ERA%
BIEEFZEA S A% 1,950,0007T
(ZZ—+F : % 1,950,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

26. Remuneration of Members of the Board and
Five Highest Paid Executives

(@) No Board members are remunerated for the services provided in
the capacity as Board members.

(b) The remuneration of the five highest paid executives, which
comprises basic salaries and other short term employee benefits
and post-employment benefits, and is included in the staff costs for
the year, is as follows:

A S HR 2R MY

26. REREREERESHFITH
AEHME

(a) PAEHEREKREMALIRBEENUKE S
0 he AR F T SR EREN S -

(b) FAMEBEIXAEBEINTUATAERES
FIBAENHME  EFEAERT SR
H b2 HiE B EF R EEH

For the year ended
31 March 2018

HK$'000
BZ 2018 F
Current Position/Name of Executives A3 BHLEFE
BB/ THRABKESR BET T
Chief Executive 1TH#2E, 6,018
Dr Pak Yin LEUNG 21A % %
Director (Cluster Services) B4R 154852 5,618
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG 55 & g &5
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 & o E 48 42 &5 5,335
Dr Che Chung LUK PEGIEEE 4
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) /1.5ERF B A48 ES 5,334
Dr Chi Yuen LO Ei=E
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong East) /& & SR B 48 42 25 5,318
Dr Chor Chiu LAU 2172 $1/88 4
27,623

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration
related to performance.

i TATTERA B YN EEUE KRR T
TERRFH o

For the year ended
31 March 2017

HK$'000
BE2017F
Current Position/Name of Executives A3 HLFE
BB/ THRABKESR BT T
Chief Executive TTIERAEE; 5,995
Dr Pak Yin LEUNG 215 & &
Director (Cluster Services) Bt 48R 154825 5,518
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG 3R B8
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 & PO H 48 42 &5 5,235
Dr Che Chung LUK PEGEEEE &
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon West) J1.3E i 494285 5,235
Dr Sau Ying TUNG EFE &4
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) 1.5E R 4848 25 5,090
Dr Chi Yuen LO EREA
27,073

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration
related to performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

27. Related party transactions

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
include the following:

HA has a number of contracts with the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department (“EMSD”) of the Government for providing
biomedical and general electronics engineering services, electrical,
mechanical, air-conditioning, building services and other services
(e.g. capital and improvement works) to the Group. The amounts
incurred for these services for the financial year ended 31 March
2018 amounted to HK$1,533,192,000 (2017: HK$1,524,899,000).

HA has entered into an agreement with the Government to provide
serving and retired civil servants, their eligible dependants and
other eligible persons with the services and facilities at all public
hospitals and clinics free of charge or at the prevailing rates as
prescribed in the Civil Service Regulations. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2018, revenue foregone in respect of medical
services provided to these persons amounted to HK$424,620,000
(2017: HK$364,405,000). The cost of such services has been taken
into account in the Government’s subvention to the Group.

Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group. It comprises the Chief Executive, Cluster Chief
Executives, Directors and other division heads of the Head Office.

Total remuneration of the key management personnel is shown
below:

B S ER AR M

27.

(b)

(c)

BRI A TR B

SE BB A LPTEMERR Z5A ¢

BEERUERTHETRE Y THENELH
HZEMNSEEREREER—KRETFTIER
BN W =H - BFREAREA
RAE (MEATREERETR) HE_Z
—NE=ZA=1+—"BLz20REENEH
AR % e ) 7158 57885 1,533,192,000 T
(—Z—+4% : B 1,524,899,000 7T) °

BEEREBNIMYT HE ' ARBERER
KRRABE EEEBNRBREMFEE
& AT A B sk IE AT BAKHI AT T W B 4R
HATBR R EMRE K& - BZE
T \F=ZA=+—BHLZHERFE " &
Eat A TATHR ALY BE R AR TS S I 2 e IR
B7EHE 424,620,000 70 (Z T —t4F : B
364,405,000 7T) * ELLfREHERAE B IEE
B EEMHBIA o

TEEIB A B

REBABREARNRAEIRE  HS
REREEEBNAL  ERETRER
AR REEREMFEREMBEE

o

i

TEERASHNHFHEENT

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZE 2018 F BZE20174

3A31ALEE 3A3MIBLEFE

BT T BETT

Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 66,610 64,506
EAXF< MR S E =

Post-employment benefits BiH 14 12 Fl| 6,393 6,338

73,003 70,844

Other significant related party transactions with the Government
include annual recurrent grants, capital subventions (note 21) and
designated funds (notes 19 and 22). Details of transactions relating
to the Group’s retirement schemes are included in note 24.

Outstanding balances with the Government as at 31 March 2017
and 2018 are disclosed in notes 8, 12, 13, 15, 16 and 20. The
current account with a subsidiary, HACM Limited, is disclosed in
note 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B
STATEMENTS

28. Net cash used in operating activities 28. EEEIFTABRESFE

The Group
£8

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
HZE2018 F HE 20175
3B 31 HIEFE 3A31HIFE
BET T BT T
Deficit for the year & &8 (841,025) (1,518,559)
Investment income % & & (243,980) (208,867)
Income transferred from Minor Works Projects Fund (1,202,525) (1,103,964)
#ERANRTREEES ZA
Income transferred from PPP Fund (228,780) (181,712)
ERBANLERIEES ZHA
Income transferred from capital subventions and capital donations (1,068,432) (976,111)
ERAEREERERBE 2 WA
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 25,574 11,307
HEME  WBRIEREREERE
Depreciation and amortisation #72 % & §4 1,042,858 964,804
Increase in death and disability liabilities J£.T- % S 542 F & (£ 40 24,925 34,828
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income JEFEU s OF4>) / 1240 (41,053) 45,994
Increase in inventories 7F &0 (46,733) (29,122)
Decrease in loans receivable J& U &30 2 936 1,304
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable FEWBEFZUR A / (3E0) 46,616 (9,832)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables EL i fEUBEFUR L / (340) 149,479 (68,573)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and prepayments 29,452 (1,633)
Re RFENRERLD / (380)
Increase in creditors and accrued charges f&# A M & £ F 18 hn 143,613 326,373
Increase in deposits received B Y% 4 10 49,776 54,442
Net cash used in operating activities =i /& &1 AR & /558 (2,159,299) (2,659,321)
29. Funds held in trust 29. 5sEE®
At 31 March 2018, Health Care and Promotion Scheme of R-ZZE-—NEF=A=+—8 - B (E:E
HK$18,637,000 (2017: HK$25,137,000) was held in trust for the EE A BB ERE B 18,637,000 7T
Government but not included in the financial statements. —T—+4F : B8 25,137,000 7T) HFE R
HIE R B BRI AM B ®REK
A o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B
STATEMENTS

30. Donations from the Hong Kong Jockey Club 30. REEHEESZ =T E
Charities Trust £ By 35 B
During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Hong Kong HE_ZT-\F=ZA=1+—HIEOWBFER
Jockey Club Charities Trust made donations totalling HK$94,042,000 AN BEESGERSEEESKR MR
(2017: HK$100,777,000) to the following institutions: BB % 94,042,000 7t (ZE2—+H5F | B

100,777,000 7T)
HK$'000
BT T
Jockey Club Inpatient Facilities Modernisation Scheme (Various hospitals) 32,429
ESeLRE%LE (TREER)
Queen Elizabeth Hospital ﬁ*ﬂ AR 24,421
Tai Po Hospital A1 28053 15,297
Enhanced Home Renal Replacement Therapy Programme (Various hospitals) 7,254
RIEENEE (T RET)
Replacement of Vehicles for Non-emergency Ambulance Transfer Service (Various hospitals) 5,036
BRI SHEEXRISER (TREER)
United Christian Hospital =& 28 4 226 3,962
Princess Margaret Hospital 3532 2122 3,160
Kowloon Hospital J1LEEZ&Ft 2,145
Wong Tai Sin Hospital &= A%k 338
94,042

The donations were accounted for in the designated donation fund RIEHTEE 2 (F) (ii) FTEk A& 5T EOR « 1885
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f)(ii). AEEREESNA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

A S HR 2R MY

31. Net proceeds from fund raising activites 31. BHEGEANBRBABER
under Public Subscription Permits ("PSP") HOHETEFTHREF
granted by the Social Welfare Department W A
The net proceeds from fund raising activities under PSP granted by BHTt RN FEE A AFERTT I EEE
the Social Welfare Department of the Government during the stated EHRETEFREBAMEFWRALT
period are set out below:

Net
Proceeds
PSP No. HK$'000

Institution AEED Purpose Period Covered  smuy A

L EDET B i RESH AETR

Caritas Medical Centre ~ 2016/117/1 To raise funds for patient services 1/5/2016 - 30/4/2017 58

A& Ef R ARRB ST

Tuen Mun Hospital 2016/144/1  To raise funds for A NER 1/6/2016 - 31/5/2017 9

BRIER (1) Patient benefits/services uses;

TRAREAL / BRI
(1) Health and diseases education;
RERRIRFRHE
(1) Community Services Centre;
HRPRFEH L
(IV) Medical research and development
projects for the betterment of the
community
e BEEnNBE2MR LERIER
Cheshire Home, Shatin ~ 2016/165/1  To raise funds for healthcare services of 1/7/2016 - 30/6/2017 23
DHEREER Cheshire Home Shatin
R BEREKEER B RREER
Prince of Wales Hospital 2016/195/1  To raise funds for healthcare services of the 1/9/2016 - 31/8/2017 161
Charitable Foundation Prince of Wales Hospital
B AT T B8k RER AT T Bl B R AR E K
HEETER
The Pamela Youde 2016/198/1  For enhancing the services of Pamela Youde 1/9/2016 - 31/8/2017 157
Nethersole Eastern Nethersole Eastern Hospital or any other non-profit
Hospital Charitable making hospitals/medical facilities in Hong Kong
Trust HEREILIER AT RS AE K b IR F
RIELIBRATIT KR Ebr | EER bR ARTS
REETES
Bradbury Hospice 2016/218/1  To raise funds for patient care of Bradbury Hospice 16/9/2016 - 15/9/2017 15
HEEESHL RBTEEEPORAEERBER
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 2016/227/1  To raise funds for patient's benefit and 25/9/2016 - 24/9/2017 5
15 =R g B enhancement of hospital services
RAAEH R E B REER
The Princess Margaret  2016/298/1  To raise funds for Princess Margaret Hospital for 26/11/2016 - 25/11/2017 34

Hospital Charitable
Trust

enhancement of patient services quality
REBENERR ARGEZER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

31.

Net proceeds from fund raising activities
under Public Subscription Permits ("PSP")

B S ER AR M

N BHEREANBRELAHER
A RETEFREREE

granted by the Social Welfare Department W A (@)
(Continued)
Net
Proceeds
PSP No. HK$'000
Institution NBER Purpose Period Covered  sgy A
i FTA R B REHE BETr
North District Hospital 2016/310/1  To support North District Hospital in improving 1/12/2016 - 30/11/2017 55
Charitable Foundation the physical and mental health of the public in
tREREEETED the community and to promote health education,
medical education and research
SHFIL R BT s A [ R R B ARE RE - IR AR
BRHE - BEHE AR
Shatin Hospital 2016/312/1  To raise funds for developing patient care of 1/12/2016 - 30/11/2017 ®
b BBt Shatin Hospital
RERD AERRAERREER
The Queen Elizabeth 2016/330/1 Improvement and development of medicine at 1/1/2017 - 31/12/2017 71
Hospital Charitable Queen Elizabeth Hospital
Trust & RERFADABRBERE
PR AR E R
s
Yan Chai Hospital 2017/014/1 To raise funds for hospital services and facilities of 1/2/2017 - 31/1/2018 510
g Yan Chai Hospital
R B AR TS B SR eSS R
Hong Kong Buddhist 2017/023/1 Improvement of patient service of the 1/2/2017 - 31/1/2018 174
Hospital Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital
NGt HEBBHHERRARYE
Grantham Hospital 2017/028/1 To raise funds for improving patient services of 1/2/2017 - 31/1/2018 13
BEMER Grantham Hospital
REEEEHRBIEARBER
Alice Ho Miu Ling 2017/075/1 Improvement of the quality of patient care services of 1/4/2017 - 31/3/2018 54
Nethersole Hospital Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
TR A e ADFT KB h HERBRAYERBITRB A ABREREEER
United Christian Hospital  2017/076/1 To raise funds for service improvement of 1/4/2017 - 31/3/2018 62
E B A B United Christian Hospital
RNEEEHHE B ARG ER
The Hospital Authority 2017/077/1  To raise funds for the Hospital Authority Charitable 1/4/2017 - 31/3/2018 339

Charitable Foundation
BErEEREEES

Foundation in supporting its work to provide direct

fee assistance to needy patients, improve public
healthcare services, support activities of patient
groups, promote health education and develop
volunteer services in Hong Kong
REREBREZESEN  HESHIE - BEHt
BBRARREEEREY RS AHEERE - &
TRABREIES - HEEREHE RBERE TR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

31. Net proceeds from fund raising activities
under Public Subscription Permits ("PSP")

A S HR 2R MY

N BEHERTANBRELAHER
A RETEFTHREF

granted by the Social Welfare Department ' ONCH
(Continued)
Net
Proceeds
PSP No. HK$'000
Institution NEEH Purpose Period Covered  smuy A
i HUREH A REHY EETR
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu 2017/079/1  To raise funds for volunteer services, patient related  1/4/2017 - 31/3/2018 60
Kin Hospitals activities and improvement of the Ruttonjee and
R MBI ER B Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
BRIARSERERE TR - AAENEDE
PR Ak
Castle Peak Hospital 2017/081/1  To raise funds for mental health education activities ~ 1/4/2017 - 31/3/2018 9
=Lk RIS E EEER
Haven of Hope Hospital 2017/082/1 Improvement of patient services and facilities of the  1/4/2017 - 31/3/2018 29
EEERM Haven of Hope Hospital
HEBEBm AR R
Our Lady of Maryknoll 2017/083/1 Improvement of patient service of the 1/4/2017 - 31/3/2018 43
Hospital Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
THER B B BN A RS
Tai Po Hospital 2017/087/1 Improvement of the quality of patient care services 1/4/2017 - 31/3/2018 13
AR of Tai Po Hospital
HERHBRAERRBE R
Queen Mary Hospital 2017/088/1  To raise funds for hospital service enhancement 1/4/2017 - 31/3/2018 43

RE BB RS B

The net proceeds received from fund raising activities under PSP
were accounted for in the designated donation fund in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BF R5 R AR B
STATEMENTS

32. Commitments 32. &
At 31 March 2018, the Group and HA had the following commitments: RZE-—N\F=A=+—H SEEKEER
BIAT 2 A -
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAREE

The Group 58

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

20183 A 31 H 20173 A 31 H

BT T BT T

Authorised but not contracted for & #E{E R T2 4 6,233,590 6,086,787
Contracted for but not provided & 5132418 K& & 8,801,278 5,937,837
15,034,868 12,024,624

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

2018 £3 A 31 H 20173 A31H

BT T BT

Authorised but not contracted for BB ARFT224) 6,233,590 6,086,724

Contracted for but not provided & 51224718 A& B 8,801,278 5,937,813

15,034,868 12,024,537

The capital commitments disclosed above include both costs to be BIRMEE 2 (g) FTALAYERTECR - LilFr5l)

capitalised under property, plant and equipment or intangible assets WEREEBEREENMENZE -« #ER

and also costs which are to be charged to the statement of income BENEREERA  ARITHERABRZ L
and expenditure in accordance with the accounting policy set out in HROAX ©

note 2(g).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

32.

(b)

33.

34.

35.

36.

Commitments (Continued)

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2018, the Group and HA had commitments for future
minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

A S HR 2R MY

32.

(b)

AL (&)

LEREAE

R-ZB-N\F=A=+—8 £EKEBER
BRIEN THIREZ BN T £ EHEE
ZARIREABNS FORSE

The Group and HA
FEREER

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000
2018 £ 3 A 31 H 20173 A 31 H
BT T BT
Buildings £
Within one year —5 R B 54,980 48,967
Between one and five years —Z= A F R E 87,767 116,334
Beyond five years #83f T F Hijm - 4,600
142,747 169,901
Equipment % {&
Within one year —4 A Hin 10,388 10,388
Taxation 33. BiIE
No taxation is provided as HA is exempt from taxation under the BEERE(EREEBGO) EBREHT
Hospital Authority Ordinance. B S AE R BT o
Contingent liabilities 34. FAREE
Adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements FEETHE i R AR B RB R VAR - AR PR
after reviewing the status of outstanding claims and taking into JFEEER  WHMBWmEREELEHAOE
account legal advice received. 1o
Comparative figures 35. kB EHF
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to ETHEBFEEF L URHEAFEZ
the current year’s presentation. ZHAH -
Approval of financial statements 36. MR ABER

The financial statements were approved by members of HA on
20 September 2018.
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Appendix 1
B 5% 1

Membership of the Hospital Authority

EREERKE

No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2017-18

Name 2017-18 £ E Committee participation in 2017-18*

i HESHMARRE  2017-18 FESRNEAR

Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP 12/15 Chairman of plenary meetings, EC and EEC

Chairman, HA ERAE (TRZESRESEERTLREELR

RECHE

B e B EERE

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS 13/15 Chairman of HRC; Member of EC, EEC and MSDC;

PRESR L HGC Chairman of Tuen Mun Hospital
ANBREZEESER TREES BREERBEET
LBERGERZEGKE  BPFERECEESER

Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP 15/15 Member of MSDC

Director of Health EERBEREZEEGKE

FRZEEREE

HEEZR

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP 9/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of

BREK S Prince of Wales Hospital
ANBREEE  BEEBRBERZEESERFRREFES
e2XE BRI EREAEEENE

Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP N/A# Member of ARC, MSDC (both from 1.7.2017 to

Acting Permanent Secretary for Food i A 23.7.2017), EEC, and FC

and Health (Health) B hkEAREREZE S BERBERZES (4H

(from 1.7.2017 to 23.7.2017) 20177 A1HZE7T A23H)  RREFREZEGR

PRIBRETE PHEEERE

EERYREFEBEEIWNER (F4E)

(R2017F7A1HZ7AH23H)

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching 13/15 Member of ITGC and MTB; Chairman of HRAC; HGC

EEE Lt Member of Shatin Hospital
BARERBECEZEEERTRRIZZEGKE A5
EBEFEAZESER  PHBEREGEEEKE

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP 10/15 Member of ITGC and MTB (both from 2.5.2017)

T3 X ST BARRRBEREZEGRPARIZEEZESKE (A
2017 € 5 A2 HiE)

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP 12/15 Vice-Chairman of FC; Member of MTB; HGC Chairman

IBERSEE of Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
MR EGRIERE  PRFIFZEGKE  RERALERX
AT =B EREEGEE

Mr HO Wing-yin 15/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of

Ak E kA North District Hospital

ANERZBE  BERBERZBEERTREIEZRE

BKE  tEBREERAZEGKE

# There was no plenary meeting held between 1.7.2017 and 23.7.2017
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Appendix 1
B 5% 1

No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2017-18

Name 2017-18 £ & Committee participation in 2017-18*
s HEZEAERE 2017-18 FESHNES S
Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP 13/15 Chairman of ARC; Member of EC, EEC and SSDC; HGC
B e Chairman of Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
B REREBELZESER {TB@A g BOEER
BLZEeRERBERZESNKE BirEazk
BEExE
Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS 15/15 Chairman of FC; Member of ARC, EC, EEC, MSDC and
HigxigL SSDC; HGC Chairman of Queen Elizabeth Hospital
Eﬂ’zé,@\ ®ERE %;ﬁr&ﬂ ERLZES TBHZE
- BREEREREE Fﬂ&ﬁ"z%)ﬁé,\ gRIE
HE@"R%‘)Zé,\ 2gKE8 R EERELRZEEER
Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi 8/15 Member of HRC and MTB
BiGREL T ANBREZEEGRPRGELZEEKE
Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP 15/15 Vice-Chairman of SSDC (from 1.12.2017); Member of
WaELE ARC, MTB, and SSDC (up to 30.11.2017); HGC Member
of Shatin Hospital
XERGERZEQREIEF (A 2017 F 12 H 1 HEE):
Bt RREREREZEE S  hREEZEGRIERGE
REZEEKE (BBZ 2017 11 H30H) : P HBKE
BEEEKE
Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS 14/15 Member of HRC, FC, MTB, MSDC and SSDC (all from
MERTEE 23.4.2017)
ANBREES  WBEEE  PAREZEE  BE
fREEREZEEE R ERBERZEGKE (242017
F4 H23A#)
Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP 11/15 Member of MTB, PCC and SSDC; HGC Member of
Bzt Tseung Kwan O Hospital
RAKRIEEZEE®  ARBRFEEGRIERBEREZE
gKE  BERERENEEGKE
Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin 15/15 Vice-Chairman of ARC; Member of FC, ITGC and MTB,;
THRBELE HGC Member of Castle Peak Hospital and Siu Lam
Hospital
Bt hEREREZEESSRIFE  MBEEE BB
RBEREZEGRFRRIELZESKE « FILEK &)
BEREREEEKE
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP 15/15 Vice-Chairman of MSDC; Member of HRC and MTB;
1R Chairman of KRAC; HGC Member of Tseung Kwan O
Hospital
ERERGERZESCEIEFE  ANBREZEEGRFREK
Hi,\aﬁka\ NEEHZAZESERE  KERER
=) =14
Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP 14/15 Member of MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Queen

REBHI

Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital
BERBERZEGLTRAREZESGNKE  BES
REBEBREREZEGKE

5
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Bt & 1

No. of plenary meetings

attended in 2017-18

Name 2017-18 £ & Committee participation in 2017-18*
e HEZBAERE 2017-18 FEBENESS*
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP 15/15 Chairman of ITGC; Member of EC, EEC, FC, HRC,
Chief Executive, HA MSDC, MTB, SSDC, all RACs and HGCs
RAEEE BABERBERZESEE  THREES  BEoREE

Bl B 1 BT AR E

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, 9/15
SBS, JP

DEZRHI

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP 3/15
EERELT

Mr Patrick NIP Tak-kuen, JP 4/4

Permanent Secretary for Food and
Health (Health)

(up to 30.6.2017)

by Bl
RYREEREENER (FE)
(= 201746 30 H)

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS 9/15
HEsR1A S A
Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, JP 11/11

Permanent Secretary for Food and
Health (Health)
(from 24.7.2017)

Hemzt

RYREEBETWER (FE)

(12017 £ 7 F 24 H#E)

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP 8/15
FrEEEE

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP 11/15
S =

RELZB®  PBEES ANBRZE®  BERE
BRZBE TRAREZBE  XERBEERZEE -
EREFAZEENEEREAREEKE

Vice-Chairman of PCC; Member of MSDC and MTB;
HGC Member of North Lantau Hospital
ARRFEEGRIER  BERBERZEGRTRE
BLZEeKE  ERIEBEREZE|KE

Member of MTB and SSDC; HGC Member of Alice Ho
Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
PARBRZEGRXERBERZEGNE « HEKMA
PP EBELERZEGKE

Member of EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC (all up to
30.6.2017)
ZSREREREY  UBKERES ANERZES
BREBGEREZEGRIERBEREZEGHE (REE
20176 A308)

Chairman of PCC; Vice-Chairman of MTB; Member of
ARC (up to 21.12.2017), EC, EEC, FC and HRC; HGC
Member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

ABRFEEGER  FRREZEGEIEF Btk
EfsEREZES (22017 F 12 21 H) - {THZE
g BEoRERBLEEE  UBEEERANEREZE
BXE  RE=LRZERELEEGKE

Member of EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC (all from
24.7.2017)
ZERERELES  UKEEE® -  ANWBRZE® -
EERBERZESRIERBEREZESKE (24
20177 A 24 HEE)

Chairman of SSDC; Member of EC, EEC and FC;
Member of NRAC; HGC Chairman of Tin Shui Wai
Hospital; HGC Member of Tseung Kwan O Hospital

NERBERZESLIR  (THEES EIRERE
ZEGRUBEEGKE  TARHEAEZEGNKE ¢
FKEBREELRZESER  HERBRERZEGKE

Member of ARC, FC, HRC and MTB; HGC Member of
Hong Kong Eye Hospital and Kowloon Hospital
FREAREREZES S  MBEEE  ANBREER
RPRIRRES K E  BERMBERRNEERKER
ZEgXE
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No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2017-18

Name 2017-18 £ & Committee participation in 2017-18*

®E HEZEAERH 2017-18 FEBENESS*

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP 15/15 Chairman of MSDC and MTB; Member of ARC, EC,

EERRIFEHIR EEC and HRC; HGC Chairman of Shatin Hospital
ERRGERZEGRTRRIFZEGER - |t KA
MEBEEE  (THEEE ESEEREESSRA
NEREEEKE  YHERELRZEESER

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai 11/15 Member of ARC and FC; HGC Member of Kwai Chung

HEREE Hospital and Princess Margaret Hospital
Bt hREREREZEGRVBEZEENKE BB R
BBk EREZEgKE

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong 11/15 Member of HRC, ITGC, MSDC, MTB, PCC, SAC and

BB E SSDC; Chairman of NRAC; HGC Member of North
District Hospital and Tuen Mun Hospital
ANBREE S  EABRRBEREZE S  BERE
BERZEE HPAREEZEEE®  ARKRFEES BB
FRZEGRIERBERZEGHKE  TAREKN
ZEeER  MERERAEMIERERZEGKE

Ms Carol YUEN Siu-wai, JP 13/15 Member of FC and MSDC

Deputy Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury
RANEmL

IS ER RIETS B I & =

MBLZEERBEREERZEEKE

*Note

Board Members are not separately remunerated. They discharge the role of

3
RERETEEINNS - ABREBBEDE

governance of the Authority through formulating policies and directions and S FHIETHGE /K ERESEBH T E

overseeing executive performance at Board meetings, as well as taking part in
steering the work of various committees of the Authority including:

ARC - Audit and Risk Committee

EC - Executive Committee

EEC - Emergency Executive Committee

FC - Finance Committee

HGC - Hospital Governing Committee

HRAC - Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee
HRC - Human Resources Committee

ITGC - Information Technology Services Governing Committee
KRAC - Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee
MSDC - Medical Services Development Committee
MTB - Main Tender Board

NRAC - New Territories Regional Advisory Committee
PCC - Public Complaints Committee

SAC - Staff Appeals Committee

SSDC -

Supporting Services Development Committee

o 77~
B ARIEEEEREEEARNIE  —
R2REERNES -
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Appendix 2(a)
Fisz 2 (a)

Hospital Authority Committee Structure
BEREERZEEERE

Hospital Authority Board

BEREERAE

\4

v

Regional Advisory
Committees
EEFAEER

Hospital Governing
Committees

BEEf= 1 0ACK B &
BIRERZES

Audit and Risk
Committee

B REARERZES

Main Tender Board
FRIZIEZES

Emergency Executive
Committee
ESEEREERES

Medical Services
Development Committee

BERGEREES

Executive Committee
THZES

Public Complaints
Committee
NEWFEES

Finance Committee

FBLES

Staff Appeals Committee
BELHEES

Human Resources

Supporting Services

Committee Development Committee
ANEREZES TERGEREZES
Information

Technology Services
Governing Committee
BB REE A

Z8%®

Note: Membership lists of various committees are listed in Appendices 3, 4 and 5.
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Hospital Authority Executive Structure

B EERITHRERE

Appendix 2(b)
Fid 2 (b)

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP Chief Executive

TTE AR,

Hong Kong East
Cluster

BBEREREHA

Hong Kong West
Cluster

B REERHA

Kowloon Central
Cluster

NEEP EE PR B AT

Kowloon East
Cluster

NhEEREREA

Kowloon West
Cluster

N EEF BR PR B AT

New Territories
East Cluster

SRR B A

New Territories
West Cluster

Clusters B8

REBEBE
\/

\/

Dr LAU Chor-chiu, MH, JP

Cluster Chief Executive

LIRS B pes

Dr LUK Che-chung Ciuster Chief Executive
PEEBELE pmoes

Dr Albert LO Chi-yuen Cluster Chief Executive
EXEEE posz

Dr CHUI Tak-yi, JP
Cluster Chief Executive (up to 6.8.2017)
hEREE
HABMRE (B Z 2017 F8H6H)

Dr TOM Kam-tim
Cluster Chief Executive (from 7.8.2017)

HASKEES (2017 8 A7 HAE)

Dr Nancy TUNG Sau-ying, MH
Cluster Chief Executive (up to 21.4.2017)?

EFERE

B (822017 F4H218)2

Dr Doris TSE Man-wah
Deputising Cluster Chief Executive (from 22.4.2017 to 31.7.2017)
Cluster Chief Executive (from 1.8.2017)

N EEE
IR A4 (2017 F4 A22HZE7A31H)
HApAEEs (R 2017F8 A1 HAE)

Dr LO Su-vui Cluster Chief Executive
BRREBYE e

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing
Cluster Chief Executive (up to 1.1.2018)
EREEE
HEses (= 2018F1H1H)

Head Office AN EE

Dr CHEUNG Wai-lun, JP
Director (Cluster Services) (up to 29.12.2017)"

REBEL
BABRR S A EL (B2 2017 F 12 H29H )

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing
Deputising Director (Cluster Services) (from 2.1.2018)
B
RIS IR 5488 (1 2018 F 1 A2 HAE)

Dr LIU Shao-haei
Deputising Director (Quality & Safety) (up to 30.6.2017)

Z>mEE
RIEEER L2 HEE (B Z2017F6 H30H)

Dr Simon TANG Yiu-hang
Deputising Director (Quality & Safety) (from 1.7.2017 to 1.1.2018)

WRBEL
RIEEERLTRHE (F2017F7HA1HE20186F1H1H)

Dr Rebecca LAM Kit-yi
Deputising Director (Quality & Safety) (from 2.1.2018 to 25.2.2018)

MEEEBE
RIBEERLT2ME (H20184F 1 A2HE20184F2A25A)

Dr CHUNG Kin-lai
Director (Quality & Safety) (from 26.2.2018)

friedid s
BXRLEHAEL (B2018 462 A 26 HE)

Dr Libby LEE Ha-yun Director (Strategy & Planning)
TERBLE sraRes

Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi
Director (Finance) (up to 31.8.2017)
MLt

B AEE (B Z 201748 A31H)
Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu
Director (Finance) (from 1.9.2017)

PR 22 £
488 (1201769 A 1 AAE)

Ms Margaret CHEUNG Sau-ling

Head of Corporate Services

RFRLZ L wisspzs

Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai Head of Human Resources
TEBEEBE ArEErE

577G B B B 4 Dr Simon TANG Yiu-hang
Deputising Cluster Chief Executive (from 2.1.2018) Dr CHEUNG N g ai-tseun g
HREBEE Head of Information Technology and Health Informatics
RIBRHAIAAE (52018451 A2 ARE) RBRABE sanppssEars
Note: it

1. Dr CHEUNG Wai-lun’s last day of duty was 29.12.2017. His last day of service was

31.3.2018.

2. Dr TUNG Sau-ying’s last day of duty was 21.4.2017. Her last day of service was

31.7.2017.

1. REMBEANZEIEBR 2017 F 12 A29 B » £IHR
2018 %53 A 31 B5ekt »

2. EFEBAEMNREIFEARZ2017F 4 A 21 8 EEHR

201747 A 31 B4 -
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Membership and Terms of Reference of Functional Committees
HEEZEENERBESEE

Audit and Risk Committee
EiTREREEZEES

Membership List

MERE

Chairman Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP
Vice-Chairman Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin

BERE FHRB &S

Members Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

RE HEXE L
Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
WERE
Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS (up to 21.12.2017)
MESRE S (B E 2017 F 12 A 21 H)
Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP
it
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
TR AR
Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai
BEREE
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2017)
KRR E (BE2017F 11 A30H)
Ms Wendy YUNG Wen-yee
REHERL

In attendance Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive

SIE RIEBEE 1THAES
Mr Patrick NIP Tak-kuen, JP (up to 30.6.2017)
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
BIEEEE (BZE2017F6 A30H)
RYRFEREEWER (FE)
Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP (from 1.7.2017 to 23.7.2017)
Acting Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
BRIZELE (2017 F7A1HZ7H23H)
EERYREEBEENER (FE)
Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, JP (from 24.7.2017)
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
WEtet (B 2017 7 H24 H#E)
RYREFEREEWER (FE)
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Terms of Reference

Exercise an active oversight of the internal audit function to ensure

that its:

(a) mandate, resources and organisational status are appropriate;

(b) plans and activities are adequate to provide systematic
coverage of the internal control and risk management systems
put in place by the Management; and

(c) findings are actioned appropriately and timely;

Recommend the appointment of the external auditor and the audit

fee to the Board, endorse any non-audit services to be provided by

the external auditor, and consider any questions of resignation or
dismissal;

Consult with the External Auditor on all relevant matters including

the:

(a) nature and scope of the audit;

(b) audited financial statements and the audit opinion;

(c) management letter and management’s response; and

(d) matters of which the External Auditor may wish to draw
attention;

Gain reasonable assurance on the completeness, accuracy, and

fairness of audited financial statements, including appropriateness

of accounting policies and standards, adequacy of disclosures and
significant audit adjustments (in collaboration with the Finance

Committee);

Oversee the effectiveness of systems for risk management and

internal control, including to:

(a) monitor the implementation and effectiveness of Hospital
Authority’s Organisation-wide Risk Management (ORM) policy
and strategy;

(b) review and approve changes to the components of the ORM
framework;

(c) review reports on the organisation-wide risk profile and
significant risk issues reported to it by the Chief Executive; and

(d) monitor Hospital Authority’s financial and administrative
control processes, including those designed to ensure the
safeguarding of resources and operational efficiency, through
the results of internal and external audit;

Oversee the processes implemented by the Management for

monitoring:

(a) compliance with pertinent statutes and regulations;

(b) compliance with Hospital Authority’s Code of Conduct;

(c) effectiveness of controls against conflicts of interest and fraud;
and

(d) effectiveness of Hospital Authority’s whistleblowing mechanism.

Note : Although the functions of the Audit and Risk Committee cover a

wide area, matters that are of a pure clinical nature (such as medical
ethics) are not within its purview.

Appendix 3
Bt 3
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Focus of Work in 2017-18

In 2017-18, the Committee met eight times to exercise active oversight of
internal audit function of HA, considered matters related to the audit of HA's
financial statements, and oversaw the effectiveness of risk management
and internal controls at HA in accordance with the Terms of Reference of
the Committee.

In monitoring the effectiveness of HAs internal audit function, the
Committee received from Chief Internal Auditor quarterly progress reports
on audit results on HA's operational areas. The discussions focused on
audit conclusions, major audit observations and corresponding follow-up
action plans of the management. Key internal audits considered by the
Committee included “Management of Waiting Time for Cancer Services”,
“Management of On-loan Equipment from Vendors and Suppliers”,
“Management of Community Health Call Centre” and “Management of
Waiting Time for Diagnostic Radiology Services”. The Committee also
received updates on the development and implementation of audit
analytics of clinical and non-clinical systems, and deliberated on the key
observations identified. To plan ahead for 2018-19, the Committee took
part in prioritising areas for internal audits and endorsed the Internal Audit
Plan.

On the audit of financial statements, the Committee reviewed and endorsed
HA's draft audited financial statements for 2016-17 in a joint meeting with
the Finance Committee. The Committee also considered reports from
the external auditor on the 2016-17 internal control matters, the 2017-18
financial statement audit work plan and the results of preliminary audit risk
assessment.

In respect of risk management, the Committee oversaw the effectiveness
of HA's organisation-wide risk management systems implemented across
HA. Specifically, the Committee reviewed HA's corporate overall risk
profile and mitigation action plans consolidated from individual functional
risk reports each reviewed by the relevant functional committee. During
the year, the Committee also deliberated on risk management reports
on specific areas, including HA's macro-financial risk, cybersecurity risks,
medication risks, winter surge risks, major capital works risks, manpower
shortage risks and production capacity of laundry and patient catering
services. The Committee also received a consultancy study report on
risk management of clinical public-private partnership programmes, and
annual reports on compliance with HA related ordinances and the handling
of whistleblowing cases.

As authorised by the Board, the Committee held two joint meetings with
the Executive Committee to handle HA's responses to the Director of
Audit’'s report on Management of Public Hospital Projects. During the
year, the Committee received a progress report on the implementation
of the recommendations of the Director of Audit’s report on HA's Drug
Management.
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Executive Committee
THEES

Membership List

MERE

Chairman Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP

EE RECHIEE

Member Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS

RE BREE &

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP
EmRALEE

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

HiEXE L

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIEBEE 1THAH

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
MEERTE 584

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FrEERE

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP

B REHR

Terms of Reference

1. Consider key matters and overall policies and directions on
long-term strategy and planning, risk management, corporate
governance, performance management and succession planning,
and facilitate the Board in discharging its responsibilities in this
regard;

2. Advise on Board meeting agenda items proposed by the
Management including an annual forward looking agenda and key
matters raised by Functional Committee Chairmen;

&, Serve as a forum for the Hospital Authority Chairman, Functional
Committee Chairmen and the Hospital Authority Chief Executive to
consider major matters relating to the leadership and oversight of
the HA;

4. Advise on changes to Board and Functional Committee structure
and processes including the respective terms of reference; oversee
their annual self-assessments; and advise the Board on the
appointment of chairmen, vice-chairmen and co-opted members of
the Functional Committees;

5. Advise the Board on the organisation structure and functions of the

Hospital Authority Head Office and its Divisions;

Appendix 3
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6. Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following staff
matters:

(a) advise the Board on the appointment, remuneration changes,
contract variation of the Chief Executive;

(b) advise the Board on the appointment of Cluster Chief
Executives and Directors of Divisions;

(c) approve contract renewal, remuneration changes and contract
variation as well as lateral transfer / job rotation of Cluster Chief
Executives and Directors of Divisions;

(d) approve the appointment, contract renewal, remuneration
changes and contract variation as well as lateral transfer / job
rotation of Hospital Chief Executives and Heads of Divisions;
and

(e) review the performance of Chief Executive, Directors, Heads of
Division and Cluster Chief Executives;

7. Convene as the Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) in
accordance with Hospital Authority’s Emergency Contingency Plan
(supplemented by a senior Food & Health Bureau official when
meeting as EEC).

Focus of Work in 2017-18

In 2017-18, the Committee met nine times to discuss and consider key
matters and corporate policies and directions of HA. Pursuant to the
Board’s leading and managing role on HA, the Committee continued to
play a key role in overseeing and monitoring the implementation of the
Hospital Authority Review Action Plan, including the development of
a refined population-based model to inform resource allocation. Other
strategic matters considered by the Committee included the formulation
of HA Budget and Annual Plan for 2018-19, preparatory work for the
proposed Chinese Medicine Hospital by the Government, and the Report
of the Independent Panel on Review of Sentinel Event/Serious Untoward
Event Policy.

The Committee discussed and determined a wide range of matters
concerning HA's talent management, which included the appointment and
remuneration matters of senior executives at HA Head Office and clusters,
career posting and succession of senior executives, and reports on staff
complaints against senior executives.

The Committee regularly reviewed the succession planning in the
Board’s committees, and other membership matters relating to Hospital
Governing Committees (HGCs) and Regional Advisory Committees. It
received an annual summary report on activities and feedbacks of HGCs.
The Committee also discussed the governance issues and improvement
measures relating to the HA Provident Fund Scheme.

As authorised by the Board, the Committee also held two joint meetings
with the Audit and Risk Committee to handle HA's response to the Director
of Audit’s report on HA's Management of Public Hospital Projects.

The Committee regularly advised on agendas of Board meetings proposed
by the management. During the year, the Committee also considered
and endorsed the revised form for self-assessment of the Board and its
committees for continuous improvement.
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Bt 3
Emergency Executive Committee
EREERERES
Membership List
MERE
Chairman Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP
R (In his absence, the Emergency Executive Committee chairmanship should be elected among its
standing members)
R
(EETER - BREERELE eI BRE HEKSFEL)
Member Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
RE PRE R L

Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))

Acting Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health) (from 1.7.2017 to 23.7.2017)
BRIBESELE

[(RRRYREEREFWER (FL)]

[BEERYREFERFEENER (FE) (2017 F7A1HET7THA23H)]

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP

BRALE

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
Higx st

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
(In his absence, the Deputising CE)
RIEBEE TTHEH

(FTBAEHTIER - AT TIAREL )
Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
MEERTE ST 4

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
ERYES= 0o

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP

Rl R

Note: The Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) will automatically be ~ #F: EHEAEEASH - HE2EFEEHERKE
called into action when the HA activates the Tier-three Strategic B0k T QU P E R X%?’Y‘E’Jlﬂiﬁ&ﬂ
Response to a major incident, which is defined as an incident with (S2)HESRAEE  BERAMBE=
prolonged and territory-wide implications, such as the Serious Level REGEE - BoEFREE S GRIRRM: ﬁf’lf
(S2) or Emergency Level Response to influenza pandemic.

Appendices &% 127



Appendix 3
Pt 3

Terms of Reference

BiEsE

To act for the Hospital Authority Board and exercise its powers and

functions, including:

(a) altering, amending or overriding existing Hospital Authority
policies, standards, guidelines and procedures; and

(b) establishment of sub-committees or task forces to tackle
particular matters at hand.

To identify the objectives and assess the risks facing Hospital

Authority in emergency situation;

To approve the strategies and policies for managing the emergency

formulated by the Hospital Authority Central Command Committee,

and monitor implementation progress in all HA hospitals and

REBREER(BER) KEE - WiTHE

HE RBEE - 815

(a) HIREBERHKEK « 12X - B3| RIEF
EHER - BRI ER &

(b) RYNMAZESKFH/NAKRIELE
HIF o

AREEREEHMEZBEN  EH B ERTM

[2Bg

HZEERTREEZESHMHTNES

EERBEMAL  YERMEBERBRK

HERNITHE

institutions;

4. To coordinate activities of the other Hospital Authority committees

including Hospital Governing Committees;

5. To ensure effective communication of clear and concise messages
to key stakeholders, including staff, patients, Government and the

public; and

6. To be accountable to the Authority Board and the making of regular
reports to Hospital Authority Members as soon as practicable.

Focus of Work in 2017-18

No meeting was convened in 2017-18.
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Finance Committee
MREEE

Membership List

MEEE

Chairman Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

EE HiExE+

Vice-Chairman Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP

BlERE HERLE

Member Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP

24=1 (representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
Acting Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health) (from 1.7.2017 to 23.7.2017)
PRIEE T4
[(RRRYREEREFWER (FL)]
[BEERYREERFEEANER (FE) (H2017F7A1HBET7THA23H)]
Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS (from 23.4.2017)
WWESRSEE (12017 F 4 A 23 AE)

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FREEE

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIEBEE TTHEH

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS

i S o

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
ERYES=otea

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP

B o

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

i vt

Ms Carol YUEN Siu-wai, JP /

Miss Bella MUI Bun-ngar (up to 3.9.2017) /
Ms Candy NIP Kai-yan (from 4.9.2017)
(representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)
wNEEE/

iRt (BE2017F9H3H)/
BB L (F2017F 9 A4 H#E)
[REAEEZREB RBHR ]

Terms of Reference BEEE

1. Advise and make recommendations on the financial aspects of the 1. FEREEBEEEREEIMEF T EHE
Hospital Authority Corporate Plan and Annual Plan; WIS AE - IREE R REHEE

2. Advise and make recommendations on the financial planning, 2. HEREEBMYKAE - RE KB - &
control, performance, monitoring and reporting aspect of the RREFREFAE - RHEERRIELER
Hospital Authority;

3.  Advise on policy guidelines for all financial matters, including 3. FFTEMKER @ BFERE X RERRH

investment, business and insurance; eS| - IRHER

4. Advise and make recommendations on the resource allocation 4. FERENEERIEHEE R MIEHES
policies;

5.  Advise and recommend to the Hospital Authority on the financial 5. BhEREIERMITERE (KEZ R AEEZ)
statements (audited and unaudited) of the Hospital Authority; ME B RIREE R RIEH &
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6. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund
Scheme on financial and control related matters and make
recommendations to the Hospital Authority where appropriate;
Monitor the financial position of the Hospital Authority; and
Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management
and risk mitigation relevant to finance operations and other
relevant areas contributing to the financial risk profile of the
Hospital Authority.

Focus of Work in 2017-18

In 2017-18, the Committee met seven times to assist the Board in ensuring
proper stewardship and effective use of public funds through making
recommendations to the Board on various finance related matters for the
Authority.

In support of the corporate strategy and policy development of HA, the
Committee deliberated on the prototype and potential application of the
refined population-based model to inform resource allocation. The model
was developed through an external consultancy as per the HA Review
Action Plan, and the consultant’s final report was subsequently approved
by the HA Board in September 2017. The Committee also examined HA's
medium-term financial projection for 2018-19 to 2022-23 under a two-
pronged approach, namely (a) a population-based approach (demand-
driven) to assess the change in public’s need for hospital services and the
corresponding change in HA's recurrent funding requirement to support
daily operation; and (b) a capacity-based approach (supply-driven) to
project HA's operating expenditure. This medium-term financial projection
facilitated liaison with the Government on recurrent subvention to HA.

Dovetailed with HA's annual service and resource planning process, the
Committee examined the proposed 2018-19 HA budget and resource
allocation. For HA's insurance programme, the Committee endorsed the
procurement approach and direction for 2018-19. With the assistance of
its Treasury Panel (TP), a subcommittee formed under the Committee
to advise on HA's treasury planning, management and operations, the
Committee considered matters relating to HA's investment and treasury
functions. On accountability reporting and monitoring of HA's financial
position, the Committee reviewed and endorsed HA's draft audited
financial statements for 2016-17 in a joint meeting with the Audit and
Risk Committee. The Committee also considered the 2016-17 audited
financial statements / accounts for a number of designated programmes
undertaken by HA, including the Electronic Health Record Programme
Development, the Samaritan Fund, the Community Care Fund Medical
Assistance Programmes, the HA Charitable Foundation, the minor works
under the Capital Works Reserve Fund Head 708 Subhead 8083 MM and
the HA Public-Private Partnership Fund. The 2016-17 Operation Report of
the HA Provident Fund Scheme was received by the Committee in a joint
meeting with the Human Resources Committee.
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On HA's financial performance, the Committee received monthly financial
reports and considered a mid-year financial review together with the
unaudited financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2017.
The Committee also considered matters relating to key financial
performance indicators, waivers and write-offs of hospital fees and
charges, and debt management. The Committee reviewed the results of
the Finance Organisation Review (Phase 2), Annual Work Plan of the
Finance Division and the proposed key strategic areas for 2018-19. In
accordance with the HA organisation-wide risk management framework,
the Committee reviewed the effectiveness of risk mitigation actions taken
in the past year on finance aspects, and proactively assessed key financial
risks anticipated for 2018 and considered corresponding action plans.

The Committee received regular progress reports from TP, and approved
appointment of TP membership.
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Human Resources Committee
ANEREZES

Membership List

REEE
Chairman Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
EE PR R 5T A4
Member Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
ME FRERK s

Mr HO Wing-yin

AR E kA4

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi
ERiFRzEL LT

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS (from 23.4.2017)

MR LE (12017 64 F 23 HEE)
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
TR

Miss Linda LEUNG

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))

REBUL
[(RERBRYREEREEINER (FE)]
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIABBRE TTHAEE

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS

hsRiE A

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP
EmaFat

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP

E @R

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BOKESRE

Terms of Reference

1.

Advise on manpower planning;

Advise on staff training and development matters;

Advise, review and make recommendations on human resources
policies and related issues;

Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority
on the terms and conditions of employment for staff;

Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority
on staff pay awards and overall staffing structure;

Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority
on any other staff related matters;

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to human resources management;

Monitor the performance of the Hospital Authority Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes and make recommendations to the
Hospital Authority as and when necessary; and

Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund
Scheme on member and communication related matters and make
recommendations to the Hospital Authority where appropriate.
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Focus of Work in 2017-18

In 2017-18, the Committee met six times to discuss and consider various
human resources (HR) matters of HA.

In line with HA's strategic goal to attract and retain staff, the Committee
considered and advised on a wide range of HR management issues.
The Committee endorsed measures to restore the annual increment
mechanism for addressing the increment issue on promotion to another
post for employees joining HA on or after 15 June 2002. It also endorsed
changes to the administration of HA's sick leave and no pay leave benefits,
having regard to the external consultant’s findings and recommendations
on Validation of Administration of Benefits in HA. The Committee also
updated the provision of subsistence payment to staff on overseas
business travel and overseas training in view of changed external
environment and requirements. Enhancements for progression of Patient
Care Assistant IlIA (In-patient Services) and Operation Assistant IlIB to
help alleviate supporting grades manpower issues, and initiatives for
improving retention of the Executive Assistant Grade staff were endorsed
by the Committee. It approved the overseas recruitment of specialist
doctors at the rank of Associate Consultant under Limited Registration for
the specialty of Cardiothoracic Surgery. It also noted the progress update
on continuation of the additional promotion opportunities for frontline
doctors, as well as the Special Retired and Rehire Scheme which aimed
to rehire suitable serving doctors, nurses, allied health staff and supporting
grades staff upon their retirement or completion of contract to meet HA's
manpower needs.

On the implementation of recommendations of the HA Review, the
Committee received an update on HA's staff communication enhancements
and the follow up actions in response to the HA Staff Survey; commented
on the Human Resources Quality Assurance framework established in
HA; and endorsed the proposed framework for enriching HA Head Office
representation in cluster selection boards.

Staff training and development is one of the key HR strategies. The
Committee gave comments on the talent development strategy of
the Information Technology and Health Informatics Division, and was
updated on the progress of training programmes under the $300 million
Designated Training Fund allocated by the Government in response to
the recommendation of the HA Review. Regarding staffing structure
matters, the Committee noted the management structure of Allied Health
teams in clusters, the progress of the Optometrist Grade Reform, and
commented on the results of Finance Organisation Review (Phase 2),
including the recommended cluster Finance organisation structure and
the related manpower planning. Alignment in appointment practices
for Chiefs of Service/Deputy Hospital Chief Executives and related
succession planning was discussed. The Committee also received regular
reports from the Central Training & Development Committee (CTDC), a
subcommittee formed under the Committee to oversee and advise on the
priorities of resource allocation related to staff training, in response to the
recommendation of the HA Review and approved appointments of CTDC
membership.
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For staff welfare and communication / engagement, the Committee
endorsed in principle the provision of legal support to HA’'s professional
staff, noted the progress in enhancement of staff access to radiological
services, and considered the Annual Report on Staff Complaints. The
Committee supported the 2017-18 annual pay adjustment for HAemployees
for approval by the HA Board. It also considered and discussed the key
findings and recommendations of the consultancy study on occupational
safety and health (OSH) management review, and received the Annual
Report on OSH and Workplace Violence 2016-17.

During the year, the Committee was briefed on the Annual Report on
HA Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. It also received the 2016-17
Operation Report of the HA Provident Fund Scheme in a joint meeting
with the Finance Committee, and reviewed quarterly reports on HR Key
Performance Indicators.

In accordance with the HA organisation-wide risk management framework,
the Committee reviewed the effectiveness of risk mitigation actions taken
on HR front in the past year, and proactively assessed HR risks anticipated
for 2018 and considered corresponding action plans. The Committee also
considered the Independent Commission Against Corruption’s study on
management of overtime work of nursing, allied health and supporting staff.
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Information Technology Services Governing Committee
EANERBERZEER

Membership List
MEEE

Chairman

xFE

Members

K&

Terms

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIEBBE TR

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
HEEL T+

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP (from 2.5.2017)

HX S (2017 5 A 2 HAE)

Mr Daniel LAI, BBS, JP
BT LA

Mr Stephen LAU Ka-men, JP (up to 30.11.2017)

Bl=Ho 4 (= 20174 11 A30 )
Ms Ida LEE Bik-sai (up to 19.3.2018 )
Head of Electronic Health Record Office
TRFEL T (HE2018F3 A 19H)
& REFILFN B R

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin

THREBLE

Hon Charles Peter MOK, JP
EThkHE

Ms Winnie NG, JP (up to 30.11.2017)
hElLt (BE 20174 11 A30 8)
Ir Allen YEUNG Tak-bun, JP
Government Chief Information Officer
1B S A

BT &R e

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BEokERE

of Reference

Approve corporate policies and standards for Information
Technology / Information Systems;

Approve and monitor the overall progress of the implementation of
the Information Technology / Information Systems Strategic Plan;
Approve and monitor the execution of the Information Technology /
Information Systems Annual Business Plan;

Receive recommendations on the priorities for Information
Technology systems development and implementation;

Receive advice from the Information Technology Technical Advisory
Subcommittee;

Receive performance and status reports;

Provide periodic progress report to the Hospital Authority Board;
and

Consider matters relating to risk, risk management and risk mitigation
relevant to Information Technology across Hospital Authority.

B

1. BEBKEER(BER)MWEMRRHR/ EA
%,%E&%ﬁ&%’f

2. BBEMEE/ BARAREE - WEER
BREHmEE

3. BBE pﬂﬂﬁz/,\pﬂ,? RH T FE TIERTE
£ WEREHE)

4, H&&ﬁﬁf‘%ﬁﬂﬂ&% VIR R E M R R
ZIEE

5 B BEMBANMNMEZEENER

. WERBREAMRRSE

7. MEBERASTHRIIMERS K&

8. *%%”é%ﬁuﬂﬂ&%ﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁfaﬂ
AEE&H AAI\ /W%Ho

Appendices & 135



Appendix 3
Pt 3

Focus of Work in 2017-18

In 2017-18, the Committee met four times to discuss various issues relating
to the strategic development of IT/information systems in HA. During this
period, the Committee discussed various strategies and initiatives, in
support of the five-year IT Strategy 2017-2022 (IT Strategy), which laid
out key directions for the IT and Health Informatics Division (IT&HID) to
support the transformation of HA's service provision and uplifting its service
capability. These included the Desktop Strategy; the Talent Development
Strategy; the plan of modernising HA's IT delivery process for improving
the agility and quality of IT deliverables; and the initiative of building HA
Cloud for enhancing the IT services. The Committee also discussed HA's
IT Technology Refresh Strategy for managing the technology cycle of
different IT systems / equipment with a cost-effective plan to mitigate the
risk of impact on HA operations.

The Committee received reports on the key progress of IT transformation
in the aspects of people, process, technology and culture made in 2017-18
and the plan for IT transformation focus for 2018-19. The Committee also
deliberated on HA's strategy for desktop operation system (OS) and client
devices.

On plans to meet the growing demand for IT systems to support the
operation of the organisation, the Committee endorsed the IT Block Vote
Submission for 2018-19 and the IT&HID Annual Work Plan 2018-19
for responding to challenges in continuing existing service delivery
and delivering the major strategic IT-enabled projects and IT&HID’s
transformational initiatives. The Committee also deliberated and endorsed
the plan for HA to provide IT service to develop the Clinical Information
Management System |l Project for the Department of Health as technical
agent. The Committee endorsed the setup of HA Data Collaboration Lab to
provide a secured collaboration platform between HA and external parties
for conducting data innovation projects. The Committee also discussed the
preliminary planning for setting up the HA Data Analytics Platform to identify
useful information that would support the formulation of healthcare policies,
facilitate biotechnological research and improve clinical and healthcare
services in response to the Policy Address announced in October 2017.

To fulfil its overseeing functions, the Committee monitored the
implementation of the work stipulated in the IT&HID Annual Plan by
considering, amongst others, the performance and status reports of
respective IT functions. The Committee also monitored the ongoing efforts
of IT&HID in the development and implementation of the Government’s
eHR Programme for which HA was the technical agent and participated
as a major user of eHR Sharing System and endorsed the draft audited
financial statements related to eHR Programme undertaken by HA
annually. For enhancing performance monitoring process, the Committee
deliberated and supported the plan to review the current set of IT key
performance indicators to better reflect the new IT delivery model and
performance objectives resulted from the implementation of IT Operation
Strategy under the five-year IT Strategy. In addition, the Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of risk mitigation actions taken in the past year,
and assessed IT risks anticipated for 2018 and considered corresponding
action plans.
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The Committee reviewed regular progress reports from the Information % E€JiE HiURIEE N B/ MEZ B e
Technology Technical Advisory Subcommittee (ITTASC), a subcommittee ~ #E % » L/ HEZECBERZZEERPMEA
formed under the Committee to advise on major IT initiatives and IT BRI T EEBEHETNEIBEBARTER - Z8&
technical matters proposed for implementation in HA, and approved  IIitiz/)\AZEE€WKEZAEE °
appointments of ITTASC membership.
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Main Tender Board
hRERERES
Membership List
RERE
Chairman Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
Ed:3 TR AR
Vice-Chairmen Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
e s 1A S A
Mr Lincoln TSO Lai
bt
Ex-officio members Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive (or his nominated representative)
ERAKE RABRE (THABS (1THAEMIEZEAR)
Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu, Director (Finance) (from 1.9.2017) (or her nominated representative)
BRI+ A EE (IBEEXEZERR) (2017 F9 A 1 HEE)
Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi, Director (Finance) (up to 31.8.2017) (or her nominated representative)
BMIE R+ B RE (AR EESEZARR) (BIE 2017 F8 H31H)
Members Two of the following rotating members:
RE UTHEPRURERS :
Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan
PRZEEHIK
Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
PRER T E
Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
PR Se 20X
Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS
BRIAEI1E L
Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
BEFLL

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2017)
BRELLE (HE2017F 11 A30H)

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai

REERE

Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee (from 1.12.2017)
BEFEYIR (B 2017 F12 A1 HEE)

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP (from 2.5.2017)
XS (2017 6 5 A 2 HRE)

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP
ISEBEE

Mr HO Wing-yin

kB4

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi
BRi5RRELT

Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho

R AE R 2R

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
aEE

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS (from 23.4.2017)
BRI (2017 F4 F 23 HE)

138 Hospital Authority Annual Report 2% E# /5 F 3% 2017-2018



Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

B xc&+

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin

THREBRE

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

FEERE

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP

FFEHE

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
R EHIR

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
BRI SEE

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP
RERHI

Mr LO Chung-hing, SBS

EEEEE

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
EEREL

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang

SEWRERE

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP
S e

Mr David YAU Po-wing (up to 30.11.2017)
BFE R (B2 2017 F 11 A 30 H)
Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun (from 1.12.2017)
Bamrt (2017612 A1 H#E)

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BokERE

Terms of Reference

Note:

To consider and approve tenders and contract variations in the
Hospital Authority in accordance with the delegation of authority
limits approved by the Board, including:

(a) To review and assess the recommendations made by the
assessment panel;

(b) To review the procedures and criteria adopted by the
assessment panel in the course of its selection;

(c) To approve the selection made by the assessment panel after
satisfying itself that (a) and (b) are in order and such approval
should be final.

To receive management reporting of acceptance of offer approved

in the Head Office by a Director in exercising Special Authority for

Urgent Direct Purchase.

Under the prevailing Hospital Authority Procurement and Materials
Management Manual approved by the Board, the schedule of
authority limits in respect of the Main Tender Board includes
approval of tender exceeding $1.5 million centrally coordinated by
Hospital Authority Head Office, or exceeding $4.5 million for those
arranged by the clusters / hospitals.
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Focus of Work in 2017-18
The Main Tender Board (MTB) is organised into two Tender Boards

each meeting once a month, with MTB(1) mainly focusing on tenders
for pharmaceutical products and medical consumables; and MTB(2) on

tenders of other subjects (e.g. medical equipment, contract services,

consultancies etc.) In 2017-18, MTB considered some 700 papers
on procurement of various supplies and services with value of over
$1.5 million for HA Head Office, and above $4.5 million for clusters and
hospitals. Tenders for procurement of supplies mainly covered purchases
of pharmaceutical products, medical and laboratory equipment and their
consumables, whereas service tenders were mainly related to hospital

supporting services, maintenance of medical and laboratory equipment,

and information technology systems. Capital works tenders were mainly
concerned with hospital redevelopment projects and minor works
improvements for maintenance of hospital premises.

As a new enhancement initiative, a briefing session was held to facilitate
Members’ understanding of the procurement policies and strategies of
HA and related matters. Prior to the briefing, an “Annual Summary on the
Work of MTB 2016-17" was circulated for Members’ information. It formed
the framework of the briefing session in which topics including prevailing
Delegation of Authority, different procurement channels, risk mitigation

measures, and drugs expenditures and pricing trend, etc. were covered.

The briefing which served as an orientation for new Members and annual
meet up for Members to share their views and comments on the work of
MTB would be held on an annual basis in future.
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Medical Services Development Committee

BRBERRESS
Membership List
MERE
Chairman Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
Ed3 BRI HIR
Vice-Chairman Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
BlEE FFEHIE
Members Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP
24=1 Director of Health
PRZEEREA
HEEER
Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
PR =58 T A
Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
PR o X

Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP (from 1.7.2017 to 23.7.2017)
Acting Permanent Secretary of Health for Food and Health (Health)
BRIBESEE (2017 F7 A1 HE7H238)

FERYREFERFEINER (FE)
Mr HO Wing-yin

Ak E S &

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

HiExiEL

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS (from 23.4.2017)

BRI (12017 F4 F 23 H#E)
Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
R EHIR

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
ZPaBBE TEAEH

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP
REREHE

Mr Patrick NIP Tak-kuen, JP (up to 30.6.2017)
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)

RS (B ZE 20176 A30H)
RYREEDEIWER (FE)

Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, JP (from 24.7.2017)
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)

Heteat (F2017 47 F24 A%E)
RYRFGEBEEWER (FE)

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BEokERAE

Ms Carol YUEN Siu-wai, JP /

Miss Bella MUI Bun-ngar (up to 3.9.2017) /
Ms Candy NIP Kai-yan (from 4.9.2017)

(representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)

=NBrLt/

SRRt (B= 2017469 A3H)/
BHBELZL (BH20174 9 A4 A#E)
[RRIEEBERERBRBR]
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Terms of Reference

Examine, review and make recommendations on the changing
needs of the community in respect of clinical services provided by
public hospitals and institutions;

Advise and make recommendations on the overall policies,
directions and strategies relating to the provision, planning and
development of the public hospitals and related services, having
regard to the availability of technology, staff and other resources
and the need to provide a patient-centred, outcome-focused quality
healthcare service by a knowledge-based organisation;

Consider and make recommendations on the overall priorities for
the planning and development of the public hospitals and related
services in order to ensure an optimal utilisation of available
resources;

Consider, review and make recommendations on any other matters
related to the planning and development of the public hospitals and
related services;

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to medical services development; and
Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following matters:

(a) approve the scope of coverage of the Samaritan Fund, on
the recommendation of the Management Committee of the
Samaritan Fund,

(b) approve the scope of coverage of the Hospital Authority
Public-Private Partnership Fund, on the recommendation of
the Management Committee for the Hospital Authority Public-
Private Partnership (PPP) Fund and Clinical PPP Programmes;
and

(c) approve clinical service plans on specialty services and
redevelopment projects, except those involving decisions on
financial provisions.

Focus of Work in 2017-18

In 2017-18, the Committee met six times to discuss issues relating to
the planning, development and management of clinical services. Along
the corporate strategy and planned future service directions of HA, the
Committee discussed and approved the Clinical Services Plan (CSP)
for the New Territories West Cluster and the Strategic Framework for
Palliative Care. It also considered the high level plan for clinical service
reorganisation of Kowloon Central Cluster and Kowloon West Cluster
(KWC) after re-delineation of cluster boundary and received a briefing on
the preparatory work for the formulation of the CSP for KWC. Further, the
Committee discussed the development of the Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine pilot programme; service provision of 24 - hour intravenous stroke
thrombolysis; mental health service plan for adults; community psychiatric
service; collaboration between Family Medicine and specialties for service
improvement; Community Geriatric Assessment Team end-of-life care
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in residential care homes for the elderly; integrated model of specialist
outpatient (SOP) service through nurse clinics; and services of HA
Community Rehabilitation Service Support Centre after relocation to
Kowloon Hospital site. The Committee was also briefed on the development
of a refined population-based model to inform resource allocation; the
framework and implementation of a pilot programme on drug refill services;
and a pilot project on patient discharge information summary. Besides, the
Committee received briefings on the progress report on the development
of the Hong Kong Children’s Hospital and the proposal of establishing
two new centres of The University of Hong Kong in Grantham Hospital
redevelopment project.

The Committee considered and gave comments on a wide range of clinical
management issues, and approved the proposed new drugs / indications
and medical items to be covered by the Samaritan Fund from 2017-18. The
management also updated the Committee on the extension of medical
fee waiving to older old age living allowance recipients with more financial
needs. In terms of the HA organisation-wide risk management framework,
the Committee monitored clinical risk management through considering
the report on patient service and care which assessed the effectiveness
of mitigation actions taken in the past year as well as the risks anticipated
for 2018 and the planned actions. Other matters considered by the
Committee on clinical governance and quality improvement during the
year included system enhancements on management of service capacity
risks; recommendations of the review report of sentinel events and
serious untoward events policy; mechanism for safe introduction of new
procedure / technology; review of hospital accreditation; and actions for
combating antimicrobial resistance. In response to the recommendations
of the HA Review on service provision as well as quality and safety, the
Committee considered proposals and regular reports on individual
action items, including management of access block problem and

waiting time of SOP clinic and Accident and Emergency (A&E) service.

The Committee also discussed winter surge preparation and clinical
service key performance indicators development and monitoring. It also
noted the update on proposed revision of blood donor deferral policy for
donors with history of men who had sex with men; implication of Private
Health Facilities Bill to medical service managed or controlled by non-HA
institutions in HA premises; and data governance on external requests for
HA data for academic research.

The Committee received progress reports of various clinical programmes,

including the Service Management Report of the Chinese Medicine Centre
for Training and Research; filmless operating theatres project; HA Patient
Experience and Satisfaction Survey on A&E service; and various clinical
Public-Private Partnership Programmes.
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Public Complaints Committee
NBRHFEER

Membership List

RERE
Chairman Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
EE MEERTE ST 4
Vice-Chairman Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP*
BIERE REFHE
Members Dr Jane CHAN Chun-kwong
ME BRE N EE
Mr Raymond CHAN Kwan-tak
BRAEREE
Ms Christine Barbara CHAN So-han, BBS
BRERAZ L
Mr CHAN Wing-kai
BRoKfESE &
Ms Peggy CHING Pui-ki
TR fmBL+

Mr CHOI Chi-sum (up to 30.11.2017)
BEREE (BE2017F 11 H30H)
Rev Dr Andrew CHOI Chung-ho

B2 R FAHED

Dr CHUNG Chin-hung* (from 1.12.2017)
BREREE (B2017F 12 A1 8#)
Mr HO Sau-him

BR Siva

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
PR SEAE

Mr Samuel HUI Kwok-ting

EiaCihabiva

Mr Joe KWOK Jing-keung, SBS, FSDSM
FERRTE

Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS, CSDSM
AR E

Mr Alex LAM Chi-yau

MRER T4

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
B+

Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim*

R A

Dr Agnes LAW Koon-chui, JP
EEREL

Mr Peter LEE Shung-tak, BBS, JP

=

Ms Maggie LEUNG Yee-mei

REmE Rt
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Ms Manbo MAN Bo-lin, MH
MIREL £

Mr Simon MOK Sai-man, MH
SREE

Mr TSE Man-shing, BBS, JP

WE I

Dr WONG Chun-por, JP* (from 1.12.2017)
THERBE (B2017F 1281 HEE)
Mr Paul WU Wai-keung

HAER L

Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP*

BRI5 R4+

Ms Agnes Garman YEH

ESEat

Ms Lisa YIP Sau-wah, JP*
HERELLT

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BokERE

* Panel Chairman

NEEFE

Terms of Reference

The Public Complaints Committee (PCC) is the final complaint

redress and appeal body of the Hospital Authority (“HA”).

The PCC shall independently:

(a) consider and decide upon complaints from members of the
public who are dissatisfied with the response of the HA/
hospital to which they have initially directed their complaints;

(b) monitor HA's handling of complaints.

Pursuant to Para 2 above, the PCC shall independently advise

and monitor the HA on the PCC’s recommendations and their

implementation.

In handling complaint cases, the PCC shall follow the PCC

Complaint Handling Guidelines (Annex) which may be amended

from time to time.

The PCC shall from time to time and at least once a year, make

reports to the HA Board and public, including statistics or raising

important issues where applicable.
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Annex

Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases in the Public Complaints

Committee (“the PCC”)

1. The PCC is an appeal body within the Hospital Authority (“the HA”)
to consider appeals made by the public relating to its services.
Based on its Terms of Reference, the following are guidelines set
by the PCC to facilitate the handling of complaints.

2. The PCC shall not normally handle a complaint:

(a) if the complaint relates to services provided by the HA more
than 2 years before the date of the lodging of the complaint,
unless the PCC is satisfied that in the particular circumstances
it is proper to conduct an investigation into such complaint not
made within that period;

(b) if the complaint is made anonymously and / or the complainant
cannot be identified or traced;

(c) if the complainant has failed to obtain the proper consent of
the patient, to whom the services were provided, in the lodging
of the complaint (this restriction will not be applicable if the
patient has died or is for any reason unable to act for himself
or herself);

(d) if the subject matter of the complaint has been referred to or is
being considered by the coroner;

(e) ifthe complaint relates to a matter for which a specific statutory
complaint procedure exists;

(f) if the complainant or the patient concerned has instituted legal
proceedings, or has indicated that he / she will institute legal
proceedings, against the HA, the hospital or any persons who
provided the services (in any event, the Committee shall not
entertain any request for compensation);

(g) if the complaint relates to dispute over the established policies
of HA, for example fees charging policy of the HA in respect of
its services;

(h) if the complaint relates to an assessment made by a medical
staff pursuant to any statutory scheme whereas such
scheme provides for a channel of appeal, for example, the
granting of sick leave under the provisions of the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, Cap. 282;

(i) if the complaint relates to personnel matters or contractual
matters and commercial matters;

(j) ifthe PCC considers that the complaint is frivolous or vexatious
or is not made in good faith; or

(k) if the complaint, or a complaint of a substantially similar nature,
has previously been the subject matter of a complaint which
had been decided upon by the PCC.

&, Taking into account the following:

(V)
=

the disclosure of legal privileged documents in an open hearing;
the disclosure of personal data in an open hearing;
the PCC is not a judicial or quasi-judicial body;

O
—

o

an aggrieved party has other channels to seek redress; and

—~ o~ o~ ~ ~
(2]
- —

e) the PCC should not duplicate the functions of other institutions
such as the courts or the Medical Council;

the PCC considers that its meetings shall not be open to the public.
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4. In considering the merits of a complaint, the PCC may from time to
time obtain expert opinion by medical professionals or other experts
relating to the subject matter of the complaint. If the PCC considers
appropriate, it may also invite the complainant, the patient, the
medical staffs or any other relevant persons to attend an interview.

(The above Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases may be

amended from time to time as appropriate.)

Focus of Work in 2017-18

In 2017-18, the Public Complaints Committee held 17 meetings and
handled a total of 257 cases relating to medical services, administrative
procedure, staff attitude, etc. In addition to the handling of appeal cases,
the Committee also advised on complaint handling policies to improve
the efficiency and effectiveness of the Authority’s complaints system, and
make recommendations for system change and improvement of healthcare
services. Regular internal and external communication programmes were
conducted to enhance the transparency and credibility of the Authority’s
complaints system and the Committee as the final appeal body. Through
its Secretariat, the Committee also shared important lessons learned for
risk management and enhanced the complaint handling skills of frontline
staff through regular specialist complaint management training including
applied mediation skills training.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having
regard to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Staff Appeals Committee
BELSRZEEE

Membership List

RERE
Chairman Mr Lawrence LEE Kam-hung, BBS, JP
EE TEWEE
Members Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
RE BEoRERE
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
R R &
Terms of Reference
1. To consider and decide upon appeals from staff members who have

raised a grievance through the normal internal complaint channels
and who wish to appeal against the decision made.
2. The Committee shall :

(a) consider whether the appeal cases need further investigation
by the management;

(b) direct the appeal cases to be investigated;

(c) have access to all the relevant information required from the
management for making a decision;

(d) ensure that appropriate action is taken; and
(e) reply to the appellant.

3, The Committee's decision shall represent the Hospital Authority's
decision and shall be final.

4. The Committee shall make annual reports to the Hospital Authority
Board.

Focus of Work in 2017-18

The Committee is tasked to consider and decide on appeals from staff
members who have raised a grievance and appeal through the normal
internal complaint channels established in HA and who wish to make
further appeal against the decision made. The Committee’s decision
shall represent HA's decision and shall be final. The membership of the
Committee comprises individuals who are not staff members of HA.

In 2017-18, the Committee received three staff appeal cases in total. The
Committee found that the appellants in two of the three cases had fully
presented their cases, and the management had followed due process in
the course of investigation. The remaining case was received in February
2018 and consideration was still in progress as of the end of 2017-18.
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In considering the appeal cases, the Committee had reviewed all the ZEB&7E%E:x% FHRAZE  BREGAAEHEEER
relevant information, and where appropriate, solicited additional information 4 » JN&48 15 St (A1 78S 1% [ B A B B 2= B 2
from the concerned management team and staff members on HAs  ZEHERIMEEBRITHE « Bk EMFERNHT
prevailing policies and practices and other details related to the appeal &k} ZESKEEHBFFMERE  RAEBEA
cases. The Committee considered the detailed information and came to ~ ELRIBARMIENGRISE TIEE - TESES
the view that the conclusions reached earlier by the management were  REAZRABIEF B S —LESEEASEE—
justified. In the process of review, the Committee had also identified certain ~ FIRFHIEE © WE REE A B8E LB TS
areas which might warrant further consideration by the management. & @ AR -

Observations and recommendations were conveyed to the management

team for follow-up.
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S EREBRREES
Membership List
REBE
Chairman Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS JP
FE FHRESAE
Vice-Chairman Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (from 1.12.2017)
S MBI (2017 F12 A1 HAE)
Members Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS
RE FRImEIE L
Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan
FRIZEZ

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2017)
BBESE (BHE2017F 11 A30H)

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP

mRARE

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

HigxEL

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2017)
WA E (BZE 2017 F 11 A30 H)

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

Eh e e s

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS (from 23.4.2017)
MR (12017 F4 A 23 HE)

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

FRIESE

Miss Linda LEUNG

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
RERBXL

[(RERRYREEBEEWNER (FE)]

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP Chief Executive
RIEBEE 1THAH

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS

BRI

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP

EEREL

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai (from 1.12.2017)

EREE (H2017 F12 A1 HEE)

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BEokESEE
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Terms of Reference

1. Advise on the directions and policies related to the development of
Business Support Services and Environmental Protection to best
support clinical services delivery in the Hospital Authority;

2. Review and monitor the annual capital expenditure plan approved
by the Hospital Authority Board;

3. Review and advise on the implementation and monitoring of Capital
Works Projects in the Hospital Authority;

4. Review and advise on the new initiatives in Business Support

Services such as improvements in supply chain management,
equipment management, strategic outsourcing and public-
private-partnership of non-core functions, and the development of
supporting services for revenue generation;

B, Advise on the adoption of better practices and industry innovations
related to the planning and delivery of Business Support Services
and implementation of Capital Works Projects in the Hospital
Authority; and

6. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to business support services and capital
expenditure projects and other areas under the purview of the
Committee.

Focus of Work in 2017-18

In 2017-18, the Committee met four times to advise on directions and
policies related to the development of business support services and
capital planning to support clinical service delivery in HA. It examined the
business performance and the recommendations of a review on the
advertising services in HA and agreed on the future service direction. It
considered reports on hospital security services and was briefed on the
progress of follow up actions after HA had followed the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration ban on powdered surgeon gloves. The Committee reviewed
reports on equipment maintenance service in Schedule 1 hospitals; the
recycling of hospital food waste; the planned implementation of municipal
solid waste charging scheme by the Government; and the contracts with
price adjustment approved via Authorise and Direct granted by the Main
Tender Board. It also discussed the new initiatives in HA's supporting
services contracts, including the pilot programme of wage rate adjustment
mechanism for domestic services contracts and the multi-source contract for
domestic and laundry services. The Committee also noted the replacement
of equipment in 2017-18 and the plan for up to 2020-21.
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The Committee reviewed the annual capital expenditure plan for both
major capital works projects and the one-off grant for minor works projects
for 2017-18 and endorsed that for 2018-19. It also considered regular
reports on the progress of major capital works projects. The Committee
noted the implementation progress of projects under the Ten-year Hospital
Development Plan with the earmarked government funding of $200 billion;
and the redevelopment project of Grantham Hospital. The Committee
examined the site supervision of major capital works projects and the
review of the performance appraisal system for contractors and consultants
for capital works projects. It reviewed reports on the pilot combined heat
and power installation in Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital and
the enhancement of the information technology system for works order
processing of minor works projects; and considered the use of destination
type of lift control system for future HA hospitals.

In accordance with the HA organisation-wide risk management framework,
the Committee assessed the risks relating to business support services,
pharmaceutical supplies and capital planning, including the effectiveness
of risk mitigation measures taken in the past year, risks anticipated for
2018 and the planned actions.

The Committee received regular progress reports from the management
on the implementation progress of major capital works. It also reviewed
regular progress reports from the Capital Works Subcommittee (CWSC),
a subcommittee formed under the Committee to advise on mainly the
planning implementation as well as progress and financial monitoring
of major capital works projects, and approved appointments of CWSC
membership.
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Membership of Hospital Governing Committees
BREREEGHE

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
TR KT AT =&

Chairman
FE
Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members
24=1

Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, BBS, JP
REFIREEE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl B IR RITHARR S A&

Hospital Chief Executive

Bl AR

Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon

BRX EFRE

Bishop Rev Ben CHANG Chun-wa
RIREEEL B

Mr CHEUNG Wing-fai, MH

SRECIBSE A

Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai

ARE L+

Mr Richard FUNG Lap-chung

v ibivtas)

Ms KO Sui-fun

=ins Lt

Rev Canon Peter Douglas KOON Ho-ming, BBS
B AU AD

Prof Simon KWAN Shui-man

28 3 SR

Mr Michael LAl Kam-cheung, BBS, MH, JP
FRIRIE S A

Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah

FEERE

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
R

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
FEIGREE

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
EEEE L

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang

B4R sE

Rev PO Kam-cheong

S 7 2 AT

Mr SIU Sau-ching

RMEREE

Mr Herman TSOI Hak-chiu

HErRksE

Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, BBS, MH, JP

BEEBRELT
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Bradbury Hospice
AEBEEEHL
Chairman Dr Joseph LEE Man-ho
ES:3 FX 5
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE Bl B RITRAR AR
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR
Members Dr Hubert CHAN Chung-yee, JP
KE REZRH L
Dr Amy CHOW Yin-man
AEEE L
Dr David KAN Kam-fai
fsRIEE
Dr Joey TANG Chung-yee
BhEEL
Dr Vincent TSE Kin-chuen
AEREE
Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
BRI
Mr Paul WU Wai-keung
(eSSt
Ms Nora YAU Ho-chun, MH, JP
a2+
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Caritas Medical Centre

REER

Chairman
xfE
Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

4=

Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching

SR I IE 2

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl B IR B TIRAER SRR
Hospital Chief Executive

B T AR RS

Dr Wallace CHAN Chi-ho
RESIE L

Mr CHAN Wai-ming, MH, JP
PRIZBASE A&

Dr Denis CHANG Khen-lee, JP
SRAEAIE +

Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS, JP
EZERRE

Dr Daniel FANG Tak-sang
AEERY

Prof Frederick HO Wing-huen, SBS
(LB CE €3

Mr Joseph LEE King-chi, BBS
FHERE

Dr Vincent LEUNG Tze-ching
RTER

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP

R ERE

Mr Anthony WONG Luen-kin, JP
HRER

Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP
BEsEE

Rev Joseph YIM Tak-lung
BIfERErR A
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Castle Peak Hospital & Siu Lam Hospital
FLBRE/NMEER

Chairman Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
EE PRIRIG S A
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE Bl B RITRAR AR
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl TR
Members Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
RE RERSLE
Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FRELE
Mr Jason Joseph LEE Kwong-yee
FHRRTE
Dr Raymond MA Siu-wing, MH
SRR
Mr Edward PONG Chong, BBS, JP
RERISE A
Prof SHAM Pak-chung, JP
RIEL/E €5
Mr TSANG Hin-hong
BERELE
Ms Deborah WAN Lai-yau, BBS, JP
BERRZE
Dr Jimmy WONG Chi-ho, SBS, JP
THRE
Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
S BRI
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Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
EHMAZKEER

Chairman Dr Albert WONG Chi-chiu
FE eyl
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE B ERBITBHEREE KK
Hospital Chief Executive
EbT TN 4R
Members Mr Raymond CHAN Kwan-tak
ME BREMESLE
Mrs Shelley M CHOW
AERLZ+
Ms Betty KO Lan-fun
=ME Lt
Dr Bernard KONG Ming-hei
JLBAER B
Mr Peter LI Lan-yiu
FRIRTE
Dr Leonard LI Sheung-wai
FEBE
Ms Janice MORTON
RP et
Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
BFmEL
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Cheshire Home, Shatin
PDHEKEER

Chairman Mrs Linda WONG LEUNG Kit-wah
EE FREFELL
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE Bl B RITRAR AR
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR
Members Mrs Shelley M CHOW
& AEErLt
Ms Janet LAl Keng-chok
Rt
Dr Edward LEUNG Man-fuk
RERBL
Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, BBS, JP
REAIRE
Mr Paul MAK Chun-nam
EHEmMEE
Ms Janice MORTON
R+
Mr NG Hang-sau, MH
hEBEE
Prof Marco PANG Yiu-chung
TIRTRHIR
Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
IR E
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Grantham Hospital
EEHER

Chairman Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
EE EESSLE
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERME Bl B IR B TIRAER SRR
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR RS
Members Dr CHENG Chun-ho
-1 B xE
Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
e kE
Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
ik s ita
Mr Edward HO Man-tat
fARESLE
Prof Peggy LAM, GBS, JP
MEERHIE
Prof Karen LAM Siu-ling
MR EIR
Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui
REEEE
Mr William LEUNG Shu-yin
R E Sk
Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
R ERE
Prof LO Chung-mau, BBS, JP
[E B HIR
Mr MA Ching-nam, JP
Btk E
Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF, MH
Prof Sydney TANG Chi-wai
B EHIEE
Mr Rocco YIM Sen-kee, BBS, JP (resigned on 21.2.2018)
BEAE 4 (R 2018 2 A 21 ABHT)
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Haven of Hope Hospital
BEES

Chairman Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
ES RARAHUR
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE Bl ER R TBES A RER
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR
Members Mr Jonathan CHAN Pok-chi, JP
BE PRIGE 4
Mr CHAU Kwok-woon
B
Mr Francis CHAU Yin-ming, BBS, MH
Ei=lb e
Mr Stuart CHEN Seng-tek
BRFH-15 55 4
Mr Charles CHIU Chung-yee
HRESLE
Ms Clara CHONG Ming-wah
SEAEE
Dr Hon LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP
MIEET 88 A4
Dr Ares LEUNG Kwok-ling
RERE
Dr Andrew LUK Leung
BEsiE Lt
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Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

BREGHER

Chairman
xfE
Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

4=

Mr Keith LAM Hon-keung, JP
WERELT

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl B IR B TIRAER SRR
Hospital Chief Executive

B T AR RS

Mr Andie CHAN Wai-kwan, MH
BRI S

Mr HO Tak-sum, MH
AL E T

Dr Johnny HON Sei-hoe, MH
Ly

Mr LAl Sze-nuen, SBS, JP
REEE L

Mr Anthony LAM Chi-tat
MEERTLT

Mr Stephen LAM Wai-hung
MEHE A

Ms May LAU Mei-mui
gIxMEt

Mr LEE Ka-cheung
FRERLT

Dr POON Tak-lun, JP
EEREE

Mr SHUM Man-to, SBS
X E

Ven SIK Chi-wai, SBS

R 2R

Ven SIK Hin-hung
TEOTZE/ARD

Ven SIK Hong-ming
TERBRARD

Ven SIK Ku-tay

EREERD

Ven SIK Kuan-yun

B R E AR

Ven SIK To-ping

T8 TOARD

Ven SIK Yin-chi

ERZERD

Ms WAN Yee-ling
BEBEL
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Hong Kong Eye Hospital & Kowloon Hospital
ERRENER R NERR

Chairman Mr LO Chung-hing, SBS
EE EEESLE
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl ER R TBES A RER
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR
Members Dr Connie CHAN CHENG Yuk-yee, MH
RE PREDE i+
Mrs Sheilah CHENG CHATJAVAL
PREDIK e 22+
Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
REWEL
Dr KWONG Po-yin
BREEE
Ms Mavis LEE Ming-pui
R A+
Dr LEUNG Kin-ping
RlETEL
Prof Julia TAO LAl Po-wah
PR T EHIX
Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP
EER LT
Dr WONG Yee-him
P
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Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
BBA T FER MmO

Chairman
xfE
Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

4=

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP

(CpE St

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl B IR B TIRAER SRR

Hospital Chief Executive

B T AR RS

Mr Jeffrey CHUNG Chi-man

BEXKE

Dr HO Chung-ping, MH, JP

Al T EE A

Prof LI Chi-kong, JP
EIEIE

Dr William LO Wing-yan, JP

Ex{CE L

Ms Clara SHEK Ka-lai

ARBEXT

Mr Donny SIU Koon-ming

FREREASE A

Ms Bonnie SO Yuen-han

ERITIN 2+

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP

BOX R AE

Mr Jimmy YUEN Hon-wing

RIREKSLSE
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Kwai Chung Hospital & Princess Margaret Hospital
LEERERBREIER

Chairman Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP
EE HEEZLT
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl ER R TBES A RER
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR
Members Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
K& PR IR
Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai
SREE A
Ms Janet HUI Lai-wah
FFREREL L
Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
BB 2R
Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
AL
Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
BERE RS
Dr Peter TSOI Ting-kwok, JP
ETEEE
Mr William WONG Kuen-wai, BBS, MH
HIERRE
Mr WONG Yiu-chung, MH
EIRIAS A
Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai
BREREE
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Kwong Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
EEERERE=FRE AR

Chairman
xfE
Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

4=

Dr LEE Yuk-lun, BBS, JP
FEBET

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl B IR B TIRAER SRR
Hospital Chief Executive

B T AR RS

Mrs Viola CHAN MAN Yee-wai, BBS
PR B+

Mr CHAN Siu-tong, MH, JP
BRAZEFE

Dr Ina CHAN Un-chan, BBS
R IEL

Dr CHU Chor-lup

RYILE

Ms Maisy HO, BBS
AR £

Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
BRI T

Mrs Katherine MA, BBS
BRREL L

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
BEmEE

Ms Ginny MAN Wing-yee
XARRE

Mr Albert SU Yau-on
BT

Mr Ilvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
MEERTE 52 4

Mr Kazaf TAM Chun-kwok

B SRR A

Ms Wendy TSANG Wan-man
LEEL L

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing
BEREET

Mr Vinci WONG

FERLELE

Mr YU See-ho

RETAF A

Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung, MH
REIRTE
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MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre
BRI R

Chairman Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

EFE BYELs

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

EREE Bl B RITRAR AR
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR

Members Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin

4= PR IR
Prof Cecilia CHAN Lai-wan, JP
[REZHIX
Mr Calvin CHAN Man-yin
RXEFRE
Mr Vincent CHENG Wing-ming
ERERSRFT
Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
RX B
Mr Benny CHEUNG Wai-leung, BBS
RERKE

Dr Edith MOK KWAN Ngan-hing, MH
KRS

Mr Sammy NG Wai-tong

REERE

Mr Peter POON King-kong

B R A

Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, MH, JP
BEEXEE

Mr YU See-ho

RETAF R
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North District Hospital

It EER

Chairman
xfE
Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

4=

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP
EEma L

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl B IR B TIRAER SRR
Hospital Chief Executive

B T AR RS

Mr DENG Kai-rong, MH, JP
BRI

Ms Stella FUNG Siu-wan
OB+

Dr Raymond HO Shu-kwong
Al iE L

Mr HO Wing-yin

kB E

Mr HUNG Siu-ling, MH
HARESEE

Mr LI Kwok-yiu

FEIREE

Mr LIU Sui-biu

B e 4

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BokEEE

Mr Thomas YIU Kei-chung
weaoh kAt
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North Lantau Hospital
b AU |1 2B

Chairman Ms Sandra LEE Suk-yee, GBS, JP
EFE FRER L
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl ER R TBES A RER
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPTITEARES
Members Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
ME BREEZE A
Ms CHAU Chuen-heung, SBS, MH, JP
FEER L
Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim
Ms Elizabeth LAW Kar-shui, MH
ER/NA
Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP
REZRHE
Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP
REMEE
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Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
R
Chairman Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP
*E mRAKE
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE Bl BRI TBARR S AR

Hospital Chief Executive

B T AR RS
Members Mr CHAN Wing-kai
HE BRAKESRAE

Dr Gabriel CHOI Kin

mEREEA

Mr John J CLANCEY

Dr Nancy FOK Lai-ling

EEREL

Dr Lawrence LAl Fook-ming, BBS, JP
FErERRE

Mrs Marigold LAU, SBS

el e

Sister Marilu LIMGENCO

MEYeIE 2

Ms June LO Hing-yu

BEGTLL

Ms Brenda LO Yin-cheung
BN L

Rev Edward PHILLIPS

Dr Louis SHIH Tai-cho, JP

SRR

Mrs Elizabeth WONG YEUNG Po-wo
=IBEMAL L

Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung, MH
REIEEAE

Sister Marya ZABOROWSKI
BREREBK
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Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
RELBRABITERER

Chairman Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP
B BEREAE
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl ER R TBES A RER
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPTITEARES
Members Mr David CHAU Shing-yim
ME JEEKE
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, JP
PSR E +
Mr Roland CHOW Kun-chee
B S
Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai
ARELZ+
Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS
2 52hF 22+
Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
FEERSE
Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
FEIGR &
Dr Yvonne LUI Lai-kwan
BEAEL
Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang
BWESE
Rt Rev Dr Thomas SOO Yee-po, JP
BRATRER
Mr Dominic WONG Chi-chung
FEEELE
Mr YEUNG Po-kwan, JP
HEHEE

170 Hospital Authority Annual Report 2% E# /5 F 3% 2017-2018



Pok Oi Hospital
HEER

Chairman
xfE
Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

4=

Mr PANG Siu-hin, MH
ZOOTRE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl BRI TBARR S AR
Hospital Chief Executive

B T AR RS

Mr Michael CHAN Kee-huen
BRAECIE S A4

Dr CHAN Kwok-chiu, BBS, MH, JP

PR B A TH +

Mrs CHAN LI Lei, MH

BREFE L+

Mrs Josephine KAN CHAN Kit-har
RIPRMEE L+

Mr LAM Kwok-hing, MH, JP
ERELE

Mr LEE Yuk-fat

FERESE

Dr Charles LO Dgok-sing

LERRL

Mr NG Kam-ching

R/ELE

Mr WONG Fan-foung, BBS, MH (from 23.11.2017)
BRI (£ 2017 € 11 A 23 )
Mr Alan WONG Wai-kai, MH (resigned on 31.8.2017)
FHEHSGCAE (R 2017 F 8 A 31 HEHE)
Ms WONG Wai-ling

\mERR L

Mr YUEN Siu-lam

RAOMEE
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Prince of Wales Hospital
B A £ 2P

Chairman Ms Winnie NG, JP
EFE LR+
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl ER R TBES A RER
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPTITEARES
Members Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
K& PR o dx
Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP
PR
Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
RS
Ms Jacqueline LEUNG
REL T
Ir Peter MOK Kwok-woo
SIS
Ms Maggie NG Miu-man
h gt
Mr SIU Hin-hong
AT E
Dr WONG Kwai-lam
EREZINE
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Queen Elizabeth Hospital

FRD BB

Chairman
xfE
Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

4=

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HiExxiE L

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl B IR B TIRAER SRR
Hospital Chief Executive

B T AR RS

Prof Gladys CHEING Lai-ying
ER 53 HEIR

Ms Yvonne CHUA

ZMR R+

Ms Maisy HO, BBS

faltaE L+

Dr James HWANG Shu-tak, BBS
=GR A

Mr Emmanuel KAO Chu-chee
Mr KU Moon-lun

EN) vt

Ms KWAN Sau-ling

BF I/ NE

Mr David MUI Ying-yuen, MH, JP
1BREIRSEE

Mr James YIP Shiu-kwong
Bkt

Dr YU Yuk-ling

LR EE ER
e
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Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital
REEREREEER

Chairman Dr PANG Yiu-kai, GBS, JP
EE TRERLT
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE Bl ER R TBES A RER
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR
Members Dr Steven J CANNON
BE R B E L
Mr Stephen CHAN Chit-kwai, BBS, JP
PREEE

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
[ES e

Prof John LEE Chi-kin, JP

T REHIE

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
R BHE

Mr Joseph LO Kin-ching

Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun

BE AT

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RRARLAE
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Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
EBRRHERER

Chairman Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
*E ZoxBEL
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERME Bl BRI TBARR S AR
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl T AR
Members Mr Anson LAM Wai-man
RE WEXSEE
Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
ExRHESE
Prof Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP
FEBHIX
Mr Edwin LEUNG Chung-ching
ZIFEE
Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui
R EE
Dr LIU Ka-ling
BRikE
Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
ESRIELE
Mr Terry NG Sze-yuen
RETEE
Mrs Gloria NG WONG Yee-man, BBS, JP
REKEL L
Mr Burji S SHROFF
Mr Neville S SHROFF, JP
=4 pates
Mr Noshir N SHROFF
Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF, MH
Mr Richard TANG Yat-sun, SBS, JP
BELKLE
Ms Alice WOO Wai-see
REBL L
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Shatin Hospital
DHER

Chairman Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
ES:3 R R
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE Bl B RITRAR AR
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR
Members Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
BE BRI L
Mr Jeckle CHIU
BiREE
Mr CHIU Man-leong
X ZRE
Dr Andy CHIU Tin-yan
ARME
Mr Francis CHU Chan-pui, BBS
RIREFRE
Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
BEEHUX
Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP
ARBERE
Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
WELE
Mr LAU Kim-hung
BB =
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Tai Po Hospital
RIFER

Chairman Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, BBS, JP
EE REABEE A4
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERME Bl BRI TBARR S AR
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl T AR
Members Ms Nancy KIT Kwong-chi, JP
RE BSF 2t
Dr Benny KWONG Kai-sing
BB L
Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
RIKIL T
Mr Arthur LI Ka-tat
FRESLE
Ms Gigi PANG Che-kwan
ZIEERL
Mr Patrick TANG Ming-tai
ik s
Dr YIP Ka-chee
BERnE4E

Appendices &t 177



Appendix 4
By 8% 4

The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay
RORBELABRAZERR

Chairman Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong, JP
EFE RERKSE
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE Bl ER R TBES A RER
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR
Members Mr Boris BONG Ding-yue
BE REETEE
Prof Godfrey CHAN Chi-fung
PR A ISR
Ms Ophelia CHAN Chiu-ling, BBS
PRE B+
Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
R
Mr Renny LIE Ken-jie
FEREE
Mr Gordon Gilbert LOCH Han-van
B I e A
Dr POON Tak-lun, JP
ETEARE
Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak
wRERE
Dr Barbara TAM Sau-man
WAEE
Mr John WAN Chung-on
MR
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Tin Shui Wai Hospital

RKEER

Chairman
xfE
Ex-officio members

ERME

Members

K&

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP

FEERE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B ER R TBES S A RER

Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR RS

Mr CHOW Wing-kan
FKERE

Dr HO Wing-tim, MH
(CEV N

Dr LAU Chau-ming
ZIMmsEiEL

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
BB RE

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BES KL

Mr Thomas WAN Yiu-ming
FIRHSEE
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Tseung Kwan O Hospital
& ERER

Chairman Dr Eliza C H CHAN, SBS, JP
EE RBERL
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE Bl B RITRAR AR
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR
Members Mr Tony CHOW Kar-ming
RE ARAFEE
Mr KAN Shun-ming
RIS ST A
Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
gkt
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
FFHHIK
Mr Philip LI Ka-leung
FREKE
Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
BETE ek
Dr Hayles WAI Heung-wah
B
Mr Alan WONG Chi-kong, SBS
SR E
Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FHEESE

Dr WONG Kwing-keung
=R EL
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Tuen Mun Hospital
B P &P

Chairman Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
EE PRE R E
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl B IR B TIRAER SRR
Hospital Chief Executive
B T AR RS
Members Dr Charles CHAN Kam-kwong
RE PREE L IE L
Dr Shirley IP Pui-seung
ESTes
Mr Lothar LEE Hung-sham, BBS, MH
Ms Yvette Therese MA
SESE R
Dr Sam WONG Chun-sing, MH
FiIREE T+
Dr WONG Kwing-keung
Byt

Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP
BRIt

Mr Boris YEUNG Sau-ming
BHEALE

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BXxEgRE

Prof Richard YUEN Man-fung
R IR
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Tung Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Eastern Hospital &
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital

REBREERERRERRE=[RSZHEL

Chairman Dr LEE Yuk-lun, BBS, JP
EE XS
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREE B ERERITHAER S EREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BPTIT R ARES
Members Mrs Viola CHAN MAN Yee-wai, BBS
RE PR+
Dr Ina CHAN Un-chan, BBS
PREEIZ1E +
Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
Ak E
Ms Maisy HO, BBS
BB £
Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS
RS AE
Mr Henry LAl Hin-wing
FEHEAR
Mrs Katherine MA, BBS
BRERE L
Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
BEmEE
Ms Ginny MAN Wing-yee
SRR

Ms Bonnie NG Hoi-yan (from 22.2.2018)
RS+ (f 2018 £ 2 A 22 A#E)
Ms SIU Ka-yi (resigned on 22.8.2017)
W|elazt (R 2017 F 8 A 22 AEHT)
Mr Albert SU Yau-on

e

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS

ME SRR 5 A

Mr Kazaf TAM Chun-kwok

8 HAE S A

Mr TONG Chun-wan

EiRE 4

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai

EREE

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing

BEEE T

Mr Vinci WONG

FEFLEE
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By 8% 4
United Christian Hospital
EEYHaER
Chairman Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon
EE R Bt
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERME Bl BRI TBARR S AR
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl T AR
Members Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
RE AR+
Ms Constance CHOY Hok-man
2B+
Mr Paul FAN Chor-ho, SBS, JP
SefE R E
Rev FONG Sing-fong
73 T 4R
Rev Paul KAN Kei-piu
BRI AM
Rt Rev Dr Timothy KWOK Chi-pei
BEREH
Dr LAM Kin-wah, BBS, MH
MEEH
Mr LAU Chun-chuen
BIRRESE
Mr Marthy LI Chak-kwan
FERSLE
Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
FEFREE
Mr Michael LI Man-toa
FRELE
Dr Danny MA Ping-kwan
55 kA ben 8
Hon Wilson OR Chong-shing, MH
T8I B% e A4
Rev PO Kam-cheong
S 87 2 AT
Mr Thomas TSANG Fuk-chuen
BREEE
Ms Nancy TSANG Lan-see, JP
TR
Mr Herbert TSOI Hak-kong, BBS, JP
£l 4
Mr David WONG Tat-kee
mEHLE
Ms Grace WONG Yuen-ling
EXifcg
Rev YU Yan-ming
B BRHED
Rev YUNG Chuen-hung
SIEEIRED
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Yan Chai Hospital
{ZEERHR

Chairman Mrs YIM TSUI Yuk-shan, MH
TE BRIR EH
Ex-officio members Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bt B RITBARRS A K
Hospital Chief Executive
BbTiT R ARES
Members Mr Sam CHAU Chung-tung
RE JEIMAER SE A
Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP
BRE B S
Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang
IR
Dr Paul IP Kung-ching
ENEELT
Mr Jason LEUNG Wai-kwong
RENFTE
Mr Peter LO Siu-kit, MH
OGRS
Miss Erica TANG Sui-yan
BREERR/IME
Miss Macy WONG
=X ME
Mr Vincent WONG Yin-shun
=Eibed
Mr YAU Kam-ping, BBS, MH
R8BS 4

Dr Anthony YEUNG Chun-wai
H&REEL
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Membership of Regional Advisory Committees
B EHAEZEERE

Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee
BREEEEAZER

Chairman
XE

Ex-officio members
EARE

Members

ME

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching

HIEEFL L+

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl BR RITBAERS A KK

Director of Health or his / her representative

BEBERIEREK

Mr AU Lap-sing, MH

BRSZRK ST A

Mr Boris BONG Ding-yue

REEFRE

Mr Stephen CHAN Chit-kwai, BBS, JP
PREEE S

Dr Peter CHEE Pay-yun
AR

Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

BTEE

Mr Alan CHOW Ping-kay
MRESTHE

Ms Jacqueline CHUNG Ka-man
BRgt

Mr JONG Koon-sang
HEASLE

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
ERHkE

Dr LAU Chor-chiu, MH, JP
bkl

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
FERERSE

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
ZoxEIE L

Ms LI Chun-chau

FERZ L

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai

BRELE

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing
BEEEEL

Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
BFRItEL

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
R R E

Prof Richard YUEN Man-fung
R BHIX

Mr YUNG Chi-ming, BBS, MH
HEREE
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Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee
hEREHEHAZES

Chairman Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
E3r IR
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERARE B ERE R THEI S AREK
Director of Health or his / her representative
BEEERIEARE
Members Mr CHAU Kwok-woon
RE IR e 4
Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching
o9& 1 1IE#03%
Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
REWIE L
Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
ARzt
Mr CHOY Chak-hung
EEIRE L
Ms Yvonne CHUA
SRR+
Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang
SRR E
Mr HO Tak-sum, MH
AL EL
Ms LAM Nixie, Lam
PRI+
Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
KL L
Mrs Marigold LAU, SBS
ZIRERER 2 £
Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim
EHRE
Mr LEE Wing-man
FkRESE
Mr LO Chiu-kit
Tl vt
Mr PAU Ming-hong
SRS
Mr Stanley TAM Lanny, MH
EAELE
Dr Hayles WAI Heung-wah
e
Mr Vinci WONG
FEWEE
Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, MH
HFERAE
Mr Jimmy YUEN Hon-wing
RREFLE
Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung, MH
REIRSEAE
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New Territories Regional Advisory Committee
FREEEHRNEES

Chairman
EE

Ex-officio members

ERME

Members

54|

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BokEEE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B ERE R THAER S AREK

Director of Health or his / her representative
BEEERIEAREK

Mr Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, BBS, MH, JP
RIS

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
BRIR MR S A

Dr Charles CHAN Kam-kwong

PREE I+

Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP

HRBESEE

Dr LAU Chee-sing

IS L

Mr MO Shing-fung

Ir Peter MOK Kwok-woo

SEIA S

Ms Jenny NG Ming-chun, MH
R L

Prof Simon NG Siu-man

RIKHIE

Mr PANG Siu-hin, MH

TPTHRE

Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu

EITIRE A

Mr SIU Hin-hong

Mt A

Dr Joey TANG Chung-yee

BhEE LT

Mr Patrick TANG Ming-tai

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
TrEEESE

Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, BBS, MH, JP
mEBR LT

Mr Thomas YIU Kei-chung

whace At

Mr YIU Ming

Bk &
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Membership of the Board of Trustees of the
Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme 2017-18

2017-18 FEEBREER AR ETEETZEESRE

Chairman Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

*E HigxE+

Trustees Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BEREE BRER LA

Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu (from 28.9.2017)
BREIZ £ (B 2017 £ 9 A 28 A#E)

Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP (up to 12.6.2017)
BRIEE ST E (= 2017 66 A 12H)

Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi (up to 31.8.2017)
BMIELZ L (= 2017 F8 A 31H)

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi (from 20.11.2017)
BigE Lt (2017 € 11 A 20 HE)

Mr William KWOK Chi-on (up to 22.2.2018)
BFREE (HE2018F 2 H22H)

Mr LAl Wai-sang

Mr John LEE Luen-wai, BBS, JP (up to 18.11.2017)
EHBRA (BE 20174 11 H18H)

Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai (from 13.6.2017)
EBEE (F 201746 A 13 A#E)

Dr Stanley LO Hok-king

EEHEE

Mr Dave NGAN Man-kit

AN ST

Mr QUEK Yat-sum (from 23.2.2018)

IR EE (B 2018 62 A 23 A#E)

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP

FHESE

Mr WONG Yiu-lun

HIBBEE

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

HEBEE
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Public Feedback Statistics
ZILEE,%JL#

Complaint / Appreciation Received (1.4.2017 — 31.3.2018)

B/ BIBEF (2017F4 81820183 A31H)

Public Complaints Committee

DRRFEES

Appendix 7

Ffs® 7

Nature of cases

Number of appeal cases

(FESE3=1 LR ERET
Medical services % & R 7% 207
Staff attitude 5 5E/= 18
Administrative procedure T2 7 25
Others Efth 7
Total number of appeal cases handled 257

BE R ERAH

Hospital Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

B/ BR / #Eaest

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
®iF/BR/ EBEREE KRBT EREF HBEHT
Medical services & /& iR7% 1737 4 676 24 317
Staff attitude 5% S RE/E 591 2830 11 063
Administrative procedure 7THIEF 454 3262 909
Overall performance B 2xIH 165 2 067 258
Others H At 33 747 2954
Total number of hospital complaint / feedback / appreciation 2980 13 582 39 501

BRRS/ BR/ EEAY

GOPC* Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

EENMIBHRRF/ BR / #ERG

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
#Bif/ BR/ EBERESE KRR ER¥F HEHT
Medical services & /& fR 7% 109 285 3129
Staff attitude % 8 28/E 56 304 1174
Administrative procedure 1TIE 52 449 161
Overall performance 525K IR 10 111 119
Others At 0 20 371
Total number of complaint / feedback / 227 1169 4 954

appreciation received by GOPC
ZENMDDRE/ BR / EIEEH

*General outpatient clinics
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Appendix 8
Bt 8

Statistics of the Controlling Officer's Report
EHABRERIAET

The Hospital Authority generally achieved its performance targets in EREERAK LEN T —+E - \FENRE
2017-18. The volume of patient care activities across the full range of FEER - —E—tE - \FESHERAR %Hﬁi‘“

services in 2017-18 is comparable to the level in 2016-17. MEBIRSEE T — A E—LFENKFEHEE
The key activity data in respect of the Hospital Authority are: ERERBEERRBOEZSHRNT
2016-17 201718

() Access to services A EY A HIBR %S

inpatient services 1z R %
no. of hospital beds (as at 31 March) EffEAREE (B=2=A=+—H)

general (acute and convalescent) Z3B%} (&E & FEE) 21798 22 027
infirmary &1} 2 041 2 041
mentally ill f5H7%} 3607 3607
mentally handicapped £ [& %} 680 680
overall 485t 28 126 28 355

ambulatory and outreach services H &R IMNERE
accident and emergency (A&E) services =iE Z= k75

percentage of A&E patients within target waiting time

£ B 1R IR i N B T2 B SE R A BV E £ X

triage | (critical cases - 0 minute) (%) 5 | 83! (f&74{EA% —093&) (%) 100 100
triage Il (emergency cases - 15 minutes) (%) 5 Il $85 (B2 EZ —15988) (%) 97 97
triage Ill (urgent cases - 30 minutes) (%) 25 |1l 285 (Z2&EZX —305) (%) 79 76

specialist outpatient services ZFIFI2 R 7%

median waiting time for first appointment at specialist clinics

BRI FTHTAE s 1 s [ o 2 8

first priority patients 55— 2L B2 A < 1 week < 1 week
=3-1 EHj
second priority patients 25 1@t HL2 B A 5 weeks 5 weeks
=3:1 E2Hj

rehabilitation and geriatric services (as at 31 March)

FEREANERE (BE=A=1+—H)

no. of community nurses 7% £ B 482 490

no. of geriatric day places % A%} HE &l A28 659 659
psychiatric services (as at 31 March) {5t RIG(HE=A=1+—8)

no. of community psychiatric nurses f&#EHt &+ Z B 137 139

no. of psychiatric day places 151 % H i 2&p7 258 889 889
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Hisx 8
2016-17 2017-18
() Delivery of services FriZ YIRS
inpatient services 1Bz R %
no. of discharges and deaths {EBTE A BT AR R T A
general (acute and convalescent) Z3E%l (&E K FEE) 1105 033 1138 748
infirmary BE& R 3687 3400
mentally ill #5407} 17 640 17 432
mentally handicapped 5 f&%} 552 629
overall #&5t 1126 912 1160 209
no. of patient days & A £z B X
general (acute and convalescent) & 3B%} (2E M FEE) 6 347 786 6 662 514
infirmary E&E 516 661 498 621
mentally ill #5185} 940 323 918 456
mentally handicapped 22 £/} 194 336 191 510
overall 4251 7999 106 8271 101
bed occupancy rate (%) FRIEAZ (%)
general (acute and convalescent) & 3B%} (2 E & FEE) 90 93
infirmary &7 88 89
mentally il f51$%} 72 70
mentally handicapped %5 &%} 80 77
overall #5t 87 89
average length of stay (days)* kR (B )*
general (acute and convalescent) & 3EH} (Z0E M FEE) 5.8 5.9
infirmary BE&R 131 139
mentally il f51$%} 49 55
mentally handicapped %5 %} 391 303
overall 4851 7.1 7.2
ambulatory and outreach services H [} IMNEBR#
day inpatient services B fE{EH AR
no. of discharges and deaths Hif% AJX &0 T- A 633 508 659 413
A&E services =fE = AR TS
no. of attendances B2 AR 2231 951 2189 040
no. of attendances per 1 000 population &T A HEFL2 AR 304 296
no. of first attendances for BIXFLZ AR D7
triage | 58 | 287 20210 22 144
triage Il 5 || 85 47 491 52 111
triage Il 25 |11 $271) 722 731 749 179
specialist outpatient services EFIFI2 AR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) new attendances 764 438 790 355
HRIFP (FRIK) FERE 2 AR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) follow-up attendances 6 836 705 6 926 315
BRIFTZ (FRIR) BAERE 2 AR
total no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances 7 601 143 7716 670

BERIFT2 (BRR) Bl AR
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Hiéx 8
2016-17 2017-18
primary care services £ Z & /& R 7%
no. of general outpatient attendances L EEFI2 52 AR 6 120 999 6081738
no. of family medicine specialist clinic attendances RFEE S EHRIFIZ 52 AKX 302 497 311 626
total no. of primary care attendances ZE BB 2B AKX 6 423 496 6 393 364
rehabilitation and palliative care services 18 [ 4F 4% €12 iR 7%
no. of rehabilitation day and palliative care day attendances 92 642 98 104
FR1E AT R 7E32 B RIS 2 AR
no. of home visits by community nurses #5155 /x 81 867 226 877 610
no. of allied health (community) attendances S E 8 (1@ ) 5t AR 36 072 36 426
no. of allied health (outpatient) attendances ;% & (F9%2) 3t2 AKX 2704 572 2 745 545
geriatric services & ARIARTE
no. of outreach attendances # X JMN& fR75 A X 661 988 685 469
no. of geriatric elderly persons assessed for infirmary care service 1754 1766
BEXEERGTZNRE AR
no. of geriatric day attendances & ARl B EE L2 AR 153 150 148 258
no. of Visiting Medical Officer attendances #: 5 2|3 B 458 AR 109 906 110 805
psychiatric services #51HFL AR5
no. of psychiatric outreach attendances # &R 9NE IR A X 290 185 292 121
no. of psychiatric day attendances &% H B2t AR 224 857 222 303
no. of psychogeriatric outreach attendances # % £ A f5 18R IMNE IR A X 99 674 98 440
() Quality of services RIEE %
no. of hospital deaths per 1 000 population® =T A A &5 A EEEFTIET- ASL" 3.0 3.0
unplanned readmission rate within 28 days for general inpatients (%) 10.5 10.6
L BRI bR ATE BT i 28 R AR L TE LI AR (%)
(IV) Cost of services R#5 A 2%
cost distribution K42 %
cost distribution by service types (%) ARG LERIBI D IR A DB D E (%)
inpatient (b7 ARTS 54.1 54.4
ambulatory and outreach B & & 4ME RS 459 45.6
cost by service types per 1 000 population (HK$Mn)
BT A RRRBHERIE DR (BB ET)
inpatient (¥t AR 7% 4.3 45
ambulatory and outreach B & & 4ME AR 3.7 3.8
cost of services for persons aged 65 or above 65 5% 8k A _E A =H AR 7% A%
share of cost of services (%) ARISFTIGRRAR B 5 E (%) 471 48.5
cost of services per 1 000 population (HK$Mn) &F A A RIS AN GB#E B ET) 23.7 24.5
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Hisx 8
2016-17 2017-18
unit costs B KA
inpatient services 15z R
cost per inpatient discharged (HK$) &% HFTm ABIEAS (B oT)
general (acute and convalescent) @B} (SE & FEE) 25,570 26,110
infirmary E&%} 225,420 239,970
mentally ill 548 #} 141,710 147,780
mentally handicapped %5 [&%} 588,060 513,660
cost per patient day (HK$) & A& BH KA (GB7T)
general (acute and convalescent) B} (SiE & FEE) 4,950 4,950
infirmary E&%} 1,610 1,640
mentally il 51 2,660 2,810
mentally handicapped &R 1,670 1,690
ambulatory and outreach services H &R 5MNERT
cost per A&E attendance (HK$) =UEEFXZIERIKA (BoT) 1,300 1,390
cost per specialist outpatient attendance (HK$) EEIFIZ B NZIER KA (GBT) 1,210 1,230
cost per general outpatient attendance (HK$) &3@RIPI2 & X2 AE KA (BIT) 450 470
cost per family medicine specialist clinic attendance (HK$) 1,140 1,180

REBZERFIZERZENRA (BT)
cost per outreach visit by community nurse (HK$) L& L& RIMNE RIS A (B T) 570 575

cost per psychiatric outreach attendance (HKS) f&t& % 9MNE RIS B X BRI A (B IT) 1,640 1,660

cost per geriatric day attendance (HK$) & A% B fE &bz &)X lRFS AR A (B 7T) 2,070 2,240
fee waivers ~ B F R ~

percentage of Comprehensive Social Security Assistance (CSSA) fee waiver (%) 17.7 17.5

et e RERE GGE) KB REB 5 E (%)

percentage of non-CSSA fee waiver (%) * FE47E U B EE D =K (%) 7.2 12.8

Notes:

et -

* Derived by dividing the sum of length of stay of inpatients by the ~ * & Bt A B i [ 42 Sk DARE 89 (3 Be fm A B &

corresponding number of inpatients discharged and treated.

Refers to the standardised hospital death rate covering inpatient
and day inpatient deaths in Hospital Authority hospitals in a
particular year. The standardised rate, as a standard statistical
technique to facilitate comparison over years, is calculated by
applying the Hospital Authority age-specific hospital death rate in
that particular year to the “standard” population in mid-2001.

Refers to the amount waived as percentage to total charge.

With effect from 15 July 2017, the medical fee waiver for
public healthcare services has been extended to cover Old
Age Living Allowance (OALA) recipients aged 75 or above with
assets not exceeding $144,000 (elderly singletons) or $218,000
(elderly couples). In this regard, the percentage of non-CSSA fee
waiver for 2017-18 includes fee waiver for OALA recipients of
6.6 percent.

BXaBRABGE -

N ER- S ERERERE TERERRAMERRS A

FET ABMRE(LIT T % « ARIE(LTE T % 2G5
ERERFESAFRERNNBRFATLTE - £
REBE—FoEch ) [ ] AOME Bk « B2
— (BT - BB BRI L% -

~ EREZEERRBHEDE o
HE-T—+tHE+LATHAR ALEEREER

BELHEERERFENRELETENRSE
ASERBEEEA 75 BREANR LEMEESZ B
144,000 TR E B REXEETZ RN 218,000 A&
ERIF B BT —tE— \FEFGEERER
BENPREH DB 6.6%HIHETEATHRE
B o
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Statistics on Number of Beds, Inpatient, Accident &
Emergency and Outpatient Services in 2017-18

2017 18FERKREHE ~ IR - SEERBEFIZRERTEFE

Family
No. of Total IP & DP Inpatient Medicine Total
hospital beds  discharges Inpatient bed average Total SOP  Specialist ~Allied Health
(asat31  anddeaths  occupancy length of stay (clinical) Clinic ~ (Outpatient) General
March 2018)? ERRAM rate (%) (days) Total ASE attendances®® attendances® attendances®  Qutpatient
BRmRHE ERFA fEREA fiRHEA  attendances ENFR FERE EREE attendances’
Institution’ ([BZ2018% HREAAR RRERAR TR SEE (BR®D ENAP MR)RY  EENMD
K 3A31A)? RTAH (%) 1) BHRDAR BAR RDAR BARS P ARS
Hong Kong East Cluster 3 & 5 BBz B 48
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok 240 383 83.5 209.5 - - 189
EHAKKERR
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 1759 148 411 87.6 515 133929 595 859 60 535 165 486 411474
RELERAIITRER
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 621 28711 92.1 6.9 73612 139 629 9745 100 415 137 115
B RHERRER
St John Hospital &M 207 87 3542 61.3 39 9419 47 - 7 550 34 221
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital 52 5t 265 8120 88.9 14.0 - 101 684 - 30 660 26 624
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital Z= /7371 % F 160 160 93.9 204.5 - - -
Sub-total /N5t 3132 189 327 88.5 741 216 960 837219 70 280 304 300 609 434
Hong Kong West Cluster & & 75 BB Bt 48
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at 133 4220 55.4 7.9 - 21133 - 35127
Sandy Bay
ARRRERBIAZERMR
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 272 3274 731 19.6 - 673 - 531
Fung Yiu King Hospital
RE=Fr 55N
Grantham Hospital &2 &z 389 16 618 80.7 12.8 - 123 238 - 22 058
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 110 1216 63.0 19.4 - 275 - 2587
IR AR
Queen Mary Hospital 3528 %5t 1705 164 876 81.1 45 125 506 679 156 21471 146 642 362 548
Tung Wah Hospital 2= E 7 532 26 827 82.8 15.1 - 51070 - 6401 31786
Tsan Yuk Hospital Z & % 1 139 - - 23 563 - 5210
Sub-total /N5t 3142 217170 78.8 6.5 125 506 899 108 2147 218 556 394 334
Kowloon Central Cluster’
NEEH BB
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital &5 #2412t 324 8612 98.3 16.2 - 12 426 - 16 202 43 653
Hong Kong Eye Hospital &% #2712z 45 8013 40.3 4.0 - 230 837 - 23589
Kowloon Hospital /152 &7 1321 17739 83.7 234 - 85 831 - 130 451
Kwong Wah Hospital EZ=E 1186 97 300 82.8 42 131 904 360 464 3537 162 451 207 932
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 22 &} 225 236 11 554 75.4 8.8 - 68 228 1151 34 067 405 337
Queen Elizabeth Hospital {7 710 (H & 1932 202 191 96.1 5.3 188 878 713163 9506 263 952 527 489
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 531 9874 88.4 19.3 - - 891
Wong Tai Sin Hospital
RE=FrAEAIER
Sub-total N5t 5575 355 283 88.7 73 320782 1470949 14194 631603 1184411

194 Hospital Authority Annual Report Bt E# /5 F 3% 2017-2018



Appendix 9

Ft % 9
Family
No. of Total IP & DP Inpatient Medicine Total
hospital beds  discharges Inpatient bed average Total SOP  Specialist ~ Allied Health
(asat31  anddeaths  occupancy length of stay (clinical) Clinic  (Outpatient) General
March 2018)? FRK A rate (%) (days) Total ASE attendances®* attendances® attendances®*  Qutpatient
BREREAE ERFA A fiFA  attendances ERMY FERE EEER attendances®
Institution' ([BE18F  HRARR  BRERR TR SEE (BR#HD ERMD (GE2L 72+ -5 F
B 3A31R)2 RTAH (%) KEE)  BRDAR & AR RPAR BARS BBARS
Kowloon East Cluster 7158 3% B Fx B4R
Haven of Hope Hospital 2 & 481 7643 93.3 218 - 9167 - 5497
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 5% % 2t 687 69 445 100.9 5.2 120 088 324 265 249 145 114 329 196
United Christian Hospital ZE#4Hi & 2 1433 124 697 96.1 5.1 175938 549 177 61534 227 810 644 576
Sub-total /N5t 2601 201785 96.8 6.1 296 026 882 609 61783 378 421 973772
Kowloon West Cluster 7158 75 & Br B 48
Caritas Medical Centre A7 2% 1193 69 226 86.3 6.5 134 358 406 712 3423 94732 307 404
Kwai Chung Hospital 2% & 920 4494 711 63.0 - 233 353 - 37 494
North Lantau Hospital 3t AU 1| E&F 40 4311 94.3 5.0 91082 13 829 793 35577 94 997
Princess Margaret Hospital 3552 71 267 1741 156 556 96.4 53 130 054 461 948 17763 118 601 380 538
Yan Chai Hospital =% 813 62 488 91.0 4.7 128 391 230108 5893 96 458 293 661
Sub-total /N5t 4707 297 075 87.5 6.7 483885 1345950 27 872 382862 1076600
New Territories East Cluster
3 SRR BB kA
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 545 64 944 86.2 43 124 403 272 035 5101 123422 238489
HBRAYERTTRRR
Bradbury Hospice H &2 2 £ 26 638 93.2 13.9 - 25 - 1763 -
Cheshire Home, Shatin Y 2 [ & 304 227 726 462.6 - - - 88 -
North District Hospital 3t (% &P 623 50 362 93.6 5.1 103 826 184 395 5478 79533 259 626
Prince of Wales Hospital /58473 T Bt 1708 180 574 93.1 5.3 143 694 768 590 48 993 215183 485 882
Shatin Hospital 7 F &5 571 9520 88.7 19.4 - 637 - 1650
Tai Po Hospital A &R 994 10 554 90.4 25.9 - 536 - 598
Sub-total /N5t 4771 316 819 89.8 7.4 371923 1226218 59 572 422 237 983 997
New Territories West Cluster
R B
Castle Peak Hospital &L Z 1156 2765 62.9 105.5 - 143 234 - 25053
Pok O Hospital §E &t 757 59 898 103.3 6.2 116 052 134 445 20135 86 024 -
Siu Lam Hospital /| \% 2§57 520 622 89.1 317.2 - - - - -
Tuen Mun Hospital i FE5% 1994 177 175 106.3 6.1 190 108 774 329 22 646 264 598 859 190
Tin Shui Wai Hospital® &7k &l & 52 - 1703 - - 67 798 2609 13673 31891 -
Sub-total /N5t 4427 242 163 91.6 9.1 373958 1054617 56 454 407 566 859 190
GRAND TOTAL #5t 28355 1819622 88.8 72 2189040 7716670 311626 2745545 6081738

Appendices & 195



Appendix 9
Bt 9

Notes:

1.

Kwong Wah Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital, together with the service
units in the concerned communities, were re-delineated from the Kowloon
West Cluster (KWC) to Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC) with effect from
1 December 2016. Reports on services / manpower statistics and financial
information are continued to be based on the previous clustering
arrangement (i.e. concerned service units under KWC) for the entire
2016-17 financial year (i.e. up to 31 March 2017), while reporting based
on the new clustering arrangement starts from 1 April 2017.

. Number of hospital beds as at 31 March 2018 is based on the Annual

Survey on Hospital Beds in Public Hospitals 2017-18.

. Outpatient attendances for different clinics are grouped under

respective hospital management.

. Specialist Outpatient (SOP) (clinical) attendances also include
attendances from nurse clinics in SOP setting.
. Total Allied Health (Outpatient) attendances exclude follow-up

consultations provided by the Medical Social Services Units.

. General Outpatient (GOP) attendances also include attendances from

nurse clinics in GOP setting and attendances in related healthcare
reform initiative programmes in primary care.

. Hong Kong Children’s Hospital is scheduled to commence service by

phases in the fourth quarter of 2018.

. Tin Shui Wai Hospital commenced service by phases in January 2017.

Abbreviations:

IP — Inpatient

DP — Day inpatient

A&E — Accident & Emergency
SOP - Specialist Outpatient
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Appendix 10

B d% 10
Statistics on Community and
Rehabilitation Services in 2017-18
= 4 7 e [—]
2017-18 FEHER BEREATHT
Rehabilitation
Psycho- day &
Psychiatric geriatric  Community Visiting  Allied Health palliative Psychiatric
Home visits outreach outreach Geriatric Medical (Community) care day Geriatric day day
by community ~ attendances’ attendances’  Assessment Officer attendances® attendances attendances’ attendances
nurses  EEEERH BEEA Service!  attendances® ERER  BERSE EAR ReR
Institution’ HEEL SRR RANIE HEEA EBIHIDEE (HE) EEABRE HEER AEEE
K A8 AR BEAR  FHEEREE REAR AR BPAR RPAR BPAR
Hong Kong East Cluster 7 & 5 & b B 48
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok - - - - - 17 - - -
EHAENERR
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 92 065 23 367 11119 - - 820 261 15715 27 874
REAEXABITEER
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals - - - 105 042 22535 2312 6422 18 553 -
BIA R ERER
St John Hospital & fx 4903 - - - - 4 - - -
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital 2 Rz - - - - - 86 34178 - -
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital =773 22f - - - - - 2 - 2452 -
Sub-total N5t 96 968 23 367 11119 105 042 22 535 3241 40 861 36720 27 874
Hong Kong West Cluster & & 7 & Bz 48
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at - - - - - 5 - - -
Sandy Bay
AORBENBIAZERMR
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals - - - 56 267 13 006 2605 - 5701
Fung Yiu King Hospital
RE= 5 EER
Grantham Hospital & £ £ EkT - - - - - 48 4813 - -
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre - - - - - 75 14 627 - -
BIREE R
Queen Mary Hospital #5288 56 953 19 666 13440 - - 609 - - 20 330
Tung Wah Hospital SR ZEEF7 - - - - - 185 7477 6223 -
Sub-total /N5t 56 953 19 666 13 440 56 267 13 006 3527 26 917 11924 20 330
Kowloon Central Cluster®
NEE B B e
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital - - - - - 154 3146 - -
iz
Kowloon Hospital /152 &7 82 261 20 110 9124 36 895 5119 1726 959 2621 10 305
Kwong Wah Hospital [Z2E & 39 263 - - 63 625 10 063 969 - 8735
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 22 & 2% 55535 - - 17 744 - 101 829 -
Queen Elizabeth Hospital 713 1HZ2f - - - 35598 7 664 2161 - 11157
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin - - - - - 75 - 10 842 -
Hospital
RE=[TENILIER
Sub-total /N5t 177 059 20 110 9124 153 862 22 846 5186 4934 33355 10 305
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Appendix 10

Hid% 10
Rehabilitation
Psycho- day &
Psychiatric geriatric  Community Visiting  Allied Health palliative Psychiatric
Home visits outreach outreach Geriatric Medical (Community) care day Geriatric day day
by community ~ attendances’  attendances’  Assessment Officer attendances® attendances attendances’ attendances
nurses  EXEHN BREA Service!  attendances® ERER  BERAE EAR Ban
Institution’ fa=F i HMRBE  BERIE HEZA EBIIDEE (HE) EEABRE ARk AHBE
i EGYA | AR BEAR  SHEEE REAR RPAR APAR RRAR RPAR
Kowloon East Cluster J1.58 5% B8 fx 48
Haven of Hope Hospital % & 267 31338 - 6 986 440 261 2440 5906
Tseung Kwan O Hospital #5222z - - - - 50 - -
United Christian Hospital ZEZ# 4 5t 140 321 31450 10103 39658 8287 1315 2395 15453 32731
Sub-total /N5t 171 659 31450 10103 46 644 8727 1626 4835 21 359 32731
Kowloon West Cluster 158 7 B8 B B 48
Caritas Medical Centre B % £ 62 426 - 44 366 4401 138 1394 13472
Kwai Chung Hospital %)% % fx - 88 962 27073 - - 2691 - 66 607
North Lantau Hospital 1A I L 7605 289 4145 - 173 6 253 -
Princess Margaret Hospital 35521 2 51877 - 41281 5052 1204 2341 14 339
Yan Chai Hospital =7 #F7 34 840 - 41149 5934 267 - 8033
Sub-total /N5t 156 748 91 857 27073 130 941 15 387 4473 9988 35844 66 607
New Territories East Cluster
A RBR R
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 37 245 893 29 032 6620 2831 715 12 258 11 506
TEB K AT RE
Bradbury Hospice H &2 =& .1 - - - 98 298 -
Cheshire Home, Shatin Y» FZ& K& & - - - - -
North District Hospital 1t /& 2 36711 11275 7563 27 473 6572 3401 304 10 526 10 678
Prince of Wales Hospital 52 153 22 427 6932 4413 - -
RRATRE E
Shatin Hospital 7 F &5 - 22518 5676 - - 500 6173 13 877 15050
Tai Po Hospital A 767t - 8990 262 - - 45 - - 7735
Sub-total /N5t 126 109 42783 14 394 78 932 20124 11 288 7490 36 661 44 969
New Territories West Cluster
35 0 B B R AR
Castle Peak Hospital 51112z - 62 888 13187 - - 2702 - - 13 507
Pok Oi Hospital &% EFr 27 890 55913 1745 519 - 6313
Siu Lam Hospital /| \& E&67t - - - 1 - -
Tuen Mun Hospital #1926z 62 961 59 634 6435 3486 3079 12 882 5980
Tin Shui Wai Hospital® <7k &l f° 1263 - - - 377 - -
Sub-total /N5t 92 114 62 888 13187 115 547 8180 7085 3079 19 195 19 487
GRAND TOTAL #& 5+ 877 610 292121 98 440 687 235 110 805 36 426 98 104 195 058 222 303
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Notes:

1.

Kwong Wah Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital, together with the service
units in the concerned communities, were re-delineated from the
Kowloon West Cluster (KWC) to Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC)
with effect from 1 December 2016. Reports on services / manpower
statistics and financial information are continued to be based on the
previous clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units under
KWC) for the entire 2016-17 financial year (i.e. up to 31 March 2017),
while reporting based on the new clustering arrangement starts from
1 April 2017.

2. Figures also include home visits and crisis intervention.

3. Figures also include home visits and consultation-liaison attendances.

4. For Community Geriatric Assessment Service, the activity refers to

total number of outreach attendances and geriatric elderly persons
assessed for infirmary care service.

. Visiting Medical Officer attendances refer to the attendances receiving

services provided to elderly persons living in Resident Care Homes for
the Elderly under the Visiting Medical Officers Scheme introduced in
2003-04.

. Allied Health (Community) attendances exclude follow-up consultations

provided by the Medical Social Services Units.

. Geriatric day attendances also include attendances in Integrated

Discharge Support Programme (IDSP) for elderly patients.

. Hong Kong Children’s Hospital is scheduled to commence service by

phases in the fourth quarter of 2018.

. Tin Shui Wai Hospital commenced service by phases in January 2017.

The activity performed in different centers and teams are grouped under

respective hospital management.
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Appendix 11(a)
Fiéz 11 (a)

Manpower Position — by Cluster and Institution
AFRR — REBEAREBEDE

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2018) 2345
ZEEBABHE (2018F3H31HEF)2345

Institution’ Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total
B Bs i 1 ERER Hit st
Hong Kong East Cluster & B R EFr B 661 2780 832 3976 8 249
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok Z ) /24 [C i & e 3 61 10 111 185
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 518 1871 558 2 559 5 507
REIIERATBIT =BT

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 91 578 175 755 1599
B M ER R

St John Hospital £l &&fx 7 35 8 80 130
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital B 5 39 187 77 336 638
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital &174T 2 2 48 4 137 191
Hong Kong West Cluster /& & 74 8§ b Bt 48 711 2 862 972 3620 8 165
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay 15 85 54 143 296
PNEE: i EYNSP N

Grantham Hospital & = 1t %F 34 262 66 323 685
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 253245 Bzt 1 36 33 87 157
Queen Mary Hospital® 3528 E&f56 601 2 084 707 2543 5935
TWGHSs Fung Yiu King Hospital 5% = b7 5228 5 fx 18 85 32 142 277
Tung Wah Hospital 52 &7 42 310 80 382 814
Kowloon Central Cluster 158 A & B B¢ 48 1255 5 257 1 569 7179 15 260
HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service 6 96 75 284 461
BEA+F e MR O

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital &/ #2263 15 187 41 221 463
Hong Kong Children's Hospital &7 52 % 2[5t 12 52 21 104 189
Hong Kong Eye Hospital &5 R Fl 2t 35 78 22 168 303
Kowloon Hospital /1522263 64 779 196 986 2025
Kwong Wah Hospital &= g&f5 350 1201 338 1443 3332
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 2 £ & 69 265 80 352 766
Queen Elizabeth Hospital” F 5 A&’ 678 2332 744 3286 7 039
TWGHs Wong Tai Sin Hospital 522 =p7 & A{lEpr 26 268 52 336 683
Kowloon East Cluster J1.58 5 & fr 5 48 740 2921 804 3631 8 095
Haven of Hope Hospital 2 & 2[5 23 298 72 434 826
Tseung Kwan O Hospital #5582 b3 196 779 218 940 2132
United Christian Hospital 25 #{H & &t 521 1845 514 2 257 5137
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Appendix 11(a)
Biex 11 (a)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2018) 2343
ZRAZ2BAEHE (2018F3H31HEF)2345

Institution’ Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total
B BE EE ERER Hit #st
Kowloon West Cluster J1.5E 74 55 P B 48 1063 4 260 1264 5285 11 871
Caritas Medical Centre F3% £t 263 937 271 1214 2 686
Kwai Chung Hospital 2%/F 2t 73 673 131 608 1485
North Lantau Hospital 1t AU | 1| E&f57 35 98 69 205 407
Princess Margaret Hospital 355 2127 454 1742 575 2217 4988
Yan Chai Hospital 1= % 2% 238 810 217 1040 2 305
New Territories East Cluster 5% 5 B8 b B 48 1058 4 362 1283 5524 12 227
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 178 693 252 1008 2131
TR B AT =5 b
Bradbury Hospice B 2 E & H 0y 2 30 5 31 67
Cheshire Home, Shatin > 22X E T 2 93 11 132 239
North District Hospital 1k [& Z 191 738 213 901 2 042
Prince of Wales Hospital 28 H73# £ 26z 605 2048 639 2 489 5780
Shatin Hospital 7> M 225 39 358 84 447 928
Tai Po Hospital A3 2k 41 402 80 516 1039
New Territories West Cluster 375 75 B8z B 4 836 3627 1017 5351 10 831
Castle Peak Hospital & LLI 28} 77 583 103 664 1428
Pok Oi Hospital 18 % 2% 135 632 176 882 1825
Siu Lam Hospital /\M& 225 6 150 1 322 489
Tuen Mun Hospital #F9% 600 2191 667 3 241 6 699
Tin Shui Wai Hospital XK [E 2Bz 18 71 60 242 391
Total #5t 6 324 26 068 7740 34 566 74 698
Notes: af
1. Kwong Wah Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and Tung Wah . RBREAE FH@?%E’]F%%’? 5t~ BEERIER P
Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital, together with the service KR EE = B KL E BT DA K2 4B (= A AR

units in the concerned communities, were re-delineated from the
Kowloon West Cluster (KWC) to Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC) with
effect from 1 December 2016. Reports on services / manpower statistics
and financial information are continued to be based on the previous
clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units under KWC) for the
entire 2016-17 financial year (i.e. up to 31 March 2017), while reporting
based on the new clustering arrangement starts from 1 April 2017.

2. This figure excludes 2 228 staff in the Hospital Authority Head Office.
3. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) basis includes all full-time &

. Manpower figures of individual

part-time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary.

. Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding.

hospitals / institutions include

management staff providing hospital and cluster-wide services.

. Manpower providing services for Tsan Yuk Hospital is included in

Queen Mary Hospital.

. Manpower providing services for Rehabaid Centre is included in Queen

Elizabeth Hospital.
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AEBEMRFBERNESR  SEBZRERLH
B 48 R4z (BNARRABR TS B AL B L BE PR BB B B 48 )
BE - FHEETEH 2017 F4 B 1 HESIRER
HTRB A SRR PE SR, o
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Appendix 11 (b)
BigE 11 (b)

Manpower Position — by Staff Group
AFRR — B EAE R 25

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2013-14 - 2017-18"

ZEEMAESHE"
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Medical B&&
Consultant EA[% % 761 799 840 885 889
Senior Medical Officer / Associate Consultant 1733 1785 1872 1922 1935
=L/ BIFERE
Medical Officer / Resident (excluding Visiting Medical Officer) 2 866 2872 2 936 2 959 3016
B4/ BB (TRERELE)
Visiting Medical Officer Z|55 %5 16 18 17 18 18
Intern It EE B A 311 401 368 373 470
Senior Dental Officer / Dental Officer 8 8 8 8 8
SRR / FRIE
Medical Total: 5 695 5884 6 040 6164 6 336
BERABEG
Nursing #&
Senior Nursing Officer and above &4 #E KA L 174 181 193 196 206
Department Operations Manager 2FF9:& (E4& 38 181 182 184 191 191
General Z#ER} —
Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer / 3978 4114 4 286 4428 4 563
Advanced Practice Nurse
WELIE ) BREL / #L R/ BRER
Registered Nurse &+ 13 258 13 848 14 474 14 697 15424
Enrolled Nurse Efd &+ 2425 2 447 2436 2421 2 401
Midwife / Others BjE 1 / EAtb 9 4 8 3 3
Student Nurse / Pupil Nurse / Temporary Undergraduate 434 653 611 625 808
Nursing student
AT EE ) BRRE T EE #REEL
Psychiatric 1&1#5} —
Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer / 532 545 552 571 584
Advanced Practice Nurse
REEE / BRlEL / LR/ ERERM
Registered Nurse &+ 1153 1205 1272 1298 1374
Enrolled Nurse E&ii#+ 614 613 576 550 557
Student Nurse / Pupil Nurse 0 0 0 0 0
AL 2L ) BT EE
Nursing Total: 22 759 23 791 24 587 24 980 26 111

EEABBG
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Appendix 11 (b)
Big% 11 (b)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2013-14 - 2017-18"
ZEEBAEHA"

201314 2014/15 2015/16  2016/17 2017/18

Allied Health =55

Audiology Technician &1 2511 & 6 6 6 6 6
Clinical Psychologist &R /0 FEE 5 139 155 163 171 171
Dietitian & 2R 128 141 148 160 162
Dispenser At 5 1129 1186 1249 1289 1316
Medical Technologist / Medical Laboratory Technician 1310 1347 1406 1457 1500
BIS(LERRD / B{LRE

Mould Technologist / Mould Laboratory Technician 26 26 26 26 23
RS ERERINA / HEERERME

Optometrist 18 ¢ A 67 67 67 70 68
Orthoptist 1% 2 k& LA 14 15 14 14 15
Occupational Therapist B %8 &l 698 731 772 815 849
Pharmacist Z£%if 522 574 609 635 673
Physicist #1325 71 73 75 76 74
Physiotherapist #132 A &Rl 869 886 969 1028 1064
Podiatrist /2 752 2D 35 39 41 47 50
Prosthetist-Orthotist 2 % f& 7l 126 135 141 144 146
Diagnostic Radiographer / Radiation Therapist 1002 1017 1054 1102 1144
FUETRT / BT AZERD

Scientific Officer (Medical) RHE2 3 {F (8&74%) 82 82 87 89 89
Speech Therapist = :&)AE AT 82 91 105 110 115
Medical Social Worker &4t T 301 s 888 330 346
Dental Technician 7F EH% 1T 3 3 3 3 3
Allied Health Total: 6 609 6 888 7 268 7572 7815
ERERASES !

Care-related Support Staff X 2

Health Care Assistant 5z iR % )32 2395 2179 1932 1676 1459
Ward Attendant 755 7% 8 295 247 222 191 155
Patient Care Assistant & Other Care-related Support Staff 9447 11 290 12 116 12 831 13 325
MARRTEBNEE R AR A8

Care-related Support Staff Total: 12137 13716 14 270 14 698 14 939
BEZEASHER

Direct Patient Care Total: 47 200 50 278 52 165 53 415 55 202
BERAEEAFEL:
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Appendix 11 (b)
BigE 11 (b)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2013-14 - 2017-18"
ZEEBAEHA"

201314 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Others EHfth

Chief Executive / Director / Deputy Director / Head 7 7 7 7 7
TTEAEE, / BB/ BlieEs / %5

Cluster Chief Executive / Hospital Chief Executive 26 26 24 24 21
BEbrm e / Bl TR

Chief Manager / Senior Manager / Cluster General Manager / 95 94 100 102 101

General Manager

BITHUSIR / S ARITIREIE / B R ASTR / 18

Other Professionals / Administrator, System Manager, 2 099 2 297 2 405 2 555 2 681
Analyst Programmer etc

HEE / THAE  ZGKE ZRRFANMEREES

Other Supporting Staff - Clerical, Secretarial, Workman, 18 180 17 591 18 184 18 771 18 914
Operation Assistant, Executive Assistant etc

HihXEAE — X8 WE  TA EEE (THYEE

Non-direct Patient Care Total: 20 407 20 015 20720 21 459 21725

FEEHEAEEAFEG

HA Total: 67 607 70 293 72 885 74 874 76 926

BERAFHET:

Note: EE

1. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) includes all ful-tme & 1. AFZ[SEE2BAB |t 2EEERMEE
part-time staff in HA’'s workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary. BRRBAOER SOKBNEBE - BRMNE
Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding. AABRR - FIEBEFTHEIER LT EREE -
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Appendix 12(a)
Bie% 12 (a)

Operating Expenditure’ in 2017-18
2017-18 FEEEMX'

Cluster? 2017-18 (HK$Mn)
B4 2 2017-18 FE (B BB T)
Hong Kong East Cluster & 55 2Bt 48 6,223
Hong Kong West Cluster 75 & 75 &2 B Bt 43 6,645
Kowloon Central Cluster J1.52 % 58 Bt 48 11,615
Kowloon East Cluster 71"%%%57’5% = 6,188
Kowloon West Cluster /182 ST s A 9,569
New Territories East Cluster %ﬁﬁ% &P 9,509
New Territories West Cluster 3757 75 &8 f i 49 8,098
Hospital Authority Head Office, and Others?® B[ &2 B4AH R + R E A3 2,445
Total Z&5t 60,292
Notes: %I :

LERXEEBERAREATRBMTHM
SE ERERAT  BEY  ERMMAEEE

1. Operating expenditure refers to the expenditure to run HA's
day-to-day services. It covers manpower, drug, consumables and daily
maintenance of equipment and facilities, etc. but is separated from BRERRENEERES BEERIREE -
expenditure for capital works projects, major equipment acquisition, BEALSELEBEROCXEANEERNMAS
corporate-wide Information Technology development and transaction BRI - T EERABBREREEENR SRS -
of self-financed items paid by patients.

The operating expenditure of a cluster depends not only on the size and
demographics of the population residing within its catchment districts,
but also on other factors such as service demand generated from
cross-cluster movement of patients and the provision of designated
services (such as liver transplantation). As such, the scope of
hospital facilities and expertise available in different clusters also vary.
Therefore, operating expenditure of individual clusters is not directly
comparable.

. Kwong Wah Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital, together with the service
units in the concerned communities, were re-delineated from the
Kowloon West Cluster (KWC) to Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC)
with effect from 1 December 2016. Reports on services / manpower
statistics and financial information are continued to be based on the
previous clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units under
KWC) for the entire 2016-17 financial year (i.e. up to 31 March 2017),
while reporting based on the new clustering arrangement starts from
1 April 2017.

. Includes corporate-wide expenditures processed by Head Office (such
as insurance premium, legal costs, claims paid and salary of medical
interns) and on information technology, as well as resources for
supporting the Government'’s electronic health initiatives.

R 2 E R X MEEUR P AR TS R B E

ADHB MG BRFEMEZME - fln

WA BSEE 482 AN Be B R (L 1 E AR5 (I an AT Bt

BE) MELRREFFR - Bt - SEENEER

RIGHRBIEER - ERFEDH - ERAL
at - ERIsAEN L ERX TRERLE -

FBRAREERBSNEZER 2O
B B R 2 = B 3 A B8 B A R 48 D 4

RIEEL - ER 2016 F 12 A1 HERXHA
ANBEREFRBA - 2016-17 BEH KR FE
(BNEZE 2017 53 A 31 BIL) RS / ATH:
BT BERMENR  SEERRBRLEN
B 48 SR 4% (B4R BA AR IS B AL /&8 S RE P BE P Bt 4 )
BIKTE - HEEEHR 2017 F£4 B 1 BRESIKR
TR B IR AR TE SR o
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Appendix 12(b)
B 12 (b)

Training and Development Expenditure in 2017-18

2017-18 FEBEHFIIRBRAX

Cluster’

B

2017-18 (HK$Mn)?
2017-18 FE (B¥BEET)?

Hong Kong East Cluster 5 5 & F B 48

Hong Kong West Cluster 75 & 7t 28 Bt 48

Kowloon Central Cluster J1.52 % 8 Bt 48

Kowloon East Cluster 71”%%%32%

Kowloon West Cluster /17 e Bk 4

New Territories East Cluster %ﬁﬁ? & e Bk 4

New Territories West Cluster 757 75 28t B 49

Hospital Authority Head Office % Ft &1 B4 =k
Total #5t

14.9
10.9
17.8
(5.1
7.5
13.3
8.2
75.0°
152.7

Notes:

1. Kwong Wah Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital, together with the service
units in the concerned communities, were re-delineated from the
Kowloon West Cluster (KWC) to Kowloon Central Cluster (KCC) with
effect from 1 December 2016. Reports on services / manpower statistics
and financial information are continued to be based on the previous
clustering arrangement (i.e. concerned service units under KWC) for the
entire 2016-17 financial year (i.e. up to 31 March 2017), while reporting

based on the new clustering arrangement starts from 1 April 2017.

2. Expenditure in providing training and development for HA workforce

with items including course / conference fees, passages and travel,
scholarships, subsistence allowances, teaching aids and devices,

publications, trainer fees, refund of examination fee and other relevant
charges.

3. Expenditure includes a number of corporate-wide training programmes
and initiatives centrally coordinated by Hospital Authority Head Office.
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Appendix 13

B % 13
Five-Year Financial Highlights
BERFHHBEE
Financial Results (for the Year ended 31 March) Note
MBER (BESF3HA31H) =
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
B¥EER BYEERT BY¥EERT BY¥EER B¥EER
Income WA
Government subvention (recurrent and capital) 57,802 54,469 52,629 49,722 44713
BB (R E MR EARM)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 4,287 3,818 3,598 3,423 3,182
BRE AU (kR R)
Non-medical fee income FF2& & & A 1,018 935 1,014 936 892
Designated donations #5 i 182 93 171 146 230 183
Capital donations & 7~ 458 138 162 114 110 128
63,338 59,555 57,501 54,421 49,098
Expenditure 3 i
Staff costs B TAA (45,113) (43,084) (40,299) (37,235) (34,459)
Drugs &%) (6,663) (6,156) (5,710) (5,328) (4,941)
Medical supplies and equipment 2575475 M &1 (2,970) (2,762) (2,636) (2,402) (2,192)
Other operating expenses (include depreciation (9,433) (9,072) (8,706) (8,079) (6,841)
and amortisation)
Hih B (BT E REH)
(64,179) (61,074) (57,351) (53,044) (48,433)
Results for the year FE4£ R (841) (1,519) 150 1,377 665
Income by Source (in % of Total Income)
BEWARE (hBERABD L)
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40% Others
30% HAh
B Medical fee income
20% BEERKA
10% B Government subvention
0% NEiSEEHEY

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
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Bt 13

Key Financial Indicators (for the Year ended 31 March) Note!
FEMBRER(BESF3A31H)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
RYREBET B¥EExT B¥EER BYEEBER BY¥EER
Medical fee income (Note 2) BEE AW A (5 2)
Inpatient fees 13 Ft Uz & 1,234 1,048 998 993 943
Outpatient fees P2 W E 1,740 1,354 1,312 1,285 1,258
Itemised charges 7 HHUE 2,085 1,890 1,742 1,595 1,420
Other medical fees Hfi B &M & 102 99 94 88 88
5,161 4,391 4,146 3,961 3,709
Less: Waivers (Note 3) #1B% : B & (& 3) (874) (573) (548) (538) (527)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 4,287 3,818 3,598 3,423 3,182
BREEFHWA NRESE)
Additional provision for doubtful debts charged 63 61 58 52 45
to the Statement of Income and Expenditure
(Note 4)

ERZEERABMORRER (FE4)

Expenditure by Category (in % of Total Expenditure)

BEXZH (BREZHADLL)
100%
80% [ ||
70%
60%
o I Other operating expenses
50% EfhEERX
40% M Medical supplies and equipment
30% BREYRREE
Drugs
20% zY)
10% M Staff cost
0% SRR
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
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Bt 13

Notes: 5F ¢

1. Comparative figures 1. EBEZF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the
current year's presentation.

. Medical fee income

Fees for hospital services are governed by the HA Ordinance. There
are 3 categories of charges: (i) public charges for Eligible Persons (EP);
(i) public charges for Non-eligible Persons (NEP); and (iii) private
charges. The definition of EP and NEP can be found in HA website
whilst the fees and charges schedules are listed in the Gazette and HA
website.

. Waivers

Under the Government policy, recipients of Comprehensive Social
Security Assistance (CSSA), older Old Age Living Allowance
recipients with more financial needs (with effective from 15 July 2017)
and Level 0 Voucher Holders of the Pilot Scheme on Residential
Care Service Voucher for the Elderly (with effective from March
2017) can obtain free medical treatment at HA's hospitals and
clinics. Other persons with financial difficulties in paying the
medical fees and charges can apply for medical fee waivers. The
granting of waivers is subject to meeting the criteria under the
established waiving mechanism.

The waivers granted to EP and NEP for the year ended 31 March 2018
are HK$760,000,000 and HK$114,000,000 respectively (for the year
ended 31 March 2017 are HK$459,000,000 and HK$114,000,000
respectively).

. Additional provision for doubtful debts charged to the Statement
of Income and Expenditure

Each year, HA would make assessment on the collectability of
outstanding hospital fees and charges (accounts receivable). As a
result of the assessment, additional provision (or reversal of provision)
would be charged to the Statement of Income and Expenditure for the
year.

ETHREFEEN I UNAaXFENE

. BEERABA

BERNBERGKEX (BIEERIED) R
o BEUEASRTI=1R () TAERA
THARKE (i) FFEERALTHRIRE
. MGDARKE - FEITEEBALIR
[FERNAERALI ZEE  AAEEERMEA -
A ETT2HBR N EE REA

. BR

ERFHRERT  BR[GEESRERE ]
(#71R)  BEENRERBEZENRELER
B A(R2017F7 A15 BE) R EERE
FERERESARBRT IR EHFFEA
(2017 F 3 B#e) AJ EER A B ERB U
B HMATERLCERNE  AIRBERRR ©
BB RR R i ESSRIEETE B R R 2%
il 2 ZEAVEFT A o

BHZE2018F 3 A31 BHRILERNFTEER
ALTHEREERALTHEBRE D A&
78 ¥ 760,000,000 K 7% # 114,000,000 (B =
2017 F3 A 31 ARIEZEARE D R REE
459,000,000 5% 114,000,000) °

 ERXEERAE MR RRE

BERSFENABERERKARKE AR
1 (EURERFR) = RFHATR - FEM (D) 1
REBEEFTEEZFNREERA -
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Financial Position (at 31 March) Nete'
BBGRR (REF 3 A 31 )=

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BEEELT BYEHExT BYEER BYEER BYEER
Non-current assets JEREE = 29,410 29,369 20,460 20,107 10,615
Current assets B & E 23,075 24,053 34,064 23,981 30,521
Current liabilities & & (& (12,661) (12,233) (11,630) (11,278) (9,620)
Net current assets R E &= FE 10,414 11,820 22,434 12,703 20,901
Non-current liabilities 37 85 & (27,200)  (28,036)  (28,742)  (18,994)  (19,609)
Net assets & EFE 12,624 13,153 14,152 13,816 11,907
Capital subventions and capital donations 6,109 5,817 5,317 5,153 4,610
BB R E RN
Designated fund 15 7E &% 5,077 5,077 5,077 5,077 5,077
Revenue reserve YA & 1,438 2,259 3,758 3,586 2,220
12,624 13,153 14,152 13,816 11,907
Note: &t
1. Comparative figures 1. EBREF
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the ETHBREFEEHHE  UHEAFEMNE
current year's presentation. WA o

Total Assets o2 (in HK$ milllions)
REE(BE¥AEERT)

50,000
45,000
40,000

35,000
Placements with the Exchange Fund

SNEE DT

30,000

B Cash & bank
25,000 & RIRITHERR

M Fixed income instruments
20,000 BEAELA

Receivables, deposits & prepayments

15,000 FEMGK ~ 2@ RIRNFIA

M Inventories
10,000 FE

B Fixed & intangible assets
5,000 BEMEFEE

0
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Note: 2. Exclude the placement with the Exchange Fund of HK$7,456,207,000 (2017: HK$7,221,000,000) as HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund.
i 2. MEREEREAKIBHEESINERSFRRE AFRNINEREE B 7,456,207,000 TTHIFKIE (2017: ¥ 7,221,000,000 7T)
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Bfd% 13
Key Financial Indicators (at 31 March)
FEHMBESR (RSF3A3110)
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
RE¥RET BY¥EER BY¥EERT B¥EER BY¥EER
Inventories 7 &
Drugs %)) 1,129 1,073 1,054 1,087 1,151
Other medical and general consumables 214 223 213 227 218
E b BB R —AEFEm
1,343 1,296 1,267 1,314 1,369
Average stock holding period (weeks)
FHEFERERRE (2H)
Drugs %) 8.8 9.0 9.6 10.5 12.0
Other medical and general consumables 7.7 8.2 8.6 8.1 8.6

Hitn BB KRB FEm
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The Hospital Authority is committed to environmental protection.
You may access this Report on our website www.ha.org.hk

ERTER
EENEDREH147BEREERNE

Hospital Authority
Hospital Authority Building
147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

T Tel  : (852) 2300 6555
BHE Fax : (852) 2890 7726
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